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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Turnover

Retail

Other businesses

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable
to owners of the Company
Continuing operations
Discontinued operation

Earnings per share - Basic and diluted
For profit for the year
For profit from continuing operations

Dividend per share
— Interim
— Final
— Special final

Total dividend per share for the year

Dividend payout ratio’

Equity attributable to owners of the
Company
Equity per share

" Special final dividend excluded
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Turnover - Continuing operations

BEE - BEKEER

MEBERE

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET

(Restated)

(E7))

19,921,938 13,097,720
2,065,621 1,899,821
21,987,559 14,997,541
743,868 639,138

(100,611) (94,674)
643,257 544,464

95.0 cents 1
109.8 cents 1l

14.0 cents 1
28.0 cents Al

80.4 cents {ll
94.3 cents {1l

5.0 cents 1l
26.0 cents
16.0 cents Il

42.0 cents 1l

47.0 cents {ll

44%

12,753,120
$18.8 7T

39%

12,019,114
$17.7 7t

Change
2%

+52%
+9%

+47%

+16%
+6%

+18%

+18%
+16%

+6%
+6%

Return on equity
32 B &

Year
5
2021 | 7066 21,958 %
2020 13,098 1,900/ 14,998
2019 16,258 1450/ 17,712
2018 17,130 1642 18,772
2017 14,516 2,083 16,599
0 6,000 12,000 18,000 24,000
HK$'M
’ M Retail T Other businesses E 2 7% ‘ BEET

Profit attributable to s of the Company - ontlnumg operations
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Year
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2021 | 44
2020 | 639
2019 | 1,000
2018 | 972
2017 | 840
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CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE

The fifth wave of the covid-19 pandemic in Hong Kong has been
wreaking unprecedented havoc.

In the interest of safety for staff and customers alike, our stores have
suspended business when cases of direct or suspected infections are
reported. Store hours are shortened across the board. Office staff do
work-from-home whenever possible. However, | am pleased to note, no
one was ever asked to take any no-pay leave.

In Mainland China, even as we thought that business is on the way back
to normal, cities like Shenzhen and Shanghai have gone into high alert
for lockdown since mid-March. Now warnings abound that the high
growth rate of the Chinese economy may not be sustainable.

With so much uncertainty, gold is once again at centre stage, its
predominance further fueled by geopolitical confrontations and military
conflicts. Since peaking in 2020 the price of gold has stayed at a level
higher than ever seen in the last decade.

How long will the pandemic last and how long must we endure the
various restrictions? Will the fraught geopolitical situation deteriorate
further? How do we, as a business, manage our human resource as the
talent-pool in Hong Kong keeps shrinking because locals and expatriates
are leaving the city for reasons such as emigration and fleeing pandemic
restrictions? These are certainly testing and volatile times.

At our front-end we have our robust e-commerce infrastructure serving
separately the Mainland and international markets, our well-developed
Personalised Jewellery Service and our overall omni-channel retail
network. Backed up by our prudent financial management and inventory
control, together with our design and production teams that have
served us well, we shall navigate the heavy seas.
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CHAIRMAN'S MESSAGE

| must pay tribute to all our staff who have braved the onslaught of
the pandemic and managed to keep all systems functioning. | must
thank our customers, our shareholders, landlords, suppliers and other
stakeholders for all the support and understanding they have rendered
us. To each and everyone, | am deeply grateful.

Vincent CHOW Wing Shing
Chairman

Hong Kong
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Dr. CHAN Bing Fun, MB, BS, DMRT, aged 88, is an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company, and a member of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. He has been with the Group for over 45 years. Dr. CHAN
is a medical doctor in private practice in Hong Kong.

Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing, SBS, BBS, MBE, JP, aged 75, is an
Executive Director of the Company, the Chairman of the Board, the
Group General Manager and a director of a number of subsidiaries
within the Group. Mr. CHOW is the cousin of Dr. Gerald CHOW King
Sing and Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing and the father of Ms. Genevieve
CHOW Karwing. He is a director of Everwin Company Limited, a
substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr. CHOW has been with the
Group for over 35 years, having been the Group General Manager and
the Chairman since 1998 and 2013 respectively. He is appointed by the
Home Affairs Bureau to its Advisory Committee on Arts Development
as the Chairman and the Board of Governors of City University of Hong
Kong Foundation as a member. Mr. CHOW was made an Honorary
Fellow of the Hong Kong Academy for Performing Arts; and he serves
as a Director of the Board of The Hong Kong International Film Festival
Society Limited, which is a not-for-profit organisation. He is a member
of the Board of Governors and a member of the College Council of the
UOW College Hong Kong.

Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing, aged 65, is an Executive Director of
the Company. He is a member of the Nomination Committee of the
Company and a director of a number of subsidiaries within the Group.
He has joined the Group for over 35 years. Dr. CHOW is the elder
brother of Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing, a cousin of Mr. Vincent
CHOW Wing Shing and an uncle of Ms. Genevieve CHOW Karwing. He
is a director of Speed Star Holdings Limited, a substantial shareholder
of the Company. For community services in Hong Kong, Dr. CHOW is
an expert member of the “Managing World Cities” Programme of the
Faculty of Social Sciences, The University of Hong Kong. He is a panel
member of the Public Affairs Forum under the Home Affairs Bureau,
HKSAR until its cessation of operation in 2018, a former member of
the Central Policy Unit of the Hong Kong Government (2009-2011)
and a former council member of The Better Hong Kong Foundation
(2007-2015). Dr. CHOW also served in the Central and Western District
Fight Crime Committee (2009-2011). He is an honorary member of
the Hong Kong Fire Services Officers’ Mess and the founding President
of the Central and Western District Fire Safety Ambassador Honorary
Presidents’ Association of the Hong Kong Fire Services Department.
Dr. CHOW has been a voting member of the Po Leung Kuk Advisory
Board since 1997. He is also a member of the Bauhinia Foundation
Research Centre and the Hong Kong Strategy.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel, MH, FCCA, FCPA (Practising),
ACA, CTA(HK), FHKIoD, aged 68, was an Independent Non-executive
Director and the Secretary of the Company until September 2004. He
was re-designated as a Non-executive Director of the Company on
28 September 2004. Mr. TING is a member of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.
He is an independent non-executive director of seven other listed
companies in Hong Kong, namely Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd.,
Tongda Group Holdings Limited, New Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited,
Computer And Technologies Holdings Limited, Texhong Textile Group
Limited, Dongyue Group Limited and China SCE Group Holdings Limited.
Mr. TING is an accountant in public practice and has more than 40 years
of experience in this field. Currently, he is a partner of Ting Ho Kwan
& Chan, Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam, GBS, OBE, JP, LL.B (Lond.) (Hons), aged 81, is
a Non-executive Director of the Company, and a member of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 26 June 1995 and re-designated as a
Non-executive Director in September 2004. Mr. CHUNG is a solicitor
in practice. Apart from being a China-appointed Attesting Officer and
a Hong Kong Notary Public, he is also an independent non-executive
director of two other listed companies in Hong Kong, namely S E A
Holdings Limited and Datronix Holdings Limited.

Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing, aged 64, is an Executive Director
of the Company, the Group Deputy General Manager and a director
of a number of subsidiaries within the Group. Mr. CHOW has been
with the Group since 1984 (except 1988 to 1992) and has become the
Group Deputy General Manager since 1995. Mr. CHOW is the younger
brother of Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing, a cousin of Mr. Vincent CHOW
Wing Shing and an uncle of Ms. Genevieve CHOW Karwing. He has
experience in real estate in Canada. Mr. CHOW's key responsibilities
include the product development and staff learning and development
of the Group’s jewellery business in Greater China. He is the Chairman
of Jewellery Advisory Committee of the Hong Kong Trade Development
Council, a Vice-chairman of the Quality Tourism Services Association,
an Executive Committee member of the Hong Kong Retail Management
Association and a member of the Jewellery Industry Training Advisory
Committee under the Qualifications Framework of the Education
Bureau.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LEE Ka Lun, FCCA, aged 67, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company, and the chairman of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company.
He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company on 28 September 2004. Mr. LEE is an accountant by
profession and has over 25 years of experience in banking and auditing.
He was the Regional Deputy Chief Executive of Lloyds TSB Bank plc and
Regional Director — Finance and Operation of Lloyds TSB's operations
in Asia for over 15 years and has extensive experience in corporate
banking, private banking, treasury, operations, IT developments and
general management. He serves as an independent non-executive
director of four other listed companies in Hong Kong, namely Yuexiu
Property Company Limited, Medicskin Holdings Limited, Ever Harvest
Group Holdings Limited and Best Mart 360 Holdings Limited. Mr. LEE
continues to serve as an independent non-executive director of Chong
Hing Bank Limited (“Chong Hing") after its listing on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited was withdrawn on 30 September 2021. He
is also an independent non-executive director of Yuexiu Financial Holdings
Limited, a holding company of Chong Hing.

Dr. LO King Man, SBS, BBS, MBE, JP, FRSA, FHKU, UFHKPU, FHKAPA,
DocHKAPA, Cavaliere (Order of Merit, Italy), Chevalier (Order of Arts
and Letters, France), aged 84, is an Independent Non-executive Director,
a member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee of the Company. He was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 28 September
2004. Following a career in higher education management, Dr. LO held
appointments as Director of the Hong Kong Academy for Performing
Arts during 1993 to 2004 and as Principal of the Canton International
Summer Music Academy established by the Guangdong Government
during 2004 to 2009. His public service included vice-chairmanship of
the former Urban Council and membership of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region Basic Law Consultative Committee, Examination
Authority, Broadcasting Authority, Vocational Training Council and Arts
Development Council. He has served on governing boards of numerous
educational and cultural organisations. Dr. LO is the Chairman of the
Hong Kong Arts Festival Programme Committee and the Vice Chairman
of the Hong Kong Arts Festival Executive Committee. Dr. LO is also the
Director-general of Musica Viva Limited. He is an independent non-
executive director of another listed company in Hong Kong - Sing Lee
Software (Group) Limited.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung, OBE, JP, aged 76, is an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company, and a member of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company on 17 December 2012. Mr. LAU is a qualified
electrical engineer, and a member of The Institution of Engineering
and Technology, United Kingdom, and with a postgraduate degree of
Master of Science from the University of Surrey, England. He has more
than 30 years of management and marketing experience, particularly in
the textile and apparel field. Mr. LAU is the managing director of The
Polyfabrics (Hong Kong) Limited. He was appointed as a member to
vice-chairman of the Urban Council from 1978 to 1995. Mr. LAU was
also appointed as a member of various committees, boards, and panels,
namely the Textiles Advisory Board, the Trade and Industry Advisory
Board, the Administrative Appeals Board, the Air Transport Licensing
Authority, the Appeal Board Panel (Town Planning), the Board of Review
(Inland Revenue Ordinance), the Broadcasting Authority, etc. He also
served as a Council Member of The University of Hong Kong from 1985
to 1997. Mr. LAU is active in several charitable organisations and in
Chiu Chow community associations.

Ms. Genevieve CHOW Karwing, aged 37, is an Executive Director of
the Company since 1 November 2021. She joined the Group in 2010
and is the Group's General Manager of Omni-channel Development.
Ms. CHOW is a daughter of Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing and a
niece to both Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing and Mr. Winston CHOW
Wun Sing. She is a director of Everwin Company Limited, a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Ms. CHOW leads the Group’s e-Commerce
business and is responsible for the development of strategic initiatives
to better position the Group to deliver a holistic omni-channel shopping
experience. Since 2018, Ms. CHOW has also been the Brand Director
of EMPHASIS and PROMESSA, overseeing the branding, business
development and product management. Ms. CHOW holds a dual
Bachelor of Arts Degree in Science of Earth Systems and Economics from
Cornell University. She is a GIA Applied Jewellery Professional (A.J.P.)
and GIA Diamonds Graduate.

Mr. Morison CHAN Chi Kong, FCPA, FCCA, HKFCG, FCG, CFA, MBA,
aged 54, is the Company Secretary of the Company, the Group’s Chief
Financial Officer and a director of certain subsidiaries within the Group.
Mr. CHAN joined the Group in February 2020 and has over 30 years of
experience in accounting, auditing, corporate finance and management.
Mr. CHAN is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
("ACCA"), the Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and the
Chartered Governance Institute, and a Chartered Financial Analyst. He
is the past Chairman of ACCA Hong Kong. Mr. CHAN is currently a
member of the Professional Development Sub-committee of ACCA Hong
Kong and the Accountancy Training Board of the Vocational Training
Council.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LAU Hak Bun, aged 69, is the Group’s General Manager — Retail
Operations (Greater China) and a director of a subsidiary within the
Group. Mr. LAU has been with the Group for over 50 years. He is well-
experienced in sales management. Apart from managing the retail
operations in Hong Kong and Macau, Mr. LAU is also responsible for
the development of operational strategies in Greater China. He also
serves as the Vice-chairman of The Hong Kong Jewellers” & Goldsmiths'’
Association Ltd. and the Chairman of The Kowloon Pearls, Precious
Stones, Jade, Gold and Silver Ornament Merchants Association. Mr. LAU
also serves as Honorary President, President or Consultant of various
organizations in the industry.

Ms. Cecilia YIM Sze Nga, aged 46, is the Group’s Chief Market
Strategy Officer. Ms. YIM joined the Group in December 2013 and has
over 24 years of experience in marketing communication and brand
management. Ms. YIM is responsible for the multi-brand development
strategy, brand experience and marketing communication in the Group.
Ms. YIM's experience covered a variety of industries including digital
advertising strategy and creative services with one of the world'’s
top three marketing communication groups, as well as the Regional
Marketing Director of one of the top three wine and spirit companies in
Asia Pacific. Ms. YIM holds a Bachelor of Social Science Degree in digital
graphic communication from School of Communication of Hong Kong
Baptist University.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Overview

Although the covid-19 outbreak has been impacting the Group's retail
business since early 2020, by the first half of 2021, sales of jewellery and
watches in Mainland China have rebounded significantly, while growth
in Hong Kong and Macau has been relatively modest. The growth of
jewellery and watch sales in Mainland China narrowed in the second
half of 2021, due to a higher base in 2020 and a slower fourth quarter,
achieving 65% year-on-year. Relying mostly on local consumption and
benefitting from the Hong Kong government vouchers, the Hong Kong
and Macau markets achieved 27% year-on-year sales growth in 2021.

In terms of products, gold jewellery and watches continued to be the
engines of sales growth. In Mainland China, sales of gold jewellery rose
90% year-on-year, watches rose 98%, and gem-set jewellery only 13%.
In Hong Kong and Macau, sales of gold jewellery, gem-set jewellery and
watches grew by 30%, 31% and 22% respectively. In 2021, the price of
gold generally fluctuated within a narrow band, after rising strongly in
2020. As a result, the Group was not able to enjoy the same degree of
margin enhancement from gold jewellery sales as it did in 2020.

Overall gross profit margin from continuing operations decreased by
2.2 percentage points to 25.3% in 2021, mainly due to increase in
percentage of gold jewellery sales and the lack of margin gain from a
surging gold price.

The Group recorded an impairment loss of HK$93 million on margin
loans in 2021 from its now-discontinued Securities and Futures Broking
business.

The Group's consolidated turnover from continuing operations increased
by 47% to HK$21,988 million in 2021. Profit attributable to owners of
the Company increased by 18% to HK$643 million. Profit attributable to
owners of the Company from continuing operations increased by 16%
to HK$744 million.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Analysis by Geographical Area

Mainland China IR RE
Hong Kong and Macau &5 MRS
Taiwan 2E

Total A&t

Mainland China

EEERN @RS N

Retail of Jewellery and Watches

RERERTE

Retail Turnover

TEERE

Segment revenue

2020

B ESH
2021 Geographical areas &

Mainland China B ARE
Hong Kong and Macau &% K ®F9
Taiwan Z/&

Segment results

Compared to the pandemic-impacted low base of the first half of 2020,
revenue for the first half of 2021 increased strongly by 94%. New store
openings also contributed to sales growth. With a moderate increase of
43% in the second half, full-year segment revenue grew 65%. Segment
results for 2021 declined 40% because overall gross margin decreased
as a result of the increase in percentage of gold jewellery sales and
the additional margin generated in 2020 by the surging gold price had

disappeared.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED 11
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Sl SBRE
2021 2020 2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000 Change HK$'000 HK$'000 Change
FET AL % FEx AL 2
14,315,010 8,685,590 +65% 733,211 1,212,775 -40%
5,416,999 4,261,002 +27% 236,889 (310,854) +176%
189,929 151,128 +26% 11,055 12,585 -12%
19,921,938 13,097,720 +52% 981,155 914,506 +7%
P EARE

H000F L FEXREBEFENERER
M 2021 F EEFEREEFRIER
94% - A EHBENHELR - BEE
THEFERZEMEFA43% » 2FH W
wIENM65% - AN EBEFEKRENT =
CH MBS HIm IR - B %k412020
FHRESEMATROBINEF - 2021 F
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEENWE DN

Retail of Jewellery and Watches (continued)

REREZRTE(H)

Analysis by Geographical Area (continued)

Mainland China Sales Mix

BHESH ()

FEAEHEAS
" 2020 2021 Products E
Gold jewellery and products &4 & 5 & & 5
Gem-set jewellery SEHRIAE
Platinum/Karat gold jewellery $1% /K% &%
Watches $Z5%
62% [71%

2021 1H vs 2020 1H

2021 2H vs 2020 2H

2021 FY vs 2020 FY

2021 FEH¥FE 2021 FTHEFE 2021 £2F

Same Store Sales 53] i) 3]

Growth ("SSSG")  RIEHEEK 2020 F EHFE 2020 FRHFE 2020 £2 4
Gold jewellery and ~ =&H#H K

products Em +93% +44% +66%
Gem-set jewellery ERUE +6% -12% -3%
Watches fE sk +193% +10% +74%
Overall e +69% +23% +44%

Overall SSSG narrowed from 102% in the first quarter to 40% in
the second quarter. SSSG declined to 23% in the second half as
the low-base factor disappeared.

The decline in gold price in early 2021 and the traditional peak
season for gold sales during the first quarter, coupled with the
reduction in overseas travel, boosted domestic consumption. All
such led to significant SSSG for gold jewellery and products in
the first half of the year. As the low-base effect receded, SSSG
stabilised in the second half of the year.

Although Personalised Jewellery Service business remained strong
and accounted for 42% of diamond jewellery sales, demand for
gem-set jewellery was relatively weak.

Local consumption for Rolex and Tudor remained strong. Our
watch sales continued to be firm, but SSSG became steady in the
second half of the year due to higher base.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
BEE&BEBERERARA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWMROM

Retail of Jewellery and Watches (continued)

REREZRTE(H)

Analysis by Geographical Area (continued)

Hong Kong and Macau

Revenue in 2021 increased by 27% vyear-on-year. Under strict border
control measures, Hong Kong and Macau business relied mainly on local
customers. The easing of the pandemic in the second and third quarters,
and the release of consumption vouchers in August and October,
benefited domestic spending. Given that 2020 segment results included
HK$170 million impairment losses on right-of-use assets, the recovery in
segment revenue in 2021 effectively improved operational efficiency and
segment results returned to a profitable position.

Hong Kong and Macau Sales Mix

BERERAMBEEAS

2020 2021

61% /62%

2021 1H vs 2020 1H

BB (F)

BB RBFT

2021 EEWEIRE FTH27% - EEBIKESE
BHT  BEMEPI BT KB
EoRRBEE -  ZFTHIBEM  ARNS
ARM10A%M 2z EES  BRAMES -
200 F DA EERTITOBEB TEAE
BEMERE LD IPUREN 2021 F0
AERRSLEWE 2021 FEHHEES
REFIKF o

Products E

Gold jewellery and products &4 & 5 & & 5
Gem-set jewellery 82 kS

Platinum/Karat gold jewellery $i% /K& i
Watches §Z%

2021 2H vs 2020 2H

2021 FY vs 2020 FY

201 FEHFE 2021 FRHFE 2021 £2F
) 53] ig3) i)
SSSG FEHEER 2020 F LH+FE 2020 F TN EFE 2020 £2 %
Gold jewellery and ~ E=&H#H K
products Em +27% +38% +33%
Gem-set jewellery ERUE +21% +47% +34%
Watches ik +55% 2% +23%
Overall et ] +31% +29% +30%

o Sales in the first half of 2020 were hit hard by the pandemic,
resulting in a lower base, while SSSG in the second half of 2021
was driven by positive market conditions.

o With stabilising local pandemic situation and improving consumer
sentiment in the second half, SSSG of gem-set jewellery
rebounded as a result of revival of wedding and gifting activities.

o Personalised Jewellery Service business also gave additional
impetus to the rebound in gem-set jewellery sales.

. Demand for luxury watches remained exuberant but sales level
stabilised in the second half due to a high base.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWMROM

Retail of Jewellery and Watches (continued)

REREZRTE(H)

Analysis by Geographical Area (continued)

Taiwan

Sales in Taiwan grew at a healthy pace in spite of the pandemic.
Revenue grew 26% year-over-year. We saw encouraging results from
the opening of PROMESSA stores in Taiwan. Excluding the factors of
gold price and currency fluctuations, segment results grew 122% year-
on-year in 2021.

BB ()
BESLWEYE BRHEDREER -
TEE LS EVIRES FELEY

PROMESSATE RS A8 5E - MEEE R
ERRBEE - 2021 FHBEERFER
122% ©

Store Network

/ As at As at
31.12.2020 31.12.2021
Region 42020 & Opening Closure Net change | 120215
HE 12A31H HE 3 FE 12A31H
Chow Sang Sang | A%£4 591 +78 -34 +44 635
BEE BEEE 10 +45 0 +45 55
HE 0 ETF HE o ETF
(Qasis by Chow
Sang Sang)
Mainland China | Rolex/Tudor Bht /w5 12 +1 0 +1 13
REARE &
MINTYGREEN MINTYGREEN 25 +13 -4 +9 34
EMPHASIS EMPHASIS 12 +8 -1 +7 19
PROMESSA PROMESSA 2 +16 0 +16 18
MARCO BICEGO | MARCO BICEGO 1 0 0 0 1
Sub-total: /)\st : 653 +161 -39 +122 775
Chow Sang Sang | A%% 48 +1 -5 -4 44
Hong Kong Rolex/Tudor BNt/ wh 12 0 -1 -1 1
B EMPHASIS EMPHASS 4 + 0 + 5
PROMESSA PROMESSA 1 0 0 0 1
Sub-total: /]\&f - 65 +2 6 -4 61
Macau BiED 2 4 +1 0 +1 5
BF
Sub-total: 7)\st : 4 +1 0 +1 5
Fawan B LS 25 +3 y +2 27
BE PROMESSA PROMESSA 1 +3 0 +3 4
Sub-total: /)\st : 26 +6 1 +5 31
Total: 43 : 748 +170 -46 +124 872/

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWMROM

Retail of Jewellery and Watches (continued)

REREZRTE(H)

Store Network (continued)

Chow Sang Sang / 2548 47

During the year, 78 new Chow Sang Sang stores were opened in
Mainland China and a total of 34 stores were closed. Sixty-four of
the new stores were located in shopping malls.

Since the opening of the first store in September 2020, A4 ¢ )&
T (Oasis by Chow Sang Sang) has been a key driver in expanding
our store network and enhancing our community coverage in
Mainland China. The total number of stores has been increased by
more than five-fold to 55 by the end of 2021.

In Hong Kong, we continue to rebalance our store network in
tourist and local areas. Five Chow Sang Sang stores in Tung
Chung, Yuen Long and Yau Tsim Mong were closed in 2021, and
a new store with a community culture theme was opened in Wong
Tai Sin.

During the year, we moved into our administrative headquarters in
Macau and added 1 ZhB& dh store.
We added a net of 2 25 stores in Taiwan.

PROMESSA

PROMESSA is the name of our flagship collection of engagement
rings and wedding bands. The first PROMESSA stand-alone store
was opened in May 2020 to give the brand its own boutique and
to create a venue suited for making a proposal of marriage.

To strengthen the brand coverage and awareness of PROMESSA,
the Group opened 16 new PROMESSA stores in Mainland China in
2021 while 3 new ones were also added in Taiwan owing to the
special favour of custom-built jewellery among Taiwan customers.

EMPHASIS

EMPHASIS aims to give a new definition to daily-wear jewellery
and offers a wide range of jewellery options to customers who
love originality and creativity.

EMPHASIS focuses on its development in first-tier cities of
Mainland China with store number increased from 12 to 19 in
2021. One more store was added in Hong Kong.

MARCO BICEGO

MARCO BICEGO is an ltalian jewellery brand featuring artisanal
craftsmanship and contemporary design concepts.

We have a MARCO BICEGO speciality store in Beijing.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Store Network (continued)

MINTYGREEN

o MINTYGREEN is an affordable daily wear brand that makes items

EEENWMROM

Retail of Jewellery and Watches (continued)

REREZRTE(H)

suitable for the younger generation.

. All MINTYGREEN stores are located in Mainland China, with the
focus on creating young fashionable community stores. Store

number increased from 25 to 34 in 2021.

Chow Sang Sang Omni-Channel Retailing

DIERE(E)

MINTYGREEN

MINTYGREEN & — {f T # 7 & F &
—REAMENNEREENE 6T
h o

MINTYGREEN ET & 9 & 15 i 73 A B
Kb EHITEFEEFELRE
2021 FE N EHBEABREME34
%O

BELELRESTE

On-line Sales R FHE
2021 2020
HK$'M HK$'M
On-line Sales EHinEoH Change
by Market i EHE BEABTT BEATL &
Mainland China BN = 2,194 1,546 +42%
Hong Kong, Taiwan BE BERAEM
and Others 130 68 +91%

o The online sales in Mainland China maintained its growth
momentum and exceeded HK$2 billion in 2021. Sales accounted
for approximately 15% (2020: 18%) of overall Mainland China

sales.

o In Mainland China, we operate flagship stores on the main
platforms such as Tmall, JD and VIP, as well as others operated
by banks and other entities. We launched PROMESSA and
MINTYGREEN WeChat mini-program e-commerce stores in January
and April 2021 respectively. The Group also opened its Chow Sang
Sang and MINTYGREEN flagship stores in Douyin live-streaming
e-commerce platform in October 2021, achieving encouraging

results.

. Online sales in Hong Kong, Taiwan and other regions continued
to grow at a fast pace in 2021. We have been actively exploring
overseas markets and expanding sales in other third-party

e-commerce platforms.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWMROM

Retail of Jewellery and Watches (continued)

REREZRTE(H)

Chow Sang Sang Omni-Channel Retailing (continued)

Omni-Remote Sales

Omni-Remote Sales include sales generated from e-commerce
platforms, Star Concierge Service and other remote sales
concluded out of in-person branch environment or with remote
inventory. Its percentage to total sales in Mainland China edged
up to 33% (2020: 32%).

In-store sales, sales conducted through various e-commerce
platforms, Personalised Jewellery Service and remote inventory
sales have integrated online and offline environments to create a
seamless customer experience.

In recognition of the Group’s digital transformation, omni-channel
strategy and the pursuit of enhancing customer experience
through technology, Chow Sang Sang has been awarded “the
Enterprise of the Year” in the Dingge - Digital Transformation
Awards 2021 organised by Harvard Business Review and SAP.

Product and Marketing

On the product front, gold ornaments designed with Chinese
themes are still the favourite choice of customers. Sales of our
“Cultural Blessings” collection delivered prominent growth.
The new “mini-Charme” products were also well received by
customers, driving the overall sales of our signature “Charme”
collection.

We kept on enhancing our Personalised Jewellery Service by
launching new designs, new product categories and distinctive
services. Customers can virtually examine diamond choices through
interactive high resolution videos when creating their own gem-
set jewellery. Total sales conducted through Personalised Jewellery
Service grew by 71% to approximately HK$1,183 million. Sales in
Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau, and Taiwan in their local
currency grew by 51%, 150% and 82% year-on-year respectively.
Total diamond jewellery sales from this service accounted for 37%
(2020: 23%) of the Group's corresponding sales.

The demand for Rolex watches remained strong and showed no
sign of easing.

Aiming at attracting young couple clientele, the Group participated
in a total of 27 (2020: 10) wedding expos in Mainland China,
Hong Kong and Taiwan in 2021.

Live streaming has become a new trend in omni-channel
marketing. We hosted over 7,900 hours (2020: 4,600 hours) of
live shows across multiple e-commerce platforms in 2021.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EEEBNWR DN

Wholesale of Precious Metals

ESEAtH

Percentage of other precious metals wholesale versus that of gold and HESMASHEL 2021FEM0ES B
platinum increased further in 2021 and gave rise to higher gross margin. MENGELE-F LA TRESHEF
Turnover increased by 8% to HK$2,033 million and segment operating Ko BE¥ETERSU £2,033HEETL H
profit increased by 57% to HK$18 million. AR EINST% Z18EEBAT ©

E-commerce Platform for Lab-Grown Diamond Jewellery
EREEFEARENRNETHETYS

We have created an e-commerce platform at www.thefuturerocks.com FAI7E www.thefuturerocks.com B3 7 —
for the trading of jewellery that are set with laboratory-grown diamond. HEEFHAETE RAKERERERFHE

It connects consumers with select jewellery brands from the USA, the AREHme RS BREBEEHEKRER

UK, Israel, Japan and other countries. The business is run as an entity R 'Y BARMEMBEREE

separate from the Chow Sang Sang network. ERERE WEBHBEIRAEERSE
FDRIEE o

Securities and Futures Broking — the Discontinued Operation

EERPERL - RIEKEEHR

The Securities and Futures Broking business has since early May 2021 BRTEERGEPREANEEN  FBFK
ceased operation, save the processing assets yet-to-be reclaimed by HEKLERB221FESAVE RIS

customers. Complete shutdown will occur when all such assets are B ErNBRERELEEIRBERRE
returned or placed into court custody. % EREEIEEE-

Since the commencement of legal actions against the customers B2021F2 AEAERS ERRDEES
who defaulted on the repayment of margin loans, the payment of HREEFRER AeXEAERE
commission fees and margin facility interests, and their respective FEMEPREEE B ZERARBEE
guarantors in the Court of First Instance of the High Court of Hong TEIATR » REE R — AP EUFH
Kong in February 2021, the Group has obtained judgments in certain R BATEESITAEUSHIZIR o

actions and is now in the process of enforcing the judgments obtained.

Provisions for impairment losses on margin loans totalling HK$93 million BZE2021F %2020 12 A31 BIEFER
and HK$44 million were made for the years ended 31 December 2021 HREFGFRAEBERESRIE£3E
and 2020 respectively. As at 31 December 2021, total loans due from BAETRAABEET - R2021F12 A 31
the customers in default, net of total credit loss allowance, amounted to H:BHEFPMNEREE(NRiEZESER
HK$155 million. BRB)RISSABET
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Investments

Investment Properties

The Group holds various properties with a total carrying value of
HK$473 million for rental purpose as at 31 December 2021. Rental
income for 2021 from investment properties amounted to HK$12
million.

Shares in Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited ("HKEC")

The Group's investment in 3,326,800 shares or 0.26% of HKEC is of
strategic nature and is the remaining part of the distribution received
from the reorganisation of the then exchanges in the year 2000. Such
investment was carried at fair value of HK$1,515 million, representing
8.4% of the Group's total assets as at 31 December 2021. During the
year, the Group received dividends in the amount of HK$30 million and
recorded a gain of HK$101 million recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of fair value change of the Group’s financial assets
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Capital Expenditure

The Group incurred capital expenditure of HK$418 million of which
HK$292 million was spent on new openings and refitting of stores.

Finance

Financial Position and Liquidity

The Group generates strong recurring cashflow from its retailing
business and continues to enjoy a solid cash position. As at 31
December 2021, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of HK$672
million (2020: HK$1,654 million). The decrease in cash position was
primarily due to the need to build up additional inventory in preparation
for the earlier Chinese New Year seasonal sales in 2022. Cash is mostly
held in Renminbi or Hong Kong dollar and deposited in leading banks
with maturity dates falling within one year.

The Group was well supported by over HK$6,418 million in banking
facilities including bank borrowings and bullion loans, out of which
HK$848 million are committed facilities. As at 31 December 2021, the
total unutilised banking facilities amounted to HK$3,038 million (2020:
HK$4,083 million).

As at 31 December 2021, total bank borrowings and bullion loans
amounted to HK$1,186 million and HK$2,030 million respectively, most
of which were unsecured in accordance with the Group’s policy. The
weighted average tenure of bank borrowings is around three years. The
gearing ratio was 25.2%, based on total bank borrowings and bullion
loans of HK$3,216 million as a percentage of equity attributable to
owners of the Company of HK$12,753 million. The current ratio of the
Group was 3.3.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Finance (continued)

Financial Position and Liquidity (continued)

The Group manages risk of credit cost and availability by several
means: cultivating relationship with a large number of lending banks;
diversifying the funding sources by engaging a number of local and
overseas banks; putting some loans on a term basis; and fixing interest
costs on loans as appropriate. The Group had 23% of its bank loans
at fixed rates as at 31 December 2021, decreased from 27% as at 31
December 2020.

As at 31 December 2021, outstanding derivatives on the books were
mainly bullion contracts for hedging the bullion price exposure.
Management monitors the hedging policy closely and the hedging level
of the Group is approximately 40% of the total gold inventories.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Group’s assets and liabilities, revenue and expenses are mostly
denominated in Hong Kong dollar, Renminbi and US dollar. As such, the
risk is easily manageable and slight. Simultaneously, the Group maintains
an appropriate level of foreign currency borrowings for natural hedge
and cross currency swaps, to mitigate foreign exchange exposure. As at
31 December 2021, the borrowing denominated in New Taiwan dollar
amounted to NT$135 million.

Charge on Assets, Lease Liabilities and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2021, there was no asset (2020: listed equity
investments of HK$850 million) pledged to secure banking facilities
granted to certain subsidiaries of the Company.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had lease liabilities of HK$907
million (2020: HK$1,001 million) and had no material contingent
liabilities.

Human Resources

The Group maintains its long-established performance-based
remuneration policies with a discretionary annual performance bonus.
Training has been provided to new and existing staff at a pace
commensurate with the expansion of the networks in all territories.

On 11 June 2020, the shareholders of the Company approved and
adopted a new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) and
terminated the share option scheme adopted on 7 December 2010. The
New Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards to eligible participants
for their contribution to the Group and enabling the Group to attract
and retain valuable employees. Details of the New Scheme are set out in
note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Human Resources (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the total number of employees of the Group
was 10,994, of whom 9,382 in Mainland China, 1,401 in Hong Kong
and Macau, and 211 in Taiwan. During the year ended 31 December
2021, total staff costs amounted to HK$1,710 million.

Outlook

Hopes were high as we moved into 2022: our operation in Mainland
China was delivering solid recovery.

Yet, around the time of the lunar new year holidays the fifth wave of
the pandemic started to ravage Hong Kong and the sales upswing seen
around the end of last year was wiped out. Stringent anti-pandemic
measures have ground retailing businesses almost to a halt. We have
had to suspend and restart operation of many of our stores and to
curtail the trading hours of all of them. Sales in Hong Kong and Macau
for the months of January and February were down 14%, for the first
half of March down approximately 60%, as compared to the same
periods of 2021. In Mainland China, where January and February sales
were up 12% year-on-year, in the first half of March sales turned into a
decrease of approximately 30%.

Geopolitical tension has been ratcheting up and indeed made a
quantum jump as the conflict in Eastern Europe intensified. Inevitably
there will be ramifications on the price of gold, as well as international
supply chains.

The Group's policy on managing store operations is to put the health
of our customers and employees first and foremost. To mitigate the
impact of lost trading hours and the lack of customer traffic, we have
been negotiating assiduously with Hong Kong landlords for rental relief.
We have made suitable arrangements to ensure that our supply-chain
operation, as well as our funding, are adequate to maintain our business
continuity.

In the past two years, we have systematically launched different store
brands and product types to cater to different customer segments, and
at the same time, we have been enhancing related services and store
ambiance for better customer experience. We are expanding our store
network, selectively and cautiously. In Mainland China, more and more
of our stores are being decked out with contemporary interpretations
of traditional Chinese motifs. We have introduced many products with
heritage and cultural themes. In the same vein, we have joined hands
with Victoria and Albert Museum in London to create the world’s first
V&A Chow Sang Sang jewellery concept stores: one in Hong Kong and
one in Macau. We expect the number of net store additions for the
Group will be around 100 in 2022.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
BEEESEERARRDA

21

EEENMRDN

ANER (&)

R2021F12 8318 » REEHAE10,994
g8 HP9382& BB AMEMES
T 1,401 BABBMRMMEET - UKk
QNZAZEMRET - HE2021F12A8

NALEE  LETIRYAI7TI0EERS
fEO
RE

BE2022F #MIFTEE - ARMAET
BIRENEXBLEERSER -

BE BREHFRPIE  FARERGEH
REBERS KEEZFFREHBRMNBEE L
FEE - BROBEERETEELTH
ABE - BPFZDETBSTEHELE -
META R EERRMELREE - #2021
FREMAL - BEFRM 1 A2 ANEE
TFHT14%  M3AB LA TETH60% -
EREAE - 1B ANBERLER
12% B3 A EAMEEAI TR T430% o

WHEBURRERRE —ENE - BEEREH
HREBHR - REE—FR(L EA#E
ST EREERLEREERE -

AEELEEHNIHREBETREIN
BEREEL - AT HEEEZXERM
R ARSRNTE  RPI—BEZHEE
ENEIBBEREEE - RMCHELR
P NEREAFANHEREFERES RN
X HPRELEERS -

EBEME  BMERLEL T TR
ERENERER  NWIATREFPEMY
&k BE - JATIRET A58 A8 B8 AR AN
DIERE  UIRARTFER - HMUEE
RERERMMIARDERG - EFEK
B BMIERBZ D ENERRE AR
RFZEEBTHAEHEIE - RPELT
HEEBXMANER UL TENER ° A
5 BMEARBRES R D EMBES
B4 (Victoria and Albert Museum )
TERRE VAR S EHRERSIE
DANEEARRBRPIZFHARIRIE o T
B ASE20202F FEMPIELREN B
100X °

ANNUAL REPORT 2021
2021 4 3R



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Outlook (continued)

We believe the economy in China is getting back on track for growth,
despite the flaring up of covid-19, and with our omni-channel retail
strategy we stand ready to take part in the rebound. In Hong Kong
and Macau, however, substantive recovery will have to wait till the
borders are reopened. In the meantime, we are making progress with
the expansion of our Hong Kong-based e-commerce platform, reaching
out to customers in countries such as the USA, Canada, Australia and
Malaysia.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries are active in the field of the manufacture and retail of
jewellery, distribution of watches, the wholesale of precious metals
and e-commerce platform operation. The securities and futures broking
business has since early May 2021 ceased operation. Details of the
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 46 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2021 and the
Group's financial position as at that date are set out in the consolidated
financial statements on pages 75 to 196.

An interim dividend of HK14.0 cents per ordinary share was paid on
23 September 2021. The Directors recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK28.0 cents per ordinary share in respect of the year to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 7 June 2022.

Business Review

A fair review and the outlook of the Group’s business are provided
in the Chairman’s Message on pages 3 and 4 and the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 10 to 22 of this annual report. Details
of the significant event of the Group after reporting period are set out
in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements. Certain financial key
performance indicators are provided in the Financial Highlights on page 2.

An account of the Group’s key relationships with its employees,
customers and suppliers as well as the principal risks and uncertainties
of the Group are shown in the Corporate Governance Report on pages
53 to 65.

In addition, discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance, and compliance with relevant laws and regulations are
included in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages
33 to 52.

The above review constitutes part of this report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Five-year Financial Summary

A summary of the published results, assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted
from the audited consolidated financial statements and reclassified as
appropriate, is set out below. This summary does not form part of the
audited consolidated financial statements.

LERBREE

TXHEIAEERERATBRFRLER
Xis - AE  BELFERER B2
(RSB EERGAM BRI REES
REHNE) &tﬁﬁleﬂﬁﬁk%“ﬁﬁ?é
Lipi e A= V)

Year ended 31 December
HZN12 A3 BLEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thxn T T T T
(Restated)* (Restated)* (Restated)* (Restated)*
(&5)* (E5)* (E5)* (&5)*
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEReER
Turnover BEH
Retail TE 19,921,938 13,097,720 16,258,416 17,130,414 14,516,326
Other businesses EEK 2,065,621 1,899,821 1,453,697 1,641,415 2,082,702
21,987,559 14,997,541 17,712,113 18,771,829 16,599,028
Operating profit Syl 1,005,711 943,749 1,312,255 1,276,594 1,089,032
Share of profits of EEBERT
associates, net wh - FE - - - 245 4,550
Profit before tax G E0bagl 1,005,711 943,749 1,312,255 1,276,839 1,093,582
Income tax FgR (265,331) (304,611) (312,564) (304,907) (253,716)
Profit for the year SELEEKL
from continuing ERREH
operations 740,380 639,138 999,691 971,932 839,866
DISCONTINUED OPERATION M&**%i%
Profit/(loss) for the year from BIHEREBZER
discontinued operation /MJ/ (B18) (100,611) (94,674) (356,158) 40,325 36,552
Profit for the year FRER 639,769 544,464 643,533 1,012,257 876,418
Profit/(loss) for the year EEERER/ (B8)
attributable to:
Owners of the Company RARIER A 643,257 544,464 643,533 1,012,257 876,418
Non-controlling interests FrRER (3,488) - - - -
639,769 544,464 643,533 1,012,257 876,418
* The comparative amounts in the published results have been restated as if * EREREAZHEHFTEES  SXF

the operation discontinued during the current year had been discontinued
at the beginning of the prior years.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Five-year Financial Summary (continued)

IEMBRE(E)

As at 31 December

R12A318

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT FET TET AT
Total assets BEE 18,088,758 16,826,467 16,236,438 13,838,036 13,670,115
Total liabilities BaRE (5345297)  (4807,353)  (5,604,053)  (3,419,099)  (3,545,040)
Non-controlling interests Fludiiy ey 9,659 - - - -
12,753,120 12,019,114 10,632,385 10,418,937 10,125,075

Charitable Contributions #ZEBX
During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling FAREE EERHE3,393,000/87T

HK$3,393,000.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Properties

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in notes
15 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively. Further
details of the Group’s properties are set out on pages 197 to 200 of this
annual report.

Share Capital
There were no movements in the Company's share capital during the
year.

Equity-Linked Agreements

Save for the share option scheme as set out below, no equity-linked
agreement was entered into by the Company during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.

Share Option Scheme

A summary of the Company’s share option scheme adopted on 11 June
2020 ("Share Option Scheme”) is set out in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements. No share option was granted under the Share
Option Scheme since its adoption.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Emolument Policy

The long-established performance-based emolument policy for
the employees of the Group operates on the basis of rewarding
performance, with appropriate consideration on experience and

prevailing industry practices.

The Company determines the emoluments of the Directors on the
basis of the comparable companies, time commitment, responsibilities,
employment conditions, the Board’s corporate goals and objectives,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and the five highest paid
employees of the Group are set out in notes 8 and 10 respectively to

the consolidated financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed Securities of the Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
which sets out the guideline on declaring and recommending the

payment of dividends.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall take into account,

inter alia, the following factors:

The Company intends to distribute between 30% to 40% of the
Group's annual consolidated net profits as dividends to its shareholders.
The Board will review the Dividend Policy as appropriate from time to

time.

financial results;

cash flow situation;

business conditions and strategies;

future operations and earnings;

capital requirements and expenditure plans;
interests of shareholders;

any restrictions on payment of dividends; and
any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, amounted to HK$1,671,662,000 of
which HK$189,682,000 has been proposed as final dividend for the
year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for less than 30% of the total sales for the year. Purchases
from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 76% of the total
purchases for the year and purchases from the largest supplier included
therein amounted to 44%.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their close associates
or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group's five largest suppliers.

Directors

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing

Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing

Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing

Ms. Genevieve CHOW Karwing
(appointed on 1 November 2021)

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun

Mr. LEE Ka Lun

Dr. LO King Man

Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung

Each of Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing, Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel
and Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung shall retire by rotation as Directors at
the 2022 annual general meeting (the “2022 AGM") pursuant to bye-
law 99(B) of the Company’'s bye-laws. Ms. Genevieve CHOW Karwing
who has been appointed by the Board shall hold office until the 2022
AGM pursuant to bye-law 91 of the Company's bye-laws. All retiring
Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the 2022
AGM.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the 2022 AGM has
a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

Directors’ and Senior Management'’s Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management up to the
date of this report are set out on pages 5 to 9 of this annual report.

Directors’ Material Interests in Transactions, Arrangements or
Contracts

Save as detailed in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements, no
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director or his connected entity had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of
the year.

Management Contracts

Save for employment contracts, no other contracts relating to the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into or in existence during
the year.

Permitted Indemnity

Pursuant to the Company's bye-laws and subject to the provisions of the
statutes, every Director or other officer of the Company shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities which he may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the
duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has
arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage
for the Directors and officers of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2021 which is still in force.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Directors’ Interests in Shares

As at 31 December 2021, the interests of the Directors in the issued
share capital of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
"SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

EERRM 2ER

M2021F 128318 SEERAQAH
HigHzB(TEA(BHFRBER)E
XVEB)EBHTRAS  (BHLBEK
)8 352 AR RIA FIRfF 2 B RETEE
B ARELEMBETAEZETESRRS
ST R ([REFAI ) BBRARE R
BAMAR AR AR ([BRAT]) AR
RS

Number of shares held

BREA

Approximate
Personal Family Corporate Trustee percentage of
interest interest interest interest Total  shareholding
RRERY
Name of Directors BEMY BAER FEER AAER  ERAER ait Btk
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing Rl %54 - - - 136,271,595" 136,271,595 20.12
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing BAHKEE 960,000 70,398”  74,995,996” - 76,026,394 11.22
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing ~ BARK %4 28,681,104 52,800%  14,244316”  32,616,000” 75,594,220 11.16
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun RRBEE 1,320,000 - - - 1,320,000 0.19

Note: Bt -

W@ Pplease refer to the notes in the section headed “Substantial Shareholders’

and Other Persons’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares”.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors had registered an interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective spouse or minor children, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS BEEERE

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests in Shares FTERRREMAITRBROREBERAG Z
and Underlying Shares RS

As at 31 December 2021, the interests of those persons in the issued MR2021F 128310 BIKEARDBE
share capital of the Company as recorded in the register of interests EBIE 3361 - ARABTRE L RS
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO MacsENEERRBCBITRAAL 24

were as follows: WIR
Approximate
Number of percentage of

Name Capacity shares held shareholding

Z8 &% ER¥E Btk

Everwin Company Limited Beneficial Owner 120,000,000" 17.71

BEERBA
Speed Star Holdings Limited Beneficial Owner and Interest of
Controlled Corporation 74,995,996 11.07
BERRB ARREHRR 2 R
Schroders plc Investment Manager 54,646,447 8.07
REEEA

Happy Family Limited Beneficial Owner 53,909,932 7.96

REZERR LA BB A

Notes: Bt -

(1) 136,271,595 shares in the Company were held by a discretionary trust of () —BE2EELHAARF 136,271,595 K
which Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing was the beneficiary. The trustee Bin - KK EERZETZZEA M
of the trust was Cititrust Private Trust (Cayman) Limited, which held the Cititrust Private Trust (Cayman) Limited
interests in the Company through the following companies: BEZETRZETA  EEBTIARES

KRB
Name of companies No. of shares held
N5 FFEREH
Everwin Company Limited 120,000,000
Golden Court Limited 16,271,595
Accordingly, Cititrust Private Trust (Cayman) Limited was deemed to have It + Cititrust Private Trust (Cayman)
interests in the 136,271,595 shares. Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing was Limited % %% A& # 5 136,271,5950% f%
deemed to have interests in the 136,271,595 shares in the Company. Himo BXKKEEREREELRA

136,271,595 RZ AR5 125
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests in Shares

and Underlying Shares (continued)

Notes: (continued)

)

70,398 shares and 52,800 shares in the Company were held by the
respective spouse of Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing and Mr. Winston CHOW
Wun Sing.

60,751,680 shares in the Company were held by Speed Star Holdings
Limited, a company beneficially owned by Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing
and his spouse.

14,244,316 shares in the Company were held by Eimoling Company
Limited, in which Speed Star Holdings Limited and Mr. Winston CHOW
Wun Sing owned 44.5% of the equity interest respectively.

32,616,000 shares in the Company were held by CWS Holdings Limited,
a company beneficially owned by a discretionary trust of which
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing was the founder and one of the
beneficiaries. The trustee of the trust was UBS TC (Jersey) Ltd. and,
accordingly, it was deemed to have interests in the 32,616,000 shares in
the Company.

Accordingly, Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing and his spouse were deemed
to have interests in the 75,066,394 shares and 75,955,996 shares in the
Company respectively. Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing and his spouse were
deemed to have interests in the 46,913,116 shares and 75,541,420 shares
in the Company respectively.

Schroders plc through its subsidiaries, namely Schroder Investment
Management (Hong Kong) Limited, Schroder Investment Management
Limited, Schroder Investment Management North America Limited,
Schroder Investment Management (Singapore) Limited and Schroder &
Co. Limited, held 29,101,447 shares, 4,717,000 shares, 22,000 shares,
20,424,000 shares, and 382,000 shares in the Company respectively, and
was accordingly deemed to be interested in the respective shares held by
the aforesaid companies.

53,909,932 shares in the Company were held by Happy Family Limited, in
which the late Mr. CHOW Kwen Ling had a 20% equity interest.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, no person, other than
the Directors of the Company whose interests are set out in the section
headed “Directors’ Interests in Shares” above, had registered an interest
or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that
was required to be recorded pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Connected Transactions

During the year, the Group did not have any connected transactions
which were subject to the reporting requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules throughout the year and
up to the date of this report.

Event after the Reporting Period

Save as disclosed in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements,
there is no significant event of the Group after the reporting period and
up to the date of this annual report.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2021 have been audited by Ernst & Young, who will retire, and being
eligible, offer itself for re-appointment at the 2022 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Vincent CHOW Wing Shing
Chairman

Hong Kong
22 March 2022
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group complies with the Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") Reporting Guide in Appendix 27 to the Main Board Listing Rules
published by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “HKEx
ESG Guide”). The main purpose of this report is to disclose the Group’s
current management approach, strategies and performance in social
and environmental responsibility as well as its vision for sustainable
development strategies.

This report covers our performance for the year ended 31 December
2021. Unless specified otherwise, all policies and management systems
described in this report refer to our manufacturing and retailing of
jewellery and distribution of watches in Greater China. ESG performance
indicators reported in this report cover our main operations in Hong
Kong and Mainland China unless specified otherwise. Revenue
contribution and the associated ESG impacts are the primary factors
in defining the reporting boundary. The operations in Hong Kong and
Mainland China contributed to the majority of our total revenue. As
our operations have continued to expand, the number of retail stores
included in this report has also been increased.

In preparing this report, the Group has fully taken into account of the
four Reporting Principles in the HKEx ESG Guide, namely materiality,
quantitative, consistency and balance. This report prioritises and details
the issues deemed important from the perspectives of our stakeholders
and business. In addition to policy and programme descriptions,
performance data of the current and previous years and corresponding
narratives are provided for more comprehensive account of our ESG
management. We adopt the same methodologies to derive the disclosed
data unless otherwise specified.

The Board oversees the Group's ESG strategy, material ESG risks
and opportunities, establishment of environmental targets and the
associated reporting disclosures, while our management is responsible
for implementing ESG management and objectives.

SO
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group has established an ESG Working Group to raise the ESG
awareness of our employees and drive group-wide contribution to
environmental protection. Reporting to the Board, the ESG Working
Group is responsible for reviewing ESG trends, targets and related
risks and opportunities, while assessing the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Group's ESG-related implementations and updating ESG
policies when necessary. In 2021, the Group has also established an
Environmental Sustainability Department to support the formulation
and implementation of the Group’s carbon neutral and sustainable
environmental development strategy. The Environmental Sustainability
Department also coordinates and cooperates with external agencies on
carbon neutrality related projects.

AEERITRE g kERIEN
He RS EEHRERE HEEAR
m%ammﬁ% Iﬁ@%ﬂglﬂ%

REMER - BB L2 kER/IENE
REEERE  AERRRE  HE2RkE
ABYE - BEREBEERMES - [T
HAEERRE e REREBERED
EoMMARE TENBEEIIRE -
HEeREBBUR - R20214F  AEBE K
UARBERBEEDS  UXBAEERT
MR HEREERRENSNTRER -
ARERSERD TP MEHEER &
INERHE IS HE T IR A R A 1E o

Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality Analysis

BOENSHEREEMDSN

In order to understand our stakeholders’ perspectives and expectations
on the Group’s ESG issues, the Group has maintained close
communication with internal and external stakeholders comprising
employees, customers, shareholders and investors, suppliers,
community and charitable organisations. There are various channels of
communication with these stakeholders including our company website,
meetings, online communications, questionnaires, interviews, and on-
site research and investigation. The Group reviews the feedback from
stakeholders periodically to evaluate the materiality of the ESG topics in
an ongoing manner.

During the year, the Group has conducted an independent stakeholder
engagement exercise with our key stakeholders to identify material
issues within different subject areas. The issues deemed material were
reviewed and endorsed by the Board and management for their relative
materiality and priorities.

The Group performs materiality analysis in a 3-step approach.

Identification 5!

Engagement S8

Reference to actual business
development of the Group,

Through stakeholder
interviews and online

relevant laws and regula- survey to collect internal
tions, and the ESG reports and external stakeholders’
among the industry to opinions and expectations
identify material ESG on the Group's ESG.
matters and key
stakeholder groups. BRROED AR LAS
g BRI RF 1) & AR ER
DEREENEBREBER HRE - e RERNERR
MR ER I TERNRET - HE o

HERERERS  ABAIEE
BE @ REARTEH UK

FERHEET - / /

RTBFENEHRERRE HLERER
FZENBERPE  AEEHEAE R
HEHOERFTDER HHEREER
T BYX BRRRREE #iEQH HRE
NEEEELE - ﬁ1LﬂyE£ﬁﬁLmﬁ
153\%;%;; \l%/&ﬂﬁ Eluia% ZHJ:
B BFRARE R $%.E
%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%&%u%%ﬁﬁ%%\ﬁ
eRERRENER -

FRAEEEIBRNELTTEILN
REEY BEARTRNBEHBNRA
BERNZE HEZSREEERLHE
REBEZENERUERERF -

REBRAB_ESRETERMEN -

Assessment {4

Based on the results to
assess the ESG matters that
are important to the
stakeholders and the

} Group'’s business.

BB A R ES D & RS
@%ﬁ%ﬂﬁigﬁﬁ’\ﬁ%iﬁ 4t
KERSIE -

/
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT BE HERER®ME

Based on the assessed results, we have prepared the following

materiality assessment matrix:

HEGENEEY

Importance to Stakeholder

5.2

4.7

4.2

3.7

3.2

Service and product quality

R RERER

Occupational safety and health
BEZ2RERE

Employee development and training
& & %R R
Anti-corruption

k&S

Customer privacy protection
EPILBRE

Intellectual property rights

N EE

Energy management

BERER

Employee remuneration
EEME

Diversity and equal opportunities
SRR TFERS

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

RIEFEOER - RMBRT A TESH
S

High &
Service and
product quality
R REREE

Employee development

Occupational safe
z?ndhealth 4
BiRZ 2 REE

and training
ERBE R
4 4.5 5 5.5
Importance to Business
HEBNEEM
Topics
1=

10 Supply chain management
HEsE R
Child and forced labour
" sTRepsT
Responsible marketing
12 agnge
Packaging materials consumption
13 aznunER
Non-hazardous and hazardous waste management
4 mrpazEEnER
Water management
5 kapEm
Air emissions management
16 mapmEse
Contribution to community development
7 HERRMER
Climate change management
18 gpsrEE
19 Wastewater management
FEKER
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

While we strive for overall balance in the disclosure of the Group’s ESG
initiatives and performance, emphasis will be placed on issues which are
considered more material to our business.

Operating Practices

The Group is committed to ensuring that its products are of premium
quality, obtained through verified and ethical sources and that processes
are well controlled to prevent the occurrences of corrupt practice. We
were not aware of any incidents of non-compliance with laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group, concerning
health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of redress during the year.

Product Responsibility and Service Quality

The Group has systems in place to ensure that all products marketed
are monitored for (a) the fineness and veracity of materials; (b) the
presence of toxic elements as prescribed by national standards; and (c)
conformance with our defined levels of workmanship.

Management protocols in place define the testing methods and
sampling procedures for different products and materials. Tests using
both surface spectrometric and destructive methods are done by
the Group’s externally-accredited laboratories located in Hong Kong
and Shunde. Among them, Hong Kong Gemological Research and
Authentication Centre Company Limited, our wholly owned subsidiary,
was granted as a “Designated Local Research Institution” by the Hong
Kong Innovation and Technology Commission to conduct qualified R&D
activities. We are the first jewellery company receiving this designation.
Besides, workmanship inspection is conducted at several stages on
all products along the supply chain. All our products are required to
undergo quality assessment according to China national standards such
as GB/T 16554 at National Gemstone Testing Center for high quality
assurance. With the stringent quality assurance process, there were
no records of products sold or shipped subject to recall for safety and
health reasons during the year (2020: Nil).

In case of defective or unqualified products identified, the Group will
evaluate the associated risks and scope of the issue and initiate the
recall procedures as appropriate. When potential safety and health risks
are observed, the Group would promptly inform the relevant parties.
After the affected products are identified, we will formulate an action
plan and a timeframe for recalling the distributed products. We further
demand a final incident report that analyses the reasons for recall with
necessary corrective measures to prevent future recurrence.

Management has established policies to ensure that the advertising and
labelling of our products are in line with applicable laws and regulations.
Moreover, in conformance with the Group’s Code of Conduct,
management has systems in place to ensure that intellectual property
rights, both our own and of other parties, are observed and respected in
our business dealings. The Group protects its own intellectual property
rights by undertaking relevant registration in Hong Kong and overseas
for its own created brands and designs.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT RIE HERERKRSE

Operating Practices (continued) EETRI(E)

Product Responsibility and Service Quality (continued) EREFRREEZ(E)

The Group attaches importance to the interests of our customers in the REBHEEAELIZEXHNEETERBER
context of applicable legal provisions. Should there be any enquiries M  AEEREEEARARERBEHN
or complaints, the Group has a dedicated team of customer relations l[ﬁéﬁ BHEARE EEMERIRF o B

personnel for quick response. Customers can reach the team via various FBTREEARMABEKEL - &

channels, including: ?‘E

e service hotlines; o RESER:

e LIVE CHAT; and o EHRE: R

e social media platforms including Facebook, Weibo, WeChat and o HREETFA(EFEFacebook *
Instagram. 18 8{Z & Instagram) °

In addition, all store staff are trained to handle queries on products, lttﬁ\\ A EHEENESEEREE

maintenance and repair. All customer correspondence through the CRENEBRAENE) - TERP®

proper channels are logged and documented. In 2021, 75 product- and ulé{ﬂ%%_ﬂm ERBEIE MR -

service-related complaints were received as compared to 86 in 2020. 2021 BB REERMREAH

HI3REF © 2020 FRIF 86 R °

/ Recognitions on Quality Services - awarded by
Hong Kong Retail Management Association
BREERENKRE - HEEZTEEEHERE r
T
2021 Excellent Service Retailer of the Year /f The Best Training Award (Silver Award)
2021 EHRBTER | RERIIE (RE)

/
T

2021 Quality Service Retailer of the Year — Category / The Best Team Award (Silver Award)
Awards in Watch and Jewellery f

2021 SEEERETERMERE - BHRERHEEAR | RESERMAS (R%) /
/

Customer Data Protection IRIEE P EH

The Group maintains a customer database. We have policies and AEEEHEF—(ABZERE - HMHET T
procedures that ensure compliance with the relevant local laws and BRMEF  BRETHRERFFPEAER
regulations and General Data Protection Regulation of the European FE - FH FEIRENER R
Union, which govern the collection, use, retention and protection of the ERERAE  ARBBE(—RERRER
customers’ personal data. We collect and maintain only the minimum A ZMERERREBELHEFEAE
personal data of our customers in our database. The database is well %#Ef\ﬁﬂ}ﬁm BRI EERE &Hzmj:i’j
protected both on policy and technological terms. Customer data are BERHIRE - BEPFERNBEREBRTZH
released strictly on a need-to-know basis and will not be released to BACHENRE KEEERE T2
external parties or even to units within the Group that are not the FINAREEAEBRNTIERERRES
original data collectors without prior consent. Relevant details of our HEBFIHRE - HMH D RBUE A LRER

Privacy Policy are available on our company website. KEMEAFE -
Supply Chain Management HERETE

The Group has comprehensive procurement and supply chain AEEREUNEAREMERZEZEZA
management policies which are benchmarked against the best industry FEMMEEEERR THEHRER
practice principles. During the supplier selection process, background B RfiggETESAE - 1t BT
checks are conducted. Also, we not only consider the infrastructure, BEZEEEAEMHERNERSRE  £E&ESD
production capacity and market reputation of the potential suppliers, YOIk jTA%JﬂMFﬁEL{fé,z@
but also their commitment in compliance with legal, ethical and social EEAKHEHENES AEEBLEE
aspects. The Group gives preference to suppliers currently working HEHNREEARUFELZROHEES
towards responsible and sustainable operation. B
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Operating Practices (continued)

Supply Chain Management (continued)

Diamond suppliers are required to provide documented proof of the
ethical provenance of their raw materials. All materials and finished
goods are monitored as stated under the paragraph “Product
Responsibility and Service Quality” and only those that passed the
tests are accepted. Through prioritising suppliers with demonstrated
management and high performance on ESG aspects, relevant social
and environmental risks arisen from the supply chain are mitigated
and managed. All new suppliers are required to complete a checklist
with ESG associated elements for understanding their environmental
and social risks performance and they will be randomly evaluated on
an annual basis. We strive to work out a solution with suppliers once
substandard goods and materials are identified. These suppliers are
subject to a system of warnings, temporary or even permanent blocking
of orders if no improvements have been made thereafter.

Where possible, the Group maintains relationships with multiple
suppliers in order to avoid the risks inherent in over-reliance on
suppliers. The Group also supports fair competition when selecting
potential suppliers by observing relevant laws and regulations. This
commitment is communicated with the procurement staff in the
procurement and supply chain management policies.

H
[=]

BE HERERR

ZETR(E)

HERETE(E)
ERHEERHARBUTERE R IR
ATEBRIEE - EMH R RIS RRE
mEEMRBER | -RAAGETER
UEREXBBAANER - BBEFLHK
ERRE HERELTEEERERR
BERBAMER  sRIEME R b e
#o| EMBML S IIRERAR - FIEHH
HEFYARRE—NEIRE HERE
AR ENBE T BOMORER
HERRRE  UESFHELETREN
fho —BERBRIAEBREERLMHE - B
SENARERSKERTR - HREY
BEHMNE BRUERSRIES K
BREEKAMTERTE -

ERATHERT  ARBERES EHENE
BRERHEER  UMELBEEREZR
f o REBBRMERRETHBN LR
BB AXFEDFEF o MAGEARE
MR EREEIREERRBIRE -

No. of Suppliers by Geographical Region (2021)

RBWEE D WHEBEE (20215F)

10

B\ 2

184

Anti-corruption

In accordance with relevant laws and regulations, our employees are
required to comply with the rules stipulated in our Employee Handbook
(the "Handbook"”), which provides definitions of permissible and
impermissible giving and receiving of advantages and gifts. Employees
are required to report receipts and subsequent disposal of gifts. Our
employees are also required to follow the Group's Code of Conduct,
which defines appropriate methods in handling conflict of interests.
In addition, the Group has implemented the Prevention of Money
Laundering Policy, which spells out the principles, work and reporting
mechanism in relation to criminal activities.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT RIE HERERKRSE

Operating Practices (continued) SETHI(E)

Anti-corruption (continued) RES(E)

The management has arranged online trainings for employees on their EEERNE I REBELESH—B
expected conduct upon the identification of potential incidents of BHEES SRS HRERITANSG
corruption or bribery within the workplace. Relevant anti-corruption EEI e RPIRERENRESE - I
trainings are provided and directors and all staff are informed THRESEMMEEIRREHERESE
periodically of the latest requirement regarding anti-corruption practices. BRRHEX- $ETJ€9§$&B(” MEIZ
Under the whistleblowing policy, employees are protected if they submit ZEBUSEE  HEETIRE - FR
signed reports on suspicious activities. During the year, there were REBVEZEEHAES  BE R
no reported cases of corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud and money BEFMAERERNFAER(2020F : F) -
laundering (2020: Nil).

Employment and Labour Practices BEREIER

Training and development programmes, employee welfare and LI NEEAE - EERAKREVERRE
relationship building initiatives have always been important to our EREEHEAEEEBRLAEE - NEETRE
business. The Group is proactive in adopting best practices for human BEAANBERERNZEEE - DAER
resource management to cope with the ever-changing business mEBENRERSE -

environment.

c//, . J—s&‘
Recognitions on Employment Best Practices ﬁ

BRERSEERNEY pY¢
Best Practice of HR Digital Innovation in Greater / 2021 Top Human Resources Management Award
China 2021 awarded by HRoot / awarded by 51job
J& HRoot % 2021 K ERANEREAF(L | ERREERE [2021 ANBEREBALEZ]
SRR / /
/ S
Employment EE

The Group observes relevant employment laws and regulations. Being REBEBETHBERBEIEZEERA - EAT
an equal opportunities employer, the Group and its management ZHeRT ASEMEEEEIEYH
embrace diversity in its workforce and ensure that the employees are hEnlt TRRETEREMEA A
not discriminated against due to their ethnicity, age, gender, marital TeRAER  Fi R BRERAKR

status, physical or mental health status, family status, sexual orientation, FREIRHREMAR  REMI - MR
religion or belief in respect of recruitment and promotion. )~ R P E AR -

Complying with relevant laws and regulations, child and forced labour REBFMEXERBLETHBEEEZLA
are strictly prohibited in all business operations of the Group. In the BB ZEAETIRBHS T - EHRER
recruitment process, the Human Resources Department implements B AHWBRAEHRBESIEF @B
appropriate procedures to ensure that all job applicants reach the ERERERERZANELSMHDEHRNU
legal working age through checking their valid identification at the ZEEFR  UWBRABRBEEIEE
recruitment stage to verify their age. Employment contracts are entered TEFER - EBEAO-RBREFTEEREER
on the principle of equality and voluntarism such as rights to terminate I BERIEEENEFARERET
employment and offer of sufficient protection in relation to minimum B IEREARFRAAREBREDREN
wages, working hours and annual leave. Our suppliers have to confirm R BMHEEERZERERENY R
that their employment does not involve child and forced labour. During EIRBHET - FR - WEBERHEET
the year, there was no identified case regarding child and forced labour. Koghlss THEBMRY -

On the other hand, the Group requires employees to comply with its P—AHE AEBERETETHMIILH
code of conduct, which stipulates the Group’s value and expectations IRFAl ZTRIDBEAEEHE THER
on employees to uphold high standard of ethics and integrity. The SEERACEENEEENEE - HE
document/handbook containing the code of conduct is available on the ZaASTRZ X/ FRERANER R
Group's intranet. BER -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Employment and Labour Practices (continued)

Employment (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has employed a total of 10,994
employees, of which 10,685 employees work in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. The relevant total number of employees by geographical
region, employment category, gender and age group are as follows:

BE HERERKRE
ERRERSZIER(E)
e’ (&)

R2021FE1N2A3MH KEBHERT
10,994% BT HF 10,6852 ETHEES
RAABEAETE- ZibE - BEER - 5
RFERERIEIDMIEREESREWT -

Breakdown of the employee statistics (2021)
BI&s2(20215)

Total Workforce by Geographical Region
‘= & 7 e S 482

1,303

( Hong Kong
Bk

@ Mainland China
EEPN

9,382

Total Workforce by Gender
BILFIE| 7 1 1E 8 482

2,060

(7 Male
5

@ Female
ko

8,625

Employee Turnover Rate
by Gender

EIERE) 7 a0E B i X F

Turnover rate (%) Turnover rate (%)

TRE (%) MRE (%)
40 80
70 64.4
38 2re 60
50
36 40
34.7 30
34 20
10
32 0
Male Female <30
s 8
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Employee Turnover Rate
by Age Group
REFRAFIE 7 ES RAE

Total Workforce by Employment Category

KEFIES &7 i) 1ER B &
589

3,016

@ General Staff
—fRET

(7 Middle Management
HEERAER

AV Upper Management
BEEEAE
7,080

Total Workforce by Age Group
HFHAEFIE 7 1918 B B2

335
2,830

M <30
» 30-50
7 >50

7,520
Employee Turnover Rate by
Geographical Region

Kl &) 77 A IE B K F

Turnover rate (%)

MAKE (%)

39.6
40
35
30
25 21
20
28.2 15
12.8 10
5
0
30-50 >50 Hong Kong Mainland
B China
B R
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Employment and Labour Practices (continued)

Employee Welfare

Beyond the requirements stipulated in the applicable laws and
regulations, the Group maintains an open and standardised framework
for employment, salary review and promotion. Apart from basic salary,
employees are rewarded with performance-based bonuses. Benefits such
as paid vacation leave and insurance are commensurate with, or better
than local practices and legal requirements. Relevant policies are fully
communicated to the employees through the Handbook.

We elevate the overall communication across various departments and
ranks within the Group through a communication platform “WeCom".
"WeCom” allows the employees to receive updates on corporate and
training information, as well as personal exchanges more efficiently and
conveniently.

Management level of the Group regularly reviews employees’ goal
alignment, job performance and working conditions to ensure that the
employees’ personal development and job performance improvement
are in alignment with business priorities. Grievance procedures are in
place for the protection of employees. Personal details of employees are
strictly protected.

Work Safety and Health

The Group adheres to the principle of “safety and prevention first”
to create an accident-free working environment for the employees.
As such, the Group has various committees established to ensure that
the employees have a safe and healthy working environment and to
further strengthen the implementation of relevant initiatives at divisional
level. Safety risks in various facilities have been identified, assessed and
managed with corresponding preventive measures. Monthly committee
meetings are held to closely monitor our occupational health and safety
performance as well as conducting regular safety inspections. Safety-
and health-related awareness building trainings are conducted for the
benefit of all staff.

We complied with all the relevant laws and regulations related to
providing safe environment at all locations of operations and protecting
employees from potential occupational hazards. We had zero work-
related fatality in the last three years and 1,362.5 lost days due to work-
related injury in 2021 (2020: 544). Follow-up work had been carried out
immediately to reduce the likelihood of similar events in the future.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Employment and Labour Practices (continued)

Work Safety and Health (continued)

In response to the ongoing outbreak of covid-19, we have continued to
implement flexible working hours and working from home arrangements
as well as a number of precautionary and safety measures to protect our
employees, including:

e setting up temperature checkpoints at store and office entrances;

o placing of disinfected carpets at office entrances;
o distributing alcohol wipes for sanitising office or store supplies;

o distributing surgical masks and gloves;

o staggering lunch hour to reduce physical contact; and

o enhancing usage of video conferencing system to minimise
face-to-face meetings.

Development and Training

To cope with the development of the Group’s omni-channel and multi-
brand strategy, the Group and its management oversee the design and
execution of various onboarding and on-the-job training programmes
for new and current employees, which cover topics such as product
knowledge, customer service, consultative selling skill, store marketing
and team management, property security and risk management, and
occupational safety. All these programmes are designed to support and
upskill all employees of different ranks and responsibilities. In order
to promote continuing education of employees, the Group has set up
its own online training platform, “Channel T", to provide interactive
communication between trainers and employees on all aspects related
to our business.

To nurture high potential talents for the Group, a Management Trainee
Programme has been rolled out in Mainland China since 2020. To align
with the Group’s omni-channel retailing strategy, we provided trainees
with well-rounded development experience and exposure through
orientation programme, store attachments and back-office project
management and execution.

In addition to utilising internal training resources, the Group subsidises
employees who require professional qualifications or advanced studies
for specific roles and caters to their specific training needs by third-party
professional training. The Group and its management are dedicated to
the continuous development of our employees’ capabilities and we value
the personal and professional growth of our employees. By fostering a
culture of continuous learning, we seek to cultivate and retain our best
talents and maintain our competitive positioning in the market.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Employment and Labour Practices (continued)

Development and Training (continued)

Due to the impact of covid-19 and the social distancing measures, a
number of face-to-face trainings have been converted to trainings via
video conferencing platforms such as Zoom, WeCom and Channel T.
In 2021, the percentages of employees trained and average training
hours completed per employee by category are as follows:

Percentage of Employees Trained by Gender
IR 5 8= ES B 5L

BREEIESR(E)

FRERIZ(E)
X2019TF MR E ML R BB AR - %
ERHENEIIEE AFEBZoom %
4z M Channel TERGEH LT -
2021 BERESHNYIIREBR DL
BREE NN FERENT

Percentage of Employees Trained by

Employment Category

KANEIRIE R/ 7 A IER B 2t

100 80
87.1
70 65.5
80
60
60 50
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40 2 30.4
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20 12.9
\ 10 4.1
0 0 |
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! © Staff Management Management
—RET FEEEAR REEREAS

Average Training Hours Completed Per Employee
by Gender
BIEFIE| 7 - G5 1E 8 TR AN -FIah5 20

(%) (%)

Average Training Hours Completed Per
Employee by Employment Category
RIERIEFIZ| S 5 1E 8 T X la)-Fi0F 2

60 60 57.0
51.4
50 50
40 40
30 235 30 25.4
19.7
20 20
AN . .
; AN |
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E z Staff Management Management
—RET FEEREABR =EEEAS
Environment RiE

The Group has made an internal environmental protection pledge
for environmental sustainability, where the Group fulfills its role as a
responsible corporate citizen. For example, the Group bans shark fins,
humphead wrasse and other endangered species from the menu at
corporate functions. To reduce the generation of plastic and paper
waste, wherever feasible, reusable cups are provided for drinking.
Employees are encouraged to follow suit in their private life.

An Environmental Policy is established to guide us in mitigating
greenhouse gas emissions, using energy, water and other resources
more efficiently, and handling waste. The Group has also formulated
Guidelines for Handling and Discharging Effluent and Flue Gas, which
delineates the proper disposal and monitoring procedures for hazardous
waste. The commitment to the environment is further communicated to
the employees through the Group’s Code of Conduct.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Environment (continued)

To demonstrate our commitment in combating climate change and reducing
our environmental footprint, we set up the following environmental targets
for 2030. The Board will be kept informed on the Group’s progress made
against our environmental targets on a regular basis.

2030 Targets
2030 F B E

Electricity consumption and electricity-led
greenhouse gas emissions intensity*

ENRRLENETNAERBHNEE"

RiE (&)

RTRABRMERERIRE(C IR RE
RAZTTEERL - FfI/5 2030 FRE T A
TREARG EFSREHESAEEE
ERRBEAGIHANER -

Water consumption and intensity*

FKENEE"

" 7% at jewellery manufacturing plants

’ 7% at jewellery manufacturing plants
REUEIRE 2 BRI 7%
fitt

e

BT

e-receipt

Paper Waste Reduction

B R IRFEA

RBGERE ZBERD 7%

To increase the use of e-receipt for the
transaction records issued to customers with the
paper less programme to 70% by 2030
BB PR BIR 2030 F 2 AT ET IR
EBREEFHNRSEHFTFOELRESET0%

* per product manufactured, using the average consumption of 2016-2019
as baseline

Apart from the targets above, the Group has also developed a roadmap
towards decarbonisation. In medium term, we strive to enhance
our disclosure on emission reduction, including targets set on each
environmental aspect and steps taken in achieving them. In the long
run, we aim to reach decarbonisation with a systematic approach based
on our targets set and by going beyond regulatory requirements.

We operate in accordance with the local environmental laws and
regulations, and are not aware of any material environmental non-
compliance that would have a significant impact on the environment
or on our Group. We have summarised our efforts in managing climate
risks, energy and resource use, effluent, waste and emissions of air in
the paragraphs below.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Environment (continued)

Energy and Resources Management

We proactively adopt measures to minimise the environmental impacts
caused by our business operation. The management observes and seizes
opportunities for overall reduction in energy use across the Group.
We have signed up as participants to the Charter on External Lighting
organised by the Hong Kong Government, thereby committing to
switching off store lightings by 11 p.m. We may even switch off store
lightings earlier than 11 p.m. after taking into account of the operation
hours and marketing needs of different stores. To foster our employees’
awareness, tips and information on carbon reduction and energy
conservation are also disseminated on our intranet.

During the year, we continued to carry out multiple energy and water
efficiency measures including:

o installing energy efficient lightings such as LED lights in our
standardised offices, factories and stores when feasible;

J controlling billboard and exterior lighting at street level stores with
timer; and

. maintaining indoor temperature at an optimal, comfortable level
to conserve energy.

Energy efficiency, water conservation, waste reduction and other
environmental impact mitigation have all been carefully considered by
the management as part of the design specifications in the erection of
the Shunde plant. Based on the experience gained in the construction of
the Shunde plant, we would also take these factors into consideration
in future building construction. Savings on air-conditioning are achieved
by taking measures to mitigate the heating effect of the sun, to reduce
heat generation by eliminating excess lighting, and to place furnaces
and other heat and emission dissipating in isolated equipment room
wherever feasible. Solar panels are installed to generate electricity for
our staff quarters and canteen. We have adopted a centralised control
system since 2020 to intelligently manage the air conditioning system
such as chilled water flow and temperature of air handling unit.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Environment (continued)

Energy and Resources Management (continued)

At the same time, various enhancement works have also been
implemented or planned. Our Xian plant established charters to avoid
energy- and water-wasting behaviour, as well as added an inverter
and repurposed used water in our manufacturing process to save the
resources. We are gradually upgrading the air conditioners to Grade 1
at Hong Kong plant.

BE HERERKRE

B (8)

BEFREREE (&)

A RMACKETLFIAZHERET
B RMNAZBERBNE  NEER
BRERAKNTTA  WREEREF BN
—AEEBRURERKULEER o FM
EZESREBBEHTER 1 RERM S
HyZEEH o

K Intensity
(Gigajoule (GJ) or Tonnes/
HKD million Turnover)
BE
Total Consumption® (FREESM,
mERe" BEEBTERT)
Type of Resource Unit
BIRER By 2021 2020 2021 2020
Energy Electricity Megawatt Hour (MWh) 27,636 23,025 - -
BER Bh KL
Gigajoule (G)) 99,491 82,889 5.1 6.4
ThEER
Fuel’ Gigajoule (GJ) 1,481 1,180
v FTHREE
Water Freshwater Tonnes 114,665 101,945 5.8 7.8
X oK M J
* Figures are rounded to the nearest whole number * HFEEEREAEY

- Energy conversion factors used for LPG and natural gas are from the
Accounting Methods and Reporting Guidelines for Greenhouse Gas
Emissions of Enterprises in Other Industries by National Development and
Reform Commission. Energy consumption of towngas was calculated based
on the formula provided by The Hong Kong and China Gas Company
Limited (“HK & China Gas")

Fuel used in the operations includes natural gas, towngas, liquefied
petroleum gas and naphtha.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Environment (continued)

Energy and Resources Management (continued)

Amidst our business recovery in 2021, there were decreases in energy
emission intensity and freshwater consumption intensity when compared
to last year with our continuous efforts in protecting the environment.

Bi5 (&)

BEFREREE (&)
EERMOEBR20211FERER " &

REMERERZETEFENE S R

BRI FORKOR R B B A F AR TRk

We will keep track of our energy and water consumption and regularly BT - BB EE R ERRMKEYE
review the effectiveness of our current initiatives to further improve 2 UTEHRABREHEBRNE  UNE—
our performance in energy and water use as well as greenhouse gas FREHMESOER - SR KERD
emissions. BERBHRMERR
/ Intensity
(Tonnes of Carbon Dioxide
Equivalent (tCO,e)/
HKD million Turnover)
wnE
Total Emission” (M-S thEE
Scope of Greenhouse BYERE BREBTEXH)
Gas Emissions Unit
REREHHEE B 2021 2020 2021 2020
Scope 1 - Direct Tonnes of Carbon 82 66 0.8 1.1
Greenhouse Gas Dioxide Equivalent
Emissions (tCO e)
gE1 - ERAEREY | AM_EREE
=
Scope 2 - Indirect Tonnes of Carbon 16,060 13,807
Greenhouse Gas Dioxide Equivalent
Emissions (tCOze)
#HE2 - HEATRENE | AE_ftREE
e J

figures are rounded to the nearest whole number

Direct greenhouse gas emissions are emissions from sources that are
owned or controlled by us (Scope 1), including use of fuel for stationary
combustion. The data were calculated based on Guidelines to Account
for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals for Buildings
(Commercial, Residential or Institutional Purposes) in Hong Kong and the
World Resources Institute’s Greenhouse Gas Accounting Tool for Chinese
Cities (Pilot Version 1.0).

Indirect greenhouse gas emissions are emissions that are a consequence of
the activities of our operations, but occur at sources owned or controlled
by another entity (Scope 2), including purchased electricity. The data were
calculated based on the default factors provided by electricity providers in
Hong Kong, such as Power Assets Holdings Limited, CLP Holdings Limited
and HK & China Gas. The emissions by electricity purchased in China were
calculated based on the emission factors in China’s Regional Grid Average
CO, Emission Factors in 2012.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Environment (continued)

Climate Change Management

Climate change brings about potential risks and disturbances to business
operations. Our management is delegated to identify, analyse, evaluate,
respond, monitor and communicate risks related to climate change.
To understand and mitigate accordingly the significant climate-related
issues that would affect our business, we have commissioned a third-
party consultant to conduct a formal climate change impact assessment.
The assessment concluded that our manufacturing and retail operations
have not been materially impacted by climate-related issues and are
subject to limited climate-related risks including strong wind or cyclone,
flooding, landslide, temperature change in the short, medium and long
term.

The impact of climate change has been mitigated by various measures
implemented in the operations. Business contingency plans for our
manufacturing and retail operations are in place. We have also set
energy reduction target for our factories to enhance climate resilience
gradually. We will continue to monitor the situation and update our
management approach to climate change.

Wastewater Management

The Group's major use of water occurs at its plants in the course of
manufacturing jewellery. The wastewater may contain acids, alkali,
various chemicals and heavy metals. At the plants in Shunde and Hong
Kong, there is an onsite facility for neutralisation, deionisation and
sedimentation of the wastewater. The treated water is certified safe to
discharge into the municipal network, and the slag is properly handled
by licensed operators. At the smaller plants, wastewater is put in safe
storage for removal by licensed operators at regular intervals.

B5(#)
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/ Total Volume of Effluent Discharged”
Bk EE
Type of Emission Unit
BERCE R B 2021 2020
Wastewater from Jewellery Manufacturing Tonnes 33,285 21,681
REREEL 2 BEK [l
* figures are rounded to the nearest whole number Y HFREERENC B

Compared with 2020, the Group discharged more wastewater as
manufacturing and production activities resumed during the year. We
will continue to monitor the volume and quality of the effluent to
ensure it is discharged appropriately and responsibly.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
BEEESEERARRDA

48

B2020F M8 - ARBLEREERBIRE
JEER - NEERF RS P REK o 3 A
SREBERBKNBINEREE  NE
RIEE AN E T B REEK -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021
2021 4 3R



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Environment (continued)

Waste Management

Another area of focus in the Group’s environmental management
policies is waste reduction at source. The Group has placed much
emphasis on the reusability in the packaging of its products by making
use of recyclable, reusable, and biodegradable packaging materials
whenever possible. Customers will find our boxes useful for storing
other items if not used for their jewellery. It is ingrained into our
culture to reuse suitable containers and boxes for transportation. As
a recognition of our continuous efforts in waste reduction, the office,
plant and laboratory of the Group were bestowed the Wastewi$e
Certificate (Excellence Level) by Hong Kong Green Organisation
Certification. Compared to 2020, more packaging materials were used
and distributed due to the increase in sales volume this year. The Group
will continue to study possible ways to avoid undue and unnecessary
use of packaging materials and recycle whenever appropriate.

Packaging Materials Used*
TRy

8

106 10

2020

134

2021

500
17}

figures are rounded to the nearest whole number

There are other measures for further savings but heightened awareness:

to cut down the use of disposable cups, all staff members are
encouraged to use glass and cups; and wherever feasible guests
are served with those as well;

to reuse printed paper before recycling; and
to promote paperless office by using electronic communications.

Recycling bins are generally available and employees are encouraged to
make use of them. We have participated in the Hong Kong Awards for
Environmental Excellence for many years and recycled resources used
in our operations wherever possible. All recyclables are collected and
handled by recognised recycling organisations.

Where options of recycling and reuse have been fully considered, the
Group engages authorised or licensed contractors in the disposal of
general waste and hazardous waste generated at our manufacturing
factories or at our offices.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Environment (continued)

Waste Management (continued)

The Group endeavours to reduce use of hazardous materials wherever
feasible. For example, the plant in Hong Kong has changed its
electroforming processes to use non-cyanide chemicals. Overall,
hazardous waste has always been handled by qualified contractors in
compliance with applicable local laws.

The following figures outline waste generated and recycled in our
operations:

BE HERERKRE

Bi5 (&)

BEYEIE (&)

AEBRNEATHERATRIEREEY
el EERECREREESRT
Fr Tm)ﬁ#‘fﬂt%ﬁ’]{t%uu 17 A2E8 M
5 AEREVVERBAEBAMREMN
MREMWERTARE -

THEFHRAEE RS AMESE R EK
ZREEY

Hazardous Waste Generated

FTELREZEEY
Highly Acidic Waste Others (e.g. waste with lead, inorganic cyanide,
SEEEEEY mercury, organic solvent)
HigERy) (Planass - WEEY) -
KER - BRIARIERY)
Tonnes
TR
7
6
6
4.8
° 42
4 3.5
3
2
1
0
2020 2021 2020 2021

Non-Hazardous Waste Generated*

FELHEZEREY"
Paper Waste General Waste
Tonnes %EEEEE;E% Tonnes _Q%%%
TR
60 52 40
43 34
50 ./.
a0 30
2 23
20
20 20
7/
10
0 \ 10 \
2020 2021 2020 2021
—M— Generated 4 = Recycled EIUZ
*  figures are rounded to the nearest whole number * HFEEIRENCEEY
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Environment (continued)

Waste Management (continued)

Due to the resumption of most of our operations this year, an increased
amount of hazardous and non-hazardous waste has been recorded by
the Group compared to previous year. We will continue to promote
waste reduction measures, such as reuse and recycling, in our operations
to improve resource effectiveness.

Air Emissions Management’

Jewellery manufacturing generates air emissions that may contain acids,
alkali, other chemicals or traces of metals and dust. Our workplaces are
equipped, depending on the scale of the operation and the nature of
the processes employed, with equipment ranging from fume cupboards
and filters to full-scale scrubber networks to render the air clean for
discharge into the atmosphere as per the requirement of local regulatory
authorities. In particular, the scrubber system in Shunde plant has
airflow control to keep noxious emissions out of the working area.

Community Involvement

The Group believes that its involvement in the community can foster
social harmony and development and is simply good corporate
citizenship.

Promotion of Arts and Cultural Development

The Group is keen to foster the growth and development of Hong
Kong's arts and cultural landscape, and we believe this encourages
positive societal values for the expression of thoughts and feelings
through design and innovation. For example, we have been a corporate
partner with Hong Kong Sinfonietta and Maestro Circle member of the
Hong Kong Philharmonic Orchestra for several years. The Hong Kong
Repertory Theatre has likewise been receiving programme sponsorship.

Community Development

The Group has contributed to various charitable themes such as youth
education, social service, community care, child and elderly care, care
for special needs and groups on raising environmental awareness.
During the year, we have supported many charitable organisations
through monetary and in-kind donations and through participation in
their charitable events. The Group donated to a number of organisations
including The Salvation Army, St. James’ Settlement People’s Food Bank
and Yan Chai Hospital.

Air emissions are not material to the Group’s jewellery manufacturing and

retail businesses. The types of emissions and respective emissions data of

HKEx ESG Guide are therefore not reported.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Community Involvement (continued)

Community Development (continued)

Recognising the importance of quality education for young people,
the Group provides scholarship funds to The Hong Kong Academy for
Performing Arts, the City University of Hong Kong and have subsidised
the “Sustained Vitality, Ever Rejuvenated Education aid fund” (&4 F
BENBEES) run by Shanghai Education Foundation of Huangpu
District. Apart from offering scholarship, the Group also participates
in the promotion of STEM education in Hong Kong. With our long
history and expertise in precious metal testing, we hope to transfer our
talent and scientific knowledge to our next generations in Hong Kong.
Our STEAM workshop BEEHF I T {EH (with the element of “Arts”
incorporated into STEM) provided students with opportunity to learn
more scientific knowledge and to gain wider exposure. The workshops
covered interesting topics like gold panning, alchemy and silverware
restoration. Over 200 students from 11 secondary schools joined our
workshops in 2021.

The Group not only supports Hong Kong community but also extends
the support to Mainland China, Macau and Taiwan. Our offices in all
regions are encouraged to initiate or participate in charitable events
targeted to serve local community associations and organisations for
youngsters, elderly and the environmental protection. To encourage
participation by our staff, the Group sponsors the activities and
encourages interested employees to become volunteers. Employees
are eligible to apply for volunteer leave, which further encourages the
participation of meaningful charitable work.

In 2020, we launched an event called "B 4 AZEM” via the Ant Forest
online platform where we encouraged our staff to perform low-carbon
activities such as doing more exercise and participating in environmental
recycling projects. These activities would then be converted into “green
energy” for watering “virtual tree” online. Once the “virtual tree” has
fully grown, Ant Forest would plant a real tree in desertified areas in
Mainland China. With the tremendous support of our staff, a total of 98
real trees have been planted since the event was launched.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate Governance Practices

The Group as a whole strives to adhere to the highest standards of
transparency, accountability and corporate governance, balancing and
protecting the interests of shareholders, employees, customers and
suppliers. In December 2021, The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”) has announced amendments to the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“"Listing Rules”). The applicable new requirements under the Code will
apply for financial year commencing on or after 1 January 2022. The
Company has complied throughout the year ended 31 December 2021
with the applicable code provisions of the Code (the “then Code"),
except for the deviation from code provision A.2.1 which is explained
in the relevant paragraph of this report. The Company will continue
to enhance its corporate governance practices appropriate to the
operations and growth of the business of the Group.

The Board

Board composition

The Board comprises ten Directors, of whom four Executive Directors
("EDs"), two Non-executive Directors (“NEDs”) and four Independent
Non-executive Directors (“INEDs"”). In addition, a list containing the
names of the Directors and their roles and functions is available on
the websites of the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited (“HKEC").

Chairman and Group General Manager

Code provision A.2.1 of the then Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing holds both positions of the Chairman
and the Group General Manager of the Company. The Board is of the
opinion that the present board structure provides the Group with strong
and consistent leadership and allows for effective and efficient planning
and implementation of business decisions and strategies.

Independence of Directors

Save for the relationships disclosed in the biographical details set out
on pages 5 to 8 of this annual report, the Directors do not have family,
material financial, business or other relationships with one another.

The Company has received from each of the INEDs written annual
confirmation of his independence as required under the Listing Rules
and therefore the Board considers all INEDs to be independent.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board (continued)

Re-election of Directors

All NEDs (including INEDs) are appointed for specific terms of not more
than three years in accordance with the then Code. In addition, all
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years and re-election in annual general meetings of the Company in
accordance with the Company’s bye-laws.

Securities transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules as the Company's code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions. Directors are reminded on a regular
basis of their obligations under the Model Code.

All Directors have written to confirm, following specific enquiry by the
Company, that they have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code throughout the year.

Employees who have access to inside information of the Group are also
subject to compliance with written internal guidelines (the “Written
Internal Guidelines”) that follow the Model Code.

Directors’ continuous professional development

Directors have continuously been updated on major developments of
the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure
compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance practices.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board (continued)

Directors’ continuous professional development (continued)

During the year, the Directors participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills and
provided their records of training to the Company. Details are as
follows:
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Training "

Name of Directors BEpS s
Executive Directors: HITES :
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing A e v
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing Bkt v/
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing B EE v
Ms. Genevieve CHOW Karwing B2y v

(appointed on 1 November 2021) (R2021%F1151HEZ(T)
Non-executive Directors: FHITES:
Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel TRERE v
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam ENIk e 4
Independent Non-executive Directors: BYFHTES :
Mr. LEE Ka Lun FHRERE 4
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun BRIm B E 4
Dr. LO King Man ERNEL v
Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung BINEESRE v
Note: Wit -

The mode of trainings includes but not limited to attending briefing, conference,
online trainings and seminars, and/or reading materials on relevant topics.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Group. It determines the overall strategic direction and management
objectives, oversees significant operational and financial matters and
ensures a framework of risk controls is in place.

The Company has provided to each Director a Directors’ Manual, which
includes the statutory obligations, duties and responsibilities for being a
director. The Directors’ Manual is updated from time to time to reflect
the latest developments in those areas.

Internal guidelines with continuing updates in areas on the Company’s
and the Directors’ obligations under the Listing Rules, and the latest
developments or material changes on ordinances, rules or regulations
are provided to Directors from time to time.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board (continued)

The Board has delegated day-to-day operations to management, who
is responsible for implementing the Group’s business strategies and
managing the daily business operations under the leadership of the
Chairman/Group General Manager and the Group Deputy General
Manager, both of whom are EDs.

Management support

All Directors were provided with monthly updates on the Group's
business, operations, and financial matters as well as timely information
that may have affected the Group's businesses. Comprehensive Board
papers are prepared and distributed quarterly to Directors to keep them
informed.

Directors have free access to management for additional information, as
and when required and may solicit independent professional advice at
the Company's expenses.

Attendance Records of Directors

The attendance records of each Director at the Board and Board
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Committee meetings and the annual general meeting held in 2021 are

set out as follows:

=ZBgER-

;o

AR B RBE XG4

Attendance/Number of Meetings

BRLERY/BIRY
Annual
Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination General
Board  Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Name of Directors BEEpg Ezxe ERZEE  §HzZEe RE€ZEE  RREFAS
Executive Directors: HTES:
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing XA 5/5 - - - 1
Chairman and Group General Manager IEREFGLE
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing [ERE A 5/5 - - 22 7N
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing Bk ks 5/5 - - - 1/1
Group Deputy General Manager EE 5
Ms. Genevieve CHOW Karwing BAEstt 1/5* N/A N/A N/A N/A
TER TER TR TER
Non-executive Directors: FHTES:
Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel TRERAE 5/5 22 171 22 17
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam Ny 5/5 2/2 11 22 n
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUEHTES !
Mr. LEE Ka Lun ZRE T 5/5 212 n 212 n
Chairman of the three Committees CHESRZHE
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun RmEEE 5/5 22 11 22 11
Dr. LO King Man ESNEL 4/5 212 n 212 n
Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung BERE 5/5 0 1”1 2 11
- The Director is not a member. - EFUHHME

* Subsequent to the appointment of Ms. Genevieve CHOW Karwing as an
Executive Director on 1 November 2021, there was one board meeting

held.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Attendance Records of Directors (continued)

During the year, the Chairman also held a meeting with the INEDs
without the presence of other Directors.

Directors who are considered having conflict of interests or material
interests in proposed transactions or contemplated issues are required to
abstain from voting on the relevant resolution.

Board Committees

The Board is supported by three committees, namely Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, whose respective
terms of reference are available on the websites of the Company and
HKEC.

Composition of each of the three committees is shown in the section
headed “Attendance Records of Directors” above.

Audit Committee

The principal duties are to monitor the integrity of the Group's
consolidated financial statements, oversee the Group's financial
reporting systems, internal control and risk management procedures and
the relationship with the external auditor. Members possess appropriate
professional qualifications, accounting or management expertise as
required under the Listing Rules.

During the year, the Committee reviewed the Group's accounting
principles and practices, development in accounting standards and
associated impacts on the Group, risk management issues, audit
findings, compliance, strategy summary and financial reporting matters,
and the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems. The Committee discussed the above matters, where
appropriate, with management and external auditor.

Remuneration Committee
The principal functions include reviewing and making recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration policies and packages for Directors
and senior management.

The remuneration of Directors consists of a basic annual fee with
additional payments for serving on Committees. It is not set individually.
EDs receive additional pay packages by virtue of their positions in
management.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board Committees (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

During the year, the Committee reviewed the remuneration package
and bonus payment of Directors and senior management; reviewed and
made recommendation to the Board on Directors’ fees; and reviewed
and made recommendation to the Board on the remuneration package
and service contract for the proposed new Executive Director.

Nomination Committee

The main duties include reviewing the structure, size and composition
of the Board, assessing the independence of INEDs, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors and determining the policy for nomination of Directors.

During the year, the Committee reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board, reviewed the nomination of Directors and
recommended the appointment of an Executive Director to the Board
for approval. It also assessed and confirmed the independence of the
INEDs, and made recommendation to the Board on the nomination of
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing, Dr. CHAN Bing Fun and Mr. CHUNG
Pui Lam, the retiring directors, for re-election as Directors by the
shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company held on
2 June 2021.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve diversity of the Board.
The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity of Board
members. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements
of the Group's corporate strategy. All Board appointments are based on
meritocracy, and candidates are considered against objective criteria,
having due regards for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

In determining the Board composition, the Committee considers a
number of aspects as set out in the Board Diversity Policy, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge, industry and regional
experience and other qualities.

Having reviewed the Board composition, the Committee (and the
Board) recognises the importance and benefits of gender diversity and
is of the view that female member at board level can bring different
perspective to the boardroom and enhances board performance. Hence,
a female Director has been appointed to the Board during the year.
The Committee considered that the current composition of the Board
is sufficiently diverse and effective to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
BEEESEERARRDA

58

>
e
mR
o
S
off

ESZEE(H)

HWZEE (&)
FRNZEBERMNETESRRAEEAR
ZHMFBRIEL M LAESERE
ZHERLEZ  URBZALNEFZER
REAHATESCHFMEBRRBAH
RbEE -

EEZRE
REZECGIZHACEBRIERZGE LR
B ABRAR  FRBUFRTESZ
Bl REEZAAENZENEES
RES  UREBERZEFIBRE -

FREZEERTEZTG2RE - ASRA
K BREERBVANEESERRME—
ZHITERUMELE - TE SRR
RBUFRTEEZBUN  VRHES
SREERTEZFEKNLE  BRABE

RETMHAEEBREAARRE2021F6 A
QEBRTZBEBRAFASLERAES -

EZOCRMNEFERBZTILRR(E
EEREBEZTEBRER])  EFHAEHE
ZEEZTLIENIM - ARARRLREE
EEXESTIENES  BIRRERS
RESARELERENT 2L - £
RETACHTERGYE AAEMERES
eRELTI MEESEERBRENE
RAAMET U EBIREANZEBIEM -

ERETEEENANKE  ZEEEZEES
ERESTABRTAENETIE €
BEARNMER - Fik XERHEEE
RCEXRER WEE M@ TERME
RN EAMITE »

KemaEEamEmz Z88(RES
2)RAMERZ T2 EZERFR I
RBALEKB(REZEER)ERSEHAT
RARNEE  RETARAEEFEZR
Bl EEERFACZE—RKH
EX-ZE9RA EFCANMAKE
RIEHMZTI TEREAARA 2R
R -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021
2021 4 3R



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board Committees (continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

The Board has adopted a director nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria and process in relation to
nomination and appointment of directors of the Company and aims to
ensure the continuity of the Board and appropriate leadership at Board
level.

The Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the suitability
and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed candidate,
including but not limited to the following:

o character and integrity;

o qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the business and
corporate strategy of the Group;

J the Board Diversity Policy and any measurable objectives adopted
by the Committee for achieving diversity on the Board,;

J requirement for the Board to have independent directors
in accordance with the Listing Rules and assessment of the
independence of the candidates; and

. commitment to understanding the Company and its industry,
willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as a
member of the Board.

Upon receipt of a proposal on appointment of new director, the
Committee and/or the Board should evaluate such candidate based on
the criteria as set out above to determine whether such candidate is
qualified for directorship. If the process yields one or more desirable
candidates, the Committee and/or the Board should rank them
by order of preference based on the needs of the Group and the
Committee should then make recommendation to the Board. For
any person nominated by shareholder(s) for election as a director
at the general meeting of the Company, the Committee and/or the
Board should evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as set out
above to determine the eligibility of such candidate, and thus make
recommendation to the shareholders on the proposed election of
director at the general meeting.

For re-election of director at the general meeting, the Committee and/
or the Board should review the overall contribution and service made
by the retiring director to the Group, and consider whether the retiring
director’s level of participation and performance on the Board meet the
criteria as set out above. The Committee and/or the Board should then
make recommendation to the shareholders on the proposed re-election
of director at the general meeting.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board has undertaken to perform the corporate governance
functions and is responsible for determining the policy for the corporate
governance of the Company and keeping up to date with the latest
requirements of the Code and the Listing Rules.

During the year, the Board reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, the Company's
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and the Written
Internal Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the then Code
and the disclosure in this report.

Financial Reporting

Directors’ responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the Group’s
state of affairs, results and cash flows in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards.

External auditor

The reporting responsibilities of the Group’s independent external
auditor, Ernst & Young, on the Group's consolidated financial
statements are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 66
to 74 of this annual report.

The Board is satisfied with the audit fees, process and effectiveness
of Ernst & Young and has recommended its re-appointment as the
Company's external auditor at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
The services provided by Ernst & Young and the associated fees thereof
paid/payable for 2021 were as follows:

=

Audit =
Taxation %
Others Hip
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for ensuring that adequate risk management
and internal controls are in place to safeguard the Group's assets
and manage risks. The Board reviews the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems on an ongoing basis. Policies
and procedures are designed for providing reasonable assurance
against material misstatement or loss and managing risks of failure in
operational systems and achievement of the Group's objectives.

Risk Management

Management is delegated to identify, analyse, evaluate, respond,
monitor and communicate risks associated with any activity, function or
process within its scope of responsibility and authority. For risk control
and monitoring, it involves making decisions regarding which risks
are acceptable and how to address those that are not. Management
develops action plans to address potential risks and contingency plans
for possible loss scenarios. Accidents and other situations involving loss
or near-loss will be investigated and properly documented as part of the
effort to manage risks. Risk assessment is carried out biannually. Key
risks and action plans are identified by management and reported to the
Audit Committee and the Board.
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Principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group are set out as
follows:

FEEEH T RSB RTEEAFNT -

o Retail market and supply chain suffer from disruptions caused
by covid-19 and the uncertainties in the global economic and
political environment and the weakened consumer demand.
We see opportunities to grow by adopting omni-channel
retailing and increase customer loyalty via product and brand
differentiation.

J The Group’s operations will be affected by multiple risk
factors related to the manufacture and retail of jewellery and
distribution of watches, the wholesale of precious metals and
e-commerce platform operation. Policies and procedures are
designed to minimise the risks.

J Adverse effects which may arise from changes in laws and
regulations affecting our businesses. Legal and regulatory

compliance policies are in place to mitigate against the risks.

J Details of financial risk management objectives and policies are
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set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements. ERER A BT SRR MIFE42 o
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)

Internal Control

The purpose of internal control is to reasonably provide the assurance
for the compliance of its operation and management with regulations
and laws, assets security, and authenticity and integrity of financial
report and related information, improve the efficiency and effectiveness
of operating activities and promote the realisation of development
strategy of the Group.
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Major internal controls currently in place within the Group included
the following:

PEEHE L BABERERLTERE

o An Internal Audit team conducts regular audits of different
aspects of the operations and reports any findings to the Audit
Committee.

J Business plans are prepared annually. Income and expenditure
are subject to regular budgetary review.

. Policies are set to cover the integrity of trading practices,
safekeeping of customer assets, and credit control for the
jewellery and watch store operations, the securities and futures
broking business and the wholesale of precious metals.

J All inventory movements are properly recorded and reconciled,
and verification and cross-checking with source documents
procedures are in place. Inventory level is under continuous
review and adjusted regularly taking into account of prevailing
market conditions.

J Major or material connected transactions require pre-approval of
INEDs and all continuing connected transactions are reviewed on
a regular basis.

. Information access is managed on a need-to-know basis.
Guidelines and procedures are in place to protect personal data
and to ensure the integrity of communication systems.

. The Group strictly prohibits unauthorised use of confidential or
inside information. Disclosure of inside information guide has
been established and only the authorised staff are allowed to
communicate with parties outside the Group.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)

Internal Control (continued)

The Board and the Audit Committee have reviewed the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems for the year ended 31
December 2021, with reference to the risk management and internal
audit reports and the representations made by management and
concluded that adequate and effective risk management and internal
control systems of the Group are being maintained. The annual review
also considers the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions, and their training programmes and budget. There were no
significant areas of concern identified during the year.

Constitutional Documents

During the year, there was no change in the Company’s memorandum
of association and bye-laws. A copy of the latest consolidated version
of the memorandum of association and bye-laws is available on the
websites of the Company and HKEC.

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

The Group recognises that human capital is a key asset to sustainable
business growth. The objective of the Group’s human resources
management is to reward and recognise performing staff by providing
a competitive remuneration package and implementing a performance
appraisal system with appropriate incentives, and to promote career
development and progression by appropriate training and providing
opportunities within the Group for career advancement. We believe
these measures could further enhance employee involvement and
engagement as part of a team.

The Group is committed to providing high-quality products and services
to its customers. Apart from our professional sale representatives in
stores, we also have a dedicated team of customer relations personnel
for quick response to enquiries and complaints. We believe that
customer satisfaction is the key to our long-term success.

The Group values mutually beneficial long-term relationships with
its suppliers. Steady supply of high-quality raw materials is crucial
for us. The Group is committed to developing stable and sustainable
partnership among its suppliers.
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Corporate Communication

Shareholder communication

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with
the Company’s shareholders and other stakeholders. A shareholders’
communication policy with the objectives of ensuring a transparent
and timely communication with shareholders and other stakeholders
via various means has been established. The general meetings of the
Company provide a forum for communication between the Board and
the shareholders. The chairman of the Board as well as the chairman of
the three Committees and other members of the respective committees
are available to answer questions at the general meetings.

Investor communication

Aside from annual reports and interim reports, the Company
disseminates timely information on its website to investors and
consumers alike.

Management also attends meetings with financial analysts and fund
managers from time to time. These meetings allow management to
maintain close contact with investors which facilitate their understanding
of the Group's strategies and operations.

Internal communication

The Group's staff members are linked by the Group's intranet for
prompt sharing of information. Regular meetings of staff members from
Hong Kong, Mainland China and Taiwan are held to share and discuss
issues on achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, actual operational
practices, local rules and regulations and compliance practices.

Shareholders’ Rights

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene a
special general meeting (“SGM") of the Company. Shareholders holding
in aggregate of not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid-up capital of
the Company may send a written request to the Board of the Company
to request for an SGM.

The written requisition, duly signed by the shareholders concerned,
must state the purposes of the meeting and must be deposited at the
Company's registered office for the attention of the Company Secretary.

The Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary
arrangements, and the shareholders concerned would be responsible for
the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the
requirements under section 74 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (the
“Companies Act”) once a valid requisition is received. If within 21 days
of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
shareholders concerned or any of them representing more than one half
of the total voting rights of all of them may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the shareholders concerned as
a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the
Company.
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Shareholders’ Rights (continued)

The following shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal (which
may properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a general
meeting of the Company:

(@) any number of members representing not less than one-twentieth
(5%) of the total voting rights of the Company on the date of the
requisition; or

(b)

not less than 100 members holding shares in the Company.

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the shareholders
concerned, together with a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in the proposal must be deposited
at the Company's registered office for the attention of the Company
Secretary. The Company would take appropriate actions and make
necessary arrangements, and the shareholders concerned would
be responsible for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in
accordance with the requirements under sections 79 and 80 of the
Companies Act once valid documents are received.

As regards proposing a person for election as a director of the
Company, please refer to the “Procedures for Shareholders to Propose
a Person for Election as a Director” available on the website of the
Company.

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board in
writing through the Company Secretary at 27/F, 9 Wing Hong Street,
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong (email: ir@chowsangsang.com).
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

e
EY:

To the shareholders of
Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chow
Sang Sang Holdings International Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 75 to 196, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code"”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of
how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters
below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
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BYLHEMES

Key audit matters

BREEHTSER

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

ZERAEET P RUMAEHK

Net realisable value of inventories

FREZTE%FHE

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of
inventories (net of inventory provision), mainly comprised
of gold, platinum, diamond products and watches,
amounted to HK$11,343,277,000. Significant judgement
was required to assess the appropriate level of inventory
provision for slow-moving or obsolete products which
might be sold below cost. The assessment took into
account factors that included, but were not limited to,
economic outlook, sales forecasts and the forecast market
value for the inventory items.

The write-down of inventories to net realisable value
during the current year amounted to HK$10,661,000.

Further details about the Group’s inventory provision
are included in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.

R2021F12 8318 FE (FEpE=E: - 0¢  #EA
EmkiEE) WEREES 11,343,277,000 8T (BHBE
EEE) o MEZETRNERKANEBREE 2 AHENRE
EmZABTEREKTAELEAHE - ZFETR (2
EETER) £FES  HEBILBEHFEEACHES
Hx-

FR - WEFEEZIEFEAS 10,661,000 BT
B BEEGEEBEZE—THBINGEVBREMNTE
30
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We obtained an understanding of management’s
processes for the initial identification of slow-moving or
obsolete products. We reviewed the bases adopted by
the Group for its inventory provision policy with reference
to historical inventory losses, and evaluated whether
the inventory provision was made in accordance with
the policy. We also assessed the inventory provision by
comparing the selling prices of the inventory items to their
costs.

In addition to the above, independent gemologists
were engaged by the Group to assess the net realisable
values of certain jewellery items held by the Group
as at 31 December 2021. We reviewed the sampling
approach adopted by the gemologists, which was based
on a mix of material and random items. For diamond
products assessed by the independent gemologists, we
also evaluated the net realisable value with reference
to independently published sales prices. In addition, we
evaluated the objectivity, independence and competency
of the independent gemologists.

BRI THREEBNL ARG HAREER B - HME
B BERENGFEREHRARACEE Y2EELESR
B UNTETERBEREARRZBKER - BFNEBR
HEREFERAZKARER  FHEFERE -

B BEBZEBUYBLETMIE S£ER
201 F 12 A3 BRBZETHEERZUERFE - &K
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SZER A EBFE R ERFE - I RATFES
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BYLHEMES

Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BRETEE ZERAEETPRUNMESRN
Valuation of investment properties
REYFEE

The Group owned a portfolio of investment properties in
Hong Kong and outside of Hong Kong, which was valued
at HK$472,897,000 as at 31 December 2021.

Significant estimation was required to determine the
fair value of the investment properties, which reflected
market conditions at the end of the reporting period.
Management engaged an independent professionally
qualified valuer to estimate the value of investment
properties at the end of the reporting period.

Further details about the Group's investment properties
are included in notes 3 and 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

EEBRNEERERBIINEBIREMELS
F12 B 31 HZfAEA 472,897,000 BT °

HR 2021

BEREDFEZ ATFEERELHEAMGS - ARBNFEH
RZHHRR - EREREBUEESERMEEMMERE
MERFEHR2EE

Bl ESRERBVEZE—SHBENGSMBHRRME
3R 16
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BEEESEERARRDA

We evaluated the objectivity, independence and
competency of the valuer. We also involved our internal
valuation specialists to assist us in reviewing the bases
and assumptions adopted in the valuation for estimating
the fair value of the investment properties and performed
the benchmarking of the value of investment properties
held by the Group to other comparable properties. We
also compared property-related data used as key input
for the valuation with underlying documents, such as
lease agreements. In addition, we assessed the related
disclosures in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

BAFE[EM 2 TENE - BUUERBEES - HATEE
ABMEEZRBHFEAEFAREDEDFEEMETZ
ERARAERLER  Y2ZEMALENES &
ERA KENEBECRE - BAESBIEGERRS
AW ERRBEREAEN T (WHERZE) ETL® -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BYLHEMES

Key audit matters

BREEHTSER

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

ZERAEET P RUMAEHK

Impairment assessment on margin loans receivable

FREFEM A B EFIE

As at 31 December 2021, gross margin loans receivable
and the related credit loss allowance amounted to
HK$737,573,000 and HK$582,651,000, respectively.

The assessment of impairment of margin loans receivable
involves significant management judgements and
estimates on the amount of expected credit loss.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk for exposure
since initial recognition by comparing the risk of default
occurring over the expected life between the reporting
date and the date of initial recognition.

The Group's methodology and assumptions used for
estimating the amount of future cash flows for margin
loans receivable normally encompass the nature and value
of collateral held and anticipated receipts; and where
applicable the Group performed credit assessment based
on the specific circumstances and market conditions which
involved significant assumptions.

Further details about the Group’s margin loans receivable
are included in notes 3 and 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.

R2021F 12 A31 B AREFEFQENHEBEEEE
BiE DRI A 737,573,000 7T & 582,651,000 BT °

FREFPEFRENGIREEEH AR EEBESEE
HEAH B Rl Et o

REE#mE R %%lmfﬁiﬁﬂﬁ%%ﬁﬁaﬁm
BEFERAZEORR - Nt EEERRZE B TRER
PASRE R BRIZ N o

SEAEMHTREPENCARRERESHER - £
ZE&&F“ ROREFMFFRRm 2 1 E R EBEREHR
o BEEEERBATREEBARENTRETER
Al BRI REARR °
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HHE3 R 23
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We obtained an understanding of the Group's credit risk
management and practices, and assessed the Group's
methodologies and assumptions used for estimating the
impairment of margin loans receivable. Our procedures to
assess the Group's impairment included the following:

o We evaluated the Group's methodologies and
assumptions used in expected credit loss estimation.

o We tested the appropriateness of the Group's
determination of a significant increase in credit risk
and the basis for classification of exposures into
the 3 stages. Our testing included checking loan
overdue information, loan-to-value percentage or
other related information, and considering the stage
classification determined by the Group.

o We also considered the control procedures
performed by the Group over monitoring and
valuation of collateral and determined whether
there was any shortfall by comparing the loans
outstanding with the value of collateral.

We also assessed the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures
in relation to credit risk.

ﬂﬂH}

ﬁHET% EEBVEERREENER  WEFE &
B FREEFERZAERTBNAEREBFK o HMFT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Other information included in the Annual Report

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Directors.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
BEESBEEBRARRAA

72

BYLHEMES

REM B REMBRRAEZER

ZAZBEE  REGSHBHRREERRS
PEERRNRFRERMERZ EAHR
BREBGARERE YHABEEMER
ZGEEMERE - RMERBARZ19814F
DEVEF QR 2 BRRELRS - ik
ZOABEY EEMAE - KT SRR
HZAREEREAMA LT E F R EER
BIE -

AERERBAKFZRE  BTERER
REBBTEAET 2B EX-—EX
SRR T AR BT IR - SRR AT A
HARRFREERSIE - MRSEBHEME
BRELLRAEYBESMBERRES
ERBEAMBRRAEL 2 EBRE
BIBRI SRR AT AR IEE K

ERERBRENETEN 2BRED
RAERTEXAE  RETEXREE
& o BAPITF

o BRI RFHE R AEF SR R M S BT
AUBRREFEERERRL 2R
% REtRMITERHEF LAY E L
BB - WRERGEE REE 2 ETR
& ERAMER ZER - ARIKRF
AR R BRI BRER &
B - ERBRAREZEZ L K
MARBEBR R A M MG 2 AR
Rtz BB B m R R HRRERT
B BRHERRME 2 AR -

o TERERIHEBZAMER ARG
BECENRF BENYYE B
SEABERZBRMEERER -

o HEEEMRAETHRZRENR
fER @A MR REEEZAE
1 o

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

2021 F #y



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

J Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Leung Chi Ying.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

22 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Year ended 31 December 2021

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
Turnover

Retail

Other businesses

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income, net

Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Other losses, net

Finance costs

Profit before tax from continuing
operations

Income tax

Profit for the year from continuing
operations

DISCONTINUED OPERATION
Loss for the year from discontinued operation

Profit for the year

Profit/(loss) for the year
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable
to owners of the Company:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operation
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AEsBEHA

REBEER
HE2001F12A31BILEE

2021 2020
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Bt s FExT FET
(Restated)
(&51)
BEREEK
EER 5
TE 19,921,938 13,097,720
Hin %% 2,065,621 1,899,821
21,987,559 14,997,541
SHE R (16,431,474) (10,877,614)
EF 5,556,085 4,119,927
HilA - FE 106,323 121,426
HERDHEER (3,754,696) (2,480,003)
THE R (816,432) (656,774)
HEE  FE (25,083) (84,690)
M ER 7 (60,486) (76,137)
BFELEEE
KRB AR R 6 1,005,711 943,749
FTis®t 11 (265,331) (304,611)
BECEER
FERRF 740,380 639,138
RIEEEEL
BIMEEER 2 FRBE 12 (100,611) (94,674)
FEREF 639,769 544,464
EiEER
=E(EE)
ZIN/NEIEZZ =N 643,257 544,464
FEIER RS (3,488) -
639,769 544,464
RABREEABEER
=F(EE)
BEGEER 743,868 639,138
IR ER (100,611) (94,674)
643,257 544,464

R~ & 2021 4

o
iR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
Year ended 31 December 2021

Note
BT
Earnings per share attributable to EREHEEAERL
owners of the Company BRER 14
Basic and diluted ERKEE
~ For profit for the year - FREM
— For profit from continuing operations - BELEER BT
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2021
HK$'000
TET

95.0 cents 1l

2020
HK$’'000
FET
(Restated)
(251)

80.4 cents 1l

109.8 cents 1

94.3 cents 1l
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended 31 December 2021

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Item that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translation

Items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Changes in fair value of financial assets
designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Revaluation upon transfer of buildings to
investment properties

Other comprehensive income that will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Other comprehensive income for the year

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the
year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the
year attributable to owners of the
Company:

Continuing operations
Discontinued operation

FRRF
Hip 2 E W
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BiEkzER
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BFEfh

ARTEEHIBE
BarzHiemkaE
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Note
By &E

15

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
(Restated)

(&%)

639,769 544,464
250,127 434,356
105,366 611,140
107,968 -
213,334 611,140
463,461 1,045,496
1,103,230 1,589,960
1,106,724 1,589,960
(3,494) =
1,103,230 1,589,960
1,207,335 1,684,634
(100,611) (94,674)
1,106,724 1,589,960
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2021

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Other assets

Financial assets designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Accounts receivable

Receivables arising from securities
and futures broking

Prepayments, other receivables
and other assets

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Tax recoverable

Cash held on behalf of clients

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Payables arising from securities
and futures broking

Other payables and accruals

Derivative financial instruments

Interest-bearing bank borrowings

Interest-bearing bank borrowings arising from
securities and futures broking

Bullion loans

Lease liabilities

Tax payable

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

mEeMBRR X

72021912 A31H

Note

BisE
FRBEE
ERE =B 15
REME 16
FEHRERE 17(a)
BEE 18
Hip & E 19

HERRAFEERAR
EERENIHEE 20

EERIBEE 33
BIERBEE
RBEE
FE 21
& W BR 5K 22
EAERBERLESE

Z FEMBR R 23
FERRIA - EtRUERER
REMEE 24
BATEBEFTABRR

s EE 25
BEEEEE
REFHBELRS 26
RehERERE 26
BRBEE
RBaE
ANE 27
BEMBELREEL
FETER IR 28
HibEIBRAKERTIEE 29
MTEEMTA 30
HBRIRITER 31
BEERBERLEE
AHRIRITER 31
EcBEE 32
HEEE 17(b)
FEfTRiIR
BRBARE
RBEEFE
BEERRBHEE

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAET
1,117,179 1,019,130
472,897 332,649
831,916 793,676
- 271
225,234 209,359
1,551,449 1,446,083
71,209 92,201
4,269,884 3,893,369
11,343,277 8,774,591
804,334 834,649
154,922 658,673
822,905 507,699
10,204 9,634
7,799 8,796
3,885 485,289
671,548 1,653,767
13,818,874 12,933,098
181,304 129,803
3,885 575,052
591,375 520,799
12,117 7,054
813,689 519,022
- 180,000
2,029,588 1,002,135
483,735 554,400
66,366 168,756
4,182,059 3,657,021
9,636,815 9,276,077
13,906,699 13,169,446
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2021

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Lease liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Net assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Issued capital
Reserves

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Vincent CHOW Wing Shing
Director

&
s
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Winston CHOW Wun Sing
Director

~ A

REMBERRE
72021912 A31H

2021 2020
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
it & TER TAET
31 372,019 380,907
17(b) 423,485 446,762
33 367,734 322,663
1,163,238 1,150,332
12,743,461 12,019,114
34 169,359 169,359
36 12,583,761 11,849,755
12,753,120 12,019,114
(9,659) =
12,743,461 12,019,114

B
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 December 2021

At 1 January 2020 R202061 A 1A

Profit for the year FREF
Other comprehensive income for the year: ERE {2 E Yz -
Changes in fair value of financial assets ~ 35E ARATEEA
designated at fair value through other HitzmRENE%
comprehensive income BEZATEEZY
Exchange differences on translation EXERE

Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FRZEW =A%

Transfer of fair value reserve upon the REEERTEREATER
disposal of financial assets designated STAEM 2 BB
at fair value through other comprehensive AEEHA T EERE
income

Transfer of share option reserve upon PR BB R RS B R A
the forfeiture of share options i

Transfer from retained profits BERBEF
Dividends declared and paid during FASERAMNRE
the year

At 31 December 2020 #®2020F 12 A31H

At 1 January 2021 R2021%1A18

Profit for the year FREF
Other comprehensive income for the year: R 2 EYES :
Changes in fair value of financial assets 38 F ARATEMEE A
designated at fair value through other Hin 2 ka8 %

comprehensive income BEZATEEEZD
Exchange differences on translation EHER
Revaluation upon transfer of buildings to 18 FEEERE £
investment properties -

Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FR 2 B

Transfer from retained profits ERREEH
Disposal of partial interest in a subsidiary ~HE—FHHBRARZHH
g

Dividends declared and paid during FRNERRAMRE

the year

At 31 December 2021 R2021%12 4318

Note
Bzt

20

Attributable to owners of the Company

Share Buildings
Issued Share option revaluation
capital premium reserve reserve
£
BRITRA RRE BRERE EftfRfE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER
(Note 35)
GEEL)
169,359 1,060,356 14,268 343,946
- - (14,268) -
169,359 1,060,356* —* 343,946*
169,359 1,060,356 - 343,946
- - - 107,968
- - - 107,968
169,359 1,060,356* -* 451,914*

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$12,583,761,000 (2020: HK$11,849,755,000) in the

consolidated statement of financial position.
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HREERBEHX
BHE2021F12A31BILEE

UNGIE 2PN T
Fair value
reserve of
financial assets Difference
designated at arising from
fair value acquisition
through other of non- Exchange
comprehensive controlling fluctuation Reserve Retained Non-controlling Total
income interests reserve funds profits Total interests equity
EERRAY
BEFARMY
2EKREN s
BHEEZ FRRER SHE
ATEERE BEZER 2BHE REE REEH CHS FERESR fad
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER TER TER
(Note 36)
(Bt 36)
933,634 4,897 (319,099) 478,957 7,946,067 10,632,385 - 10,632,385
= = = - 544,464 544,464 - 544,464
611,140 - - - - 611,140 - 611,140
- = 434,356 = = 434,356 = 434,356
611,140 - 434,356 - 544,464 1,589,960 - 1,589,960
(100,627) - - - 100,627 - - -
- - - - 14,268 - - -
- - - 68,075 (68,075) - - -
- - - - (203,231) (203,231) - (203,231)
1,444,147* 4,897* 115,257* 547,032* 8,334,120* 12,019,114 - 12,019,114
1,444,147 4,897 115,257 547,032 8,334,120 12,019,114 - 12,019,114
- - - - 643,257 643,257 (3,488) 639,769
105,366 - - - - 105,366 - 105,366
- - 250,133 - - 250,133 (6) 250,127
- - - - - 107,968 - 107,968
105,366 - 250,133 - 643,257 1,106,724 (3,494) 1,103,230
- = - 64,974 (64,974) - - -
- - (71) - 6,716 6,645 (6,165) 480
- - - - (379,363) (379,363) - (379,363)
1,549,513* 4,897* 365,319* 612,006* 8,539,756* 12,753,120 (9,659) 12,743,461

I E R B BRI A MR R 2 4R & 15 12,583,761,000 8 7L (2020 F
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS RERERER

Year ended 31 December 2021 HE2021F12 A31HLEFE
2021 2020
Note HK$'000 HK$’'000
B & FTEx FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REXBECHERE
ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from/(used in) operations mEmE /(A28 E 37@) (405,569) 2,599,014
Interest received 2 E 24,862 63,665
Interest paid BERFE (44,738) (57,956)
Hong Kong profits tax paid BREBFER (9,358) (64,218)
Mainland China tax paid BRI P BARRERIE (290,359) (250,240)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating REEBRE,/ (A2
activities HengFs (725,162) 2,290,265
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZBZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEWE #EN
equipment REER (394,631) (233,665)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEWE IR
plant and equipment REIEAB FSHIE 1,027 715
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HEETBIRATLEE
designated at fair value through other STAE b2 ERER
comprehensive income B EEMGRE 20 = 100,656
Purchase of an investment property BEREME (21,286) =
Deposits paid for purchases of items of BEWHE  HER
property, plant and equipment REBEE 2 BENES (1,962) (2,189)
Additions to other assets NEHMEE (51,712) (21,005)
Refund of other assets REHMEE 35,610 20,175
Dividends received from listed investments Bl EFTIRERE 30,889 24,360
Dividends received from unlisted investments B UIE AR S 888 1,018
Net cash flows used in investing activities REEEFTRZ
HengFs (401,177) (109,935)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RETH2HERE
ACTIVITIES
New bank loans HIIRITER 2,839,734 4,782,000
Repayment of bank loans ERIBITER (2,734,603) (4,920,535)
New bullion loans MEECBREE 3,768,842 1,912,543
Repayment of bullion loans ERECREE (2,736,117) (2,610,353)
Principal portion of lease payments MERBZ A& HH 37(b) (606,738) (539,329)
Capital contribution from FERER L E
non-controlling interests 480 =
Interest paid BERFE (18,623) (31,390)
Dividends paid ERIRE (379,363) (203,231)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing mMEEESME(FTR)Z
activities RengsE 133,612 (1,610,295)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS RERERER

Year ended 31 December 2021 BZE2021F12A31HLEFE
2021 2020
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
i aE TEx TAET
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND ReRERAEZ
CASH EQUIVALENTS #n,/ (Rd) 28 (992,727) 570,035
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year REWIZHE & MNERRE 1,653,767 1,028,326
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net — SMNE[ERE ST E - HE 10,508 55,406
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS REAKZEEREERE
AT END OF YEAR 671,548 1,653,767

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND BeRERBEEEDIT
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances Be RRITER 26 671,548 1,599,651
Non-pledged time deposits with original FHEEESHB LR =@A
maturity of less than three months when ZERBTERER
acquired 26 - 54,116
671,548 1,653,767
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information

Chow Sang Sang Holdings International Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the Company
is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,

Bermuda.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal

activities:

manufacture and retail of jewellery and distribution of watches
wholesale of precious metals
e-commerce platform operation

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are detailed in note 46 to the

consolidated financial statements.

2.1 Basis of Preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
investment properties, customer gold deposits, bullion loans, derivative
financial instruments and certain financial assets which have been
measured at fair value as further explained in note 2.4 to the consolidated
financial statements. These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$") and all values are rounded to the

nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021. A subsidiary is an
entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by
the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant

activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an

investee, including:

(a)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the

investee;
(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 Basis of Preparation (continued)

Basis of Consolidation (continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that

such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the

Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described above. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity

transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained and
(iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the

related assets or liabilities.

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first time for

the current year’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

beyond 30 June 2021 (early adopted)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures (continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs are described below:

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16
address issues not dealt with in the previous amendments which affect
financial reporting when an existing interest rate benchmark is replaced
with an alternative risk-free rate (“RFR”). The amendments provide a
practical expedient to allow the effective interest rate to be updated
without adjusting the carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities
when accounting for changes in the basis for determining the contractual
cash flows of financial assets and liabilities, if the change is a direct
consequence of the interest rate benchmark reform and the new basis
for determining the contractual cash flows is economically equivalent to
the previous basis immediately preceding the change. In addition, the
amendments permit changes required by the interest rate benchmark
reform to be made to hedge designations and hedge documentation
without the hedging relationship being discontinued. Any gains or
losses that could arise on transition are dealt with through the normal
requirements of HKFRS 9 to measure and recognise hedge ineffectiveness.
The amendments also provide a temporary relief to entities from having
to meet the separately identifiable requirement when an RFR is designated
as a risk component. The relief allows an entity, upon designation of
the hedge, to assume that the separately identifiable requirement is
met, provided the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component to
become separately identifiable within the next 24 months. Furthermore,
the amendments require an entity to disclose additional information to
enable users of financial statements to understand the effect of interest
rate benchmark reform on an entity’s financial instruments and risk

management strategy.

The Group had certain interest-bearing bank borrowings denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and New Taiwan dollars based on the Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR") and various Interbank Offered Rates
as at 31 December 2021. The Group expects that HIBOR will continue
to exist and the interest rate benchmark reform has not had an impact
on the Group’s HIBOR-based borrowings. For the borrowings based on
other various Interbank Offered Rates, since the interest rates of these
instruments were not replaced by RFRs during the year, the amendments
did not have any impact on the financial position and performance of
the Group. If the interest rates of these borrowings are replaced by RFRs
in a future period, the Group will apply the above-mentioned practical
expedient upon the modification of these instruments provided that the

“economically equivalent” criterion is met.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures (continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendment to HKFRS 16 issued in April 2021 extends the availability of
the practical expedient for lessees to elect not to apply lease modification
accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the
covid-19 pandemic by 12 months. Accordingly, the practical expedient
applies to rent concessions for which any reduction in lease payments
affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022, provided
the other conditions for applying the practical expedient are met. The
amendment is effective retrospectively for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 April 2021 with any cumulative effect of initially applying
the amendment recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained profits at the beginning of the current accounting period. Earlier

application is permitted.

The Group has early adopted the amendment on 1 January 2021 and
applied the practical expedient during the year ended 31 December 2021
to all rent concessions granted by the lessors that affected only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2022 as a direct consequence of the
covid-19 pandemic. A reduction in the lease payments arising from the
rent concessions of HK$14,901,000 has been accounted for as a variable
lease payment by derecognising part of the lease liabilities and crediting to
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2021. There was no impact

on the opening balance of equity as at 1 January 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3

Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting

Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that

have been issued but are not yet effective, in these consolidated financial

statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendment to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Reference to the Conceptual Framework'

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture®

Insurance Contracts’
Insurance Contracts™®

Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and HKFRS
9 — Comparative Information’

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current’™*

Disclosure of Accounting Policies”

Definition of Accounting Estimates’

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction’

Property, Plant and Equment Proceeds
before Intended Use'

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract'

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
[llustrative Examples accompanylng
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41'

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong Interpretation 5
Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October 2020

to align the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

> As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October 2020, HKFRS
4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply
HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3

Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable
to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to the
previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in June 2018 without significantly changing its
requirements. The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its
recognition principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework
to determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception
specifies that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within
the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred separately
rather than assumed in a business combination, an entity applying HKFRS
3 should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead of
the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that
contingent assets do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date.
The Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January
2022. Since the amendments apply prospectively to business combinations
for which the acquisition date is on or after the date of first application,
the Group will not be affected by these amendments on the date of
transition.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or
non-current. The amendments specify that if an entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying with specified
conditions, the entity has a right to defer settlement of the liability at
the end of the reporting period if it complies with those conditions at
that date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that
the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability. The
amendments also clarify the situations that are considered a settlement
of a liability. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

AAEEERBEAERLDA

TH

89

ma

2.3

MBEHRME

Eﬁ?@ﬁ*iﬁié%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%
(&

NSRS AR
Bz E—SERMT -

EERBRELERFIFETAE EMN
2018 6 AMME S| A BREBSE
ERASIALA M BEREREREE
B MEENBENEEBTE o ZFE
A BT IS REEREIRUEES A
BoERUABTRREERRBBZIARZ
BRR AR —BHIIMER o ZPIIME
MBTE HRAEBEREA ST LS
I7EREB (BRI EREREEES)
REENHREEANNAERIAAE
5 MZSAGBEBEEAMIERNCES
HhES  AEAEBHIEREERES
SNERES NS ERBYERFET
MU ES(ERUERERELZES)- 2
BE215% MIEMSIER - 1ot ZF
BRIEBRAEENNE R BHTHEER
- AEBBETE2022F1A1HE
RATRNZSER] - ARZEETRIE
BRKERSAERERAMSS 2 BHNE
BA  AAEERBERREIER

REEANTE -

BRI EAE1REBIABBEIEAR
B IERDEBHEEDBEARED LR
BMRITE - ZFEETEE  WERTERE
BRBENEFNZBRAEEBREGRTEEY -
AW EBFAE A 2K EARNR
CHRTEEEAE - AENP BT
ERTFELEEEAERENN NN
FE ZZEINEREHEAAEREEN
B e ZEEBTN2023F 1 A1HHIA
BFEBZ e ERER - WEBHER -
RIFREER - ZSB BRI EHASE
B EHRRENTANEATE -

> =

ANNUAL REPORT 2021
2021 4 3R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3

Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require entities
to disclose their material accounting policy information rather than their
significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information is material
if, when considered together with other information included in an
entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply
the concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures. Amendments
to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and earlier application is permitted. Since the guidance provided
in the amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory,
an effective date for these amendments is not necessary. The Group
is currently assessing the impact of the amendments on the Group's
accounting policy disclosures.

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in
accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies. Accounting
estimates are defined as monetary amounts in financial statements that
are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how
entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting
estimates. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to changes in accounting
policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur on or after the
start of that period. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, such as leases and
decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are required to recognise
a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences
arising from these transactions. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be
applied to transactions related to leases and decommissioning obligations
at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented, with any
cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained profits or other component of equity as appropriate at that date.
In addition, the amendments shall be applied prospectively to transactions
other than leases and decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is
permitted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

The Group has applied the initial recognition exception and did not
recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary
differences for transactions related to certain leases and the provision
for restoration of leased buildings. Upon initial application of these
amendments, the Group will recognise a deferred tax asset and a
deferred tax liability for deductible and taxable temporary differences
associated with right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, and recognise the
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained profits at the beginning of the earliest

comparative period presented.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling
items produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling any
such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
and shall be applied retrospectively only to items of property, plant and
equipment made available for use on or after the beginning of the earliest
period presented in the financial statements in which the entity first
applies the amendments. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial

statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing whether
a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the contract
comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate
directly to a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other costs
that relate directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used
in fulfilling the contract as well as contract management and supervision
costs). General and administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract
and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty
under the contract. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts
for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning
of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially applying
the amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to the opening
equity at the date of initial application without restating the comparative
information. The amendments are not expected to have any significant

impact on the Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3

2.4

Issued but not yet Effective Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments to
HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples accompanying HKFRS 16, and
HKAS 41. Details of the amendments that are expected to be applicable to
the Group are as follows:

J HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified
financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the
original financial liability. These fees include only those paid or
received between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid
or received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf.
An entity applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are
modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendment.
The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2022. Earlier application is permitted. The amendment is
not expected to have a significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.

o HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from the
lessor relating to leasehold improvements in lllustrative Example
13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This removes potential confusion
regarding the treatment of lease incentives when applying HKFRS
16.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair
value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value
or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired
set of activities and assets includes an input and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference
is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

Goodwill previously eliminated against consolidated retained profits

Prior to the adoption of the HKICPA's Statement of Standard Accounting
Practice 30 Business Combinations in 2001, goodwill arising on
acquisition was eliminated against consolidated retained profits in the
year of acquisition. On the adoption of HKFRS 3, such goodwill remains
eliminated against consolidated retained profits and is not recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when all or part of the
business to which the goodwill relates is disposed of or when a cash-
generating unit to which the goodwill relates becomes impaired.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, customer gold deposits,
bullion loans, derivative financial instruments and certain financial
assets at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market
for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level

input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, deferred tax
assets, financial assets, investment properties and goodwill), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit's value in use and
its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for
impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a
headquarters building) is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if
it can be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to
the smallest group of cash-generating unit.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether
there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of
that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of such an impairment loss is credited to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that

revalued asset.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and

that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group

or of a parent of the Group;

or
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b)

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(i

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group or
to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing

the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives

and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
or valuation of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this

purpose are as follows:

Freehold land
Buildings

Not depreciated

2.5%
Plant and machinery 10% to 30%
Leasehold improvements,
furniture, fixtures and
equipment
Motor vehicles

20% to 33%
30%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost or valuation of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and

adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant

asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction, which
is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs
on related borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant

and equipment when completed and ready for use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

The transitional provisions set out in paragraph 80A of HKAS 16
Property, Plant and Equipment have been adopted for property, plant and
equipment stated at valuation. As a result, those assets stated at revalued
amounts based on revaluations which were reflected in the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 1993 have not been
revalued by class at the end of the reporting period. On disposal of a
revalued asset, the relevant portion of the buildings revaluation reserve
realised in respect of the previous valuations is transferred to retained

profits as a movement in reserves.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in buildings (including the leasehold
property held as a right-of-use asset which would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property) held to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties

are stated at fair value.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in

the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in

the year of the retirement or disposal.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property
becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for such property in
accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment
and depreciation” for owned property and/or accounts for such property
in accordance with the policy stated under “Right-of-use assets” for
property held as a right-of-use asset up to the date of change in use, and
any difference at that date between the carrying amount and the fair
value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation in accordance with

HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition
at cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised
over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

The Group's intangible assets, representing eligibility rights to trade
on or through The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited (the “Futures
Exchange”), have indefinite useful lives and are tested for impairment
annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such
intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset
with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change
in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a

prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from the derecognition of an intangible asset
are measured as the difference between the net sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the relevant asset and are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in

exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for
all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The
Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use

assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

TH

AAEEERBEAERLDA

99

ma

24

MBEHRME

TESHBERE ()
B EE(FMEKRH)

TERIEEA 2 B & ERNIRFERFHRA AR
8- BYEAEZAIEBERLFERE
RAER - AERFH B EELRE
Al AREE I - YRR EVEER
BRETREEFLRE - AR AER
FHZEVEE BT RE T AR
ELREEMBFERERE -

AEBZBYEEANSEBERSHA
RGMBRARN(TBZPT ) REBRER
SHAERRAR(MZMETR S 21
A A ERAERF R NG F R ER K
RASELBUBZEREND - ZFE
EEL T IAME - ARRFH B
BE 2 F{EAFRNEGFEFG - ETE
ERACEAFHZTFRREIFETE - 1
TE AR 2B mIRER
FHENRRARFHE -

TBRRABEEMELBREBRLERS
FEFRARMEERAEEEANE I
RTBHEAZEERERABERAE
%7\]\ °

HE

AEERANRBEFEANESAEE
HEEHE - WENRBRBRKENS TE
—BRERNEGIEAC SR B EZEM -
AlZenAHExEEHE -

LB ERBABA
AEEHmAEEEERHEENEER
BERERINRDE-—BRRAES
Eo ASEHRAEERGBUELEER
fj CMEREEEREERAREE 2%
Rl o

ANNUAL REPORT 2021
2021 4 3R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Where applicable, the cost of
a right-of-use asset also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset
or the site on which it is located. Right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land
Buildings

50 years
2 to 10 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end
of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase
option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of
the asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The
lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of
lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change
in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to
future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

The Group's lease liabilities are presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)
(¢)  Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
its short-term leases of office properties, retail stores and factories
(that is those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as an

expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or when
there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an operating lease

or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each component on
a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in turnover in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over
the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are

recognised as turnover in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for as

finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value designated through other

comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the
financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group's
business model for managing them. With the exception of accounts
receivable that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially measures
a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Accounts receivable
that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out

for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value designated through other comprehensive income, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets
with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value

through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The
business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income are held within a business
model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows
and selling. Financial assets which are not held within the aforementioned
business models are classified and measured at fair value through profit or
loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its
equity investments as financial assets designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income when they meet the definition of equity
under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for
trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument
basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other
income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably, except when the Group benefits
from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset,
in which case such gains are recorded in other comprehensive income.
Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income are not subject to impairment assessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position at fair value with net changes

in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments which
the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through
other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are also recognised
as other income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the

amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of
removed

a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.,
from the Group's consolidated statement of financial position) when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in
full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of

the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and
to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the

Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group

could be required to repay.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs")
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective
interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the

contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there
has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing

of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-

looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual

cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages for
measurement of ECLs except for accounts receivable which apply the

simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance is

measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date
(but that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal

to lifetime ECLs
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Simplified approach

For accounts receivable that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified
approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the

debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings or payables, as

appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable

transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their

classification as follows:

(a)  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated

upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into
by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in
hedge relationships as defined by HKFRS 9. Separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses
on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss does not include any

interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in HKFRS 9 are satisfied. Gains
or losses on liabilities designated at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
except for the gains or losses arising from the Group’s own credit
risk which are presented in other comprehensive income with no
subsequent reclassification to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss does not include any interest charged on

these financial liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
(b)  Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in finance costs in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

(c)  Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially as
a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contracts at the higher of: (i) the ECL allowance determined in
accordance with the policy as set out in “Impairment of financial
assets”; and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability
is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as bullion contracts
and cross currency swaps, to hedge its bullion price risk and foreign
currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into
and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value
is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives are
taken directly to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and, in the case of work in
progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of production overheads. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred
to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term
deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided
that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss,

either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and

practices prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting

purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences,

except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects

neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax

losses can be utilised, except:

. when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable

profit or loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be

utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be

available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either
the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected

to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as other gain on a systematic basis over the periods

that the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of
goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in

exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the
amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be entitled
in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the customer. The
variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained
until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount
of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated

uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which provides the
customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted using the
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception. When the
contract contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price is not
adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

(a)

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods represents the net invoiced value of
goods sold, after allowances for returns, trade discounts and value
added tax and is recognised at the point in time when control of
the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the
goods.

Some contracts for the sale of jewellery through e-shops provide
customers with a right of return.

The right of return gives rise to variable consideration.

(i)

(ii)

Rights of return

For contracts which provide a customer with a right to
return the goods within a specified period, the expected
value method is used to estimate the goods that will not be
returned because this method best predicts the amount of
variable consideration to which the Group will be entitled.
The requirements in HKFRS 15 on constraining estimates of
variable consideration are applied in order to determine the
amount of variable consideration that can be included in the
transaction price. For goods that are expected to be returned,
instead of revenue, a refund liability is recognised. A right-
of-return asset (and the corresponding adjustment to cost
of sales) is also recognised for the right to recover products
from a customer.

Customer loyalty programme

The Group’s retail of jewellery and watches segment operates
a customer loyalty programme, which allows customers to
accumulate award credits when they purchase products. The
award credits can be redeemed for discounts on products
in a limited period. Under HKFRS 15, the customer loyalty
programme gives rise to a separate performance obligation
because it provides a material right to the customer and a
portion of the transaction price is allocated to the loyalty
credits awarded to customers based on the relative stand-
alone selling price.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(b)  Commission on transactions completed on the e-commerce platform

Revenue from the commission on transactions completed on the
e-commerce platform is recognised at the point in time when the

relevant transactions are completed.

() Commission on securities and futures broking

Revenue from the commission on securities and futures broking is
recognised at the point in time when the relevant contract notes

are executed.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as income in the accounting period in which they are

incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or
a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the

financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of

the dividend can be measured reliably.

Income from the sale of investments at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised on the transaction dates when the relevant contract notes are

executed.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a payment
is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group transfers
the related goods and services. Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers

control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Right-of-return assets

A right-of-return asset is recognised for the right to recover the goods
expected to be returned by customers. The asset is measured at the
former carrying amount of the goods to be returned, less any expected
costs to recover the goods and any potential decreases in the value of the
returned goods. The Group updates the measurement of the asset for any
revisions to the expected level of returns and any additional decreases in

the value of the returned goods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Refund liabilities

A refund liability is recognised for the obligation to refund some or all of
the consideration received (or receivable) from a customer and is measured
at the amount the Group ultimately expects it will have to return to
the customer. The Group updates its estimates of refund liabilities (and
the corresponding change in the transaction price) at the end of each

reporting period.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
to the success of the Group's operations. Employees (including directors)
of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments

("equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for grants after 7
November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external valuer

using a binomial model.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee benefit
expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the
end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and

end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the
likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group's
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within the grant date
fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting
conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an
award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are

also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance
and/or service conditions have not been met, no expense is recognised.
When awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions
are treated as vesting irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service

conditions are satisfied.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share

dilution in the computation of earnings per share.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Employee benefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their
employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under certain
circumstances, such leave which remains untaken at the end of the
reporting period is permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the
respective employees in the following year. An accrual is made at the end
of the reporting period for the expected future cost of such paid leave

earned during the year by the employees and carried forward.

Pension schemes and other retirement benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in Hong Kong for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ relevant income and are charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an independently

administered fund.

The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group's employer
voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the Group when the
employee leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting fully, in

accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China and Taiwan are required to participate in central pension schemes
operated by the respective local municipal governments. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute certain percentages of their payroll costs
to the central pension schemes. The contributions are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as they become payable in

accordance with the rules of the respective central pension schemes.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds, and they are expensed in the

period in which they are incurred.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as liabilities when they are approved by the
shareholders in general meetings. Proposed final dividends are disclosed in

the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the
Company’s memorandum of association and bye-laws grant the Directors
the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends
are recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed and

declared.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollar, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included in
the consolidated financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in other
income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of
the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with
the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item
(i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the date
of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises
the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the
Group determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the
advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries operating outside Hong
Kong are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into Hong Kong dollar at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are translated into
Hong Kong dollar at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of subsidiaries operating outside Hong Kong are translated into
Hong Kong dollar at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of subsidiaries operating outside
Hong Kong which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollar at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

(a)

(b)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group applied the following judgements that significantly
affect the determination of the amount and timing of revenue from
contracts with customers:

Determining the method to estimate variable consideration and

assessing the constraint for the retail of jewellery
Certain contracts for the retail of jewellery through e-shops
include a right of return that give rises to variable consideration.
In estimating the variable consideration, the Group is required to
exercise judgement to determine to use either the expected value
method or the most likely amount method based on which method
better predicts the amount of consideration to which it will be
entitled.

The Group determined that the expected value method is the
appropriate method to use in estimating the variable consideration
for the sale of jewellery with rights of return, given the large
number of customer contracts that have similar characteristics.

Before including any amount of variable consideration in the
transaction price, the Group considers whether the amount of
variable consideration is constrained. The Group determined that
the estimates of variable consideration are not constrained based on
its historical experience, business forecast and the current economic
conditions. In addition, the uncertainty on the variable consideration
will be resolved within a short time frame.

Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into property leases on its investment
property portfolio. The Group has determined, based on an
evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as
the lease term not constituting a major part of the economic life of
the property and the present value of the minimum lease payments
not amounting to substantially all the fair value of the property,
that it retains substantially all the significant risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of these properties which are leased out
and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38

Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates (continued)

Judgements (continued)

(©

(d)

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts
with renewal options

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and
termination options. The Group applies judgement in evaluating
whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate
the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create
an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or
termination. After the commencement date, the Group reassesses
the lease term if there is a significant event or change in
circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to
exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate the
lease (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or
significant customisation to the leased asset).

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other
assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion
that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be
sold separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions could
not be sold separately, the property is an investment property only
if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is
made on an individual property basis to determine whether ancillary
services are so significant that a property does not qualify as an
investment property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

(a)

Variable consideration for returns
The Group estimates variable consideration to be included in the
transaction price for the sale of jewellery with rights of return.

The Group has developed a statistical model for forecasting sales
returns. The model uses the historical return data of each product
to come up with expected return percentages. These percentages
are applied to determine the expected value of the variable
consideration. Any significant changes in experience as compared to
historical return pattern will impact the expected return percentages
estimated by the Group.

The Group updates its assessment of expected returns half yearly
and the refund liabilities are adjusted accordingly. Estimates
of expected returns are sensitive to changes in circumstances
and the Group's past experience regarding returns may not be
representative of customers’ actual returns in the future. As at 31
December 2021, the amount recognised as refund liabilities was
HK$720,000 (2020: HK$787,000) for the expected returns.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38

Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(b)

(©

(d)

Fair value of unlisted equity investments

The Group's unlisted equity investments have been valued using
the income capitalisation method and asset-based method. This
valuation requires the Group to make estimates about capitalisation
rates, and hence they are subject to uncertainty. The fair value
of the unlisted equity investments as at 31 December 2021 was
HK$36,424,000 (2020: HK$32,193,000). Further details are
included in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on accounts receivable

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for accounts
receivable. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., by geography, product type and customer type and
rating).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the next
year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in the retail
sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes
in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group's
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions
may also not be representative of a customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Group’s accounts
receivable is disclosed in note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on other financial assets

The measurement of expected losses on other financial assets
requires judgement including, in particular, the estimation of the
amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values
when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a
significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a
number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of
allowances.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk for exposures since initial
recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring over the
expected life between the reporting date and the date of initial
recognition. The Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort for this purpose. This includes quantitative and qualitative
information and also, forward-looking analysis. The carrying
amounts of other financial assets at amortised cost are given in
note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(e)

U]

(9)

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a
lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR")
to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the
Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a
similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.
The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have to
pay”, which requires estimation when no observable rates are
available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing
transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms
and conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in the
subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR using
observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when available and
is required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the
subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies. Further
details are contained in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets at the end
of each reporting period. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is based on its value in use. In assessing value-in-
use, management estimates the expected future cash flows from
the asset or cash-generating unit and chooses a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The
carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets as at 31 December 2021 were HK$1,117,179,000 (2020:
HK$1,019,130,000) and HK$831,916,000 (2020: HK$793,676,000),
respectively. Further details are included in notes 15 and 17 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38

Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(h)

Measurement of fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the consolidated statement of
financial position at their fair value. The fair value was based on
valuation on these properties conducted by an independent firm of
professionally qualified valuers using property valuation techniques
which involve making assumptions on certain market conditions.
Favourable or unfavourable changes to these assumptions would
result in changes in the fair value of the Group's investment
properties and the corresponding adjustments to the gain or loss
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The
carrying amount of investment properties as at 31 December 2021
was HK$472,897,000 (2020: HK$332,649,000). Further details are
given in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimation costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal. These estimates, based on the current market conditions
and the historical experience in selling goods of a similar nature,
include, but not limited to, economic outlook, sales forecasts
and the forecast market value for the inventory items. They could
change significantly as a result of changes in market conditions.
The Group reassesses the estimation at the end of each reporting
period. The carrying amount of inventories is given in note 21 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Operating Segment Information

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units
based on their products and services and the Group’s reportable operating
segments are as follows:

Continuing operations

J the retail of jewellery and watches segment produces and sells
jewellery products and distributes watches for the Group's retail
business and operates retail stores mainly in Mainland China, Hong
Kong, Macau and Taiwan

. the wholesale of precious metals segment trades precious metals to
wholesale customers

o the e-commerce platform segment trades jewellery set with
laboratory-grown diamond

. the other businesses segment comprises, principally, the investment
in properties for their rental income and capital appreciation
potential, and other jewellery related businesses

Discontinued operation

J the securities and futures broking segment provides brokering and
dealing services for securities and futures

Management monitors the results of the Group’'s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation
and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment profit, which is a measure of adjusted profit before
tax from continuing operations. The adjusted profit before tax from
continuing operations is measured consistently with the Group's profit
before tax from continuing operations except that dividend income is
excluded from such measurement.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the
selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then prevailing
market prices.

Following the commencement of operation of e-commerce platform
during the current year, a change on the reporting structure of operating
segments was made for facilitating management to make decisions about
operating matters, resources allocation and performance assessment.
Accordingly, an additional reportable operating segment of “E-commerce
platform” was separately disclosed.

ma

MBEHRME

REDHER

REEME - AREREES RS
FEBER - MALEZ T 2HAEHH
T -

SRR

. FERARTESUALEEIE
EEHWERUEREES RS B
i AT ERDEAR B -
RFIREEEETEE

o EBREHBOMARBEFLERER
B

i

. ETHETAHUAEEANER
ERE R FEER

o  HEXBOBIRAREMEUR

BHESRAREREEESN AR
Hi A EREER

RIUIEERE

o BHRRIHMELLHBRHUESLE
B BEREERY

EERBOREZRASRBEENMIEE
PMEHERD B R KRR ZRE - DH
KBTI 2H 0 2haMETEE - &
REFELEXB L BBANEN 2515 -
RRBRBEEXT 2 RBANR T 28
T EA R BIRHE LS X5 2 BB AT A 7
i%ﬁﬁ%@—ﬁ'ﬁ%%WA$@%E
NEHELERIRBHETE =&
EFEABATE -

EFHETARAFEMBEER  ~&
EHELN B RERBIELED - UE
TEEBHLEERE  BRNERKRRFE
fERORE - Bt - FRAIEFRHEYRIZ
HEAEHMEEN BT AEBRE -

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED /120  ANNUAL REPORT 2021

AAEEEEBEBEAERRFA

2021

F ¥R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4,

Operating Segment Information (continued)

Year ended
31 December 2021

Segment revenue

Sales to external customers
Intersegment sales

Other revenue

Reconciliation:
Elimination of intersegment sales

Segment results
Reconciliation:
Dividend income

Profit before tax

Note
i3

BE2NENANA
LEE

Ak 5
HEFHRER

mEpsaeE

s

HEnmEE

AREE
-
REMA

WA

mEMBERMEE

4. ReEIVBERE)

Discontinued

Continuing operations operation

FREERY EIlE s

Retail Wholesale Total for Securities

of jewellery  of precious  E-commerce Other  continuing  and futures
and watches metals platform  businesses  operations broking Total

KER i Fig i
EHZE  HORME ETHEYA R EHakt HELg Chl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén Tén Tén T T Tén Tén
19,921,938 2,033,068 62 20,209 21,975,277 13197 21,988,474
- 548,901 - 1,066 549,967 - 549,967
- - - 12,282 12,282 - 12,282
19,921,938 2,581,969 62 33,557 22,531,526 13197 22,550,723
(549,967) (549,967)
21,987,559 22,000,756
981,155 18,002 (35,534) 10,311 973,934 (100,309) 873,625
31,117 311
1,005,711 905,402
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Operating Segment Information (continued)

Year ended
31 December 2021

Other segment information

Interest income

Net fair value gain on investment
properties

Net fair value gain on bullion
loans designated as at fair value
through profit or loss

Net fair value loss/(gain) on
derivative financial instruments
- transactions not qualifying as
hedges

Net fair value gain on financial

assets at fair value through profit

or loss

Net gain on bullion loans designated

as at fair value through profit or
loss
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of
derivative financial instruments
Net loss on disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment

Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Impairment of accounts receivable

Impairment of receivables arising
from securities and futures
broking

Write-down of inventories to net
realisable value

Finance costs

Capital expenditure

BZ21%E12831A
LEE

A Es
FISHA
REME ATEERNE

BERRATEETERS
LEEREENATER
B

fTEeRIAZ ATERE
BR/ (k) - Tra%
HEELRS

RATEEFABENHE
REAYEERNE

BEARATEETEES
LRERERRNE

HEFEERIATER/
HEn . wEnaEER
58

B
EHREELAE
BiERAE

ERRAEELEL Y
FoAE

HHEFEETRRRE

HHER
AAMRR
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4. ReEIVBERE)
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
FREERY RILEEER
Retail Wholesale Total for Securities
of jewellery  of precious  E-commerce Other  continuing  and futures
and watches metals platform  businesses  operations broking
KER b3 B #ER
ERZE  HORME ETHEYA R EHakt HELg
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR AR AR TER TR
(13,600) ) (1) 3) (13,606) (11,217)
- - - (1,364) (1,364) -
(16,025) - - - (16,025) -
5,846 (899) - - 4,947 -
- - - (570) (570) -
(17,276) - - - (17,276) -
(21,124) m - - (20,407) -
4,744 - - - 4,744 281
310,166 - 351 - 310,517 131
502,469 - 1,093 - 503,562 1,926
60,726 - - - 60,726 -
- - - - - 92,907
10,661 - - - 10,661 -
60,426 - 60 - 60,486 3,064
396,514 - 306 21,286 418,106 -

Total
At
HK$'000
T#En

(24.823)

(1,364)

(16,025)

4,947

(570)

(17,276)
(20,407)
5,025
310,648
505,488
60,726
92,907
10,661

63,550
418,106

ABEEEEBEKBEERAR

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

2021

FE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4,

Operating Segment Information (continued)

Year ended
31 December 2020

Segment revenue

Sales to external customers
Intersegment sales

Other revenue

Reconciliation:
Elimination of intersegment
sales

Segment results
Reconciliation:
Dividend income

Profit before tax

HZ2020512831H

LLFE

7 Bl
HEFIREP
REHE
e

D -
HENBHE

ARER
T -
BREBA

BRH AT

mEMBERMEE

4. REIBERE)

Discontinued

Continuing operations operation
BEREEK RIHEEEH
Retail ~ Wholesale Total for  Securities
of jewellery  of precious Other  continuing  and futures
and watches metals  businesses  operations broking Total
GER B FHR
BRTE SeBHE  HUEXE  EBes  HEER Ch
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 TR TET TAT TAT TAT TR
(Restated)  (Restated)
(E31) (E31)
5
13,097,720 1,885,388 2,958 14,986,066 34,879 15,020,945
= 450,778 2,532 453,310 = 453,310
- - 11,475 11,475 - 11,475
13,097,720 2,336,166 16,965 15,450,851 34,879 15,485,730
(453,310) (453,310)
14,997,541 15,032,420
914,506 11,484 (7,619) 918,371 (22,829) 895,542
25,378 25,378
943,749 920,920
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBERERKE

4.  Operating Segment Information (continued) 4. REITBERE)

Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
HEREEE RIHEE %
Retail Wholesale Total for Securities
of jewellery  of precious Other continuing  and futures

and watches metals businesses operations broking Total

KER ﬁ%f@% FHR \
BERTE  HEEME Hin%k £Badt Hege Ch

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FTEL THL THL TET T
(Restated) (Restated)

(E31) (E31)
Year ended HZ2020512A31A
31 December 2020 LLEE
Other segment information Hfi5HE&
Interest income B UTA (27,028) (5) (5) (27,038) (35,892) (62,930)
Net fair value loss on REMEZ
investment properties NFEEFEE = = 1,811 1,811 - 1,811
Net fair value gain on bullion #87E AR AFEE
loans designated as at fair ~ FIEEEZELE
value through profitor loss S &N T BEF
s (10,247) - - (10,247) - (10,247)
Net fair value loss/(gain) THEERTAY
on derivative financial NEEBEF
instruments - transactions  &518 /(U z%) -
not qualifying as hedges TREHPER
235 (2,111) 150 - (1,961) - (1,961)
Net fair value loss on BRAFEBEGFAER
financial assets at fair value ~ BV EEE 2
through profit or loss NFEEFEE = = 3,760 3,760 - 3,760
Net loss on bullion loans EEARATEE
designated as at fairvalue I EBEZELE
through profit or loss fEEFEE 209,464 - = 209,464 = 209,464
Net loss on disposal of HEMESMTIA
derivative financial FEE
instruments 19,855 1,591 = 21,446 = 21,446
Net loss on disposal of items & W% « #e2 N
of property, plant and HEEEFEE
equipment 4,880 - - 4,830 - 4,880
Depreciation of property, — #73 - R RREZ
plant and equipment TE 276,438 - 253 276,691 1,203 277,894
Depreciation of right-of-use {FREEEZITE
assets 649,823 - 609 650,432 3,877 654,309
Impairment of property, M HER
plant and equipment HERE 4,063 - - 4,063 = 4,063
Impairment of right-of-use  fEFEEERE
assets 169,572 - - 169,572 - 169,572
Impairment of accounts JEWER TR E
receivable 20,982 - - 20,982 - 20,982
Impairment of receivables & K EELEL
arising from securities and 2 FEUER ZUR(E
futures broking - = = = 44,076 44,076
Write-down of inventories to il $&17 & & 7] £
net realisable value BFE 29,198 - - 29,198 - 29,198
Finance costs B%ER 76,100 - 37 76,137 11,727 87,864
Capital expenditure BARMRY 243,260 = 902 244,162 250 244,412
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4,

Operating Segment Information (continued)

(a)

(b)

Geographical information

Revenue from external customers — Continuing operations

Mainland China B R BE
Hong Kong and Macau B8 RRM
Taiwan =E
Other regions HoAh 3t [

The revenue information of continuing operations above is based
on the locations of the customers.

Non-current assets

Mainland China B A BE
Hong Kong and Macau N
Taiwan Y-

The non-current asset information above is based on the locations
of the assets and excludes financial assets designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income and deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

The turnover from the Group's largest customer amounted to less
than 10% of the Group's total turnover for the current and prior
years.

mEMBERMEE

4. REIBERE)
(@) HEEH
HETHIKEFZ Wit - HEEE

E
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
(Restated)
(E71))
14,316,314 8,686,658
7,481,254 6,159,755
189,929 151,128
62 =

21,987,559 14,997,541

D@ e R 2 R ER TR

BEMELRED -
HRBEE

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
TE&RT TAT
1,465,415 1,243,670
1,142,136 1,079,809
39,675 31,606
2,647,226 2,355,085

L ERBEEBH N REEME
WwEE D WABREEEARAF
BEFALBEARENIBEE
RERBIREE °

(b) EBREIEEFZEH

RAFER FFEREAEERA
R EEROTERBEREY
9\5/\‘\10% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBERERKE

Turnover 5. #XE
Revenue from the following activities has been included in turnover from REFBEEERB L ERAREATRE
continuing operations: 2 Mg
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET THT
(Restated)
(Z31)
Revenue from contracts with customers KEEFEHZ W 21,975,277 14,986,066
Revenue from other sources KER M2 W
Gross rental income from investment properties REMFLEHN 2 BHS LA
operating leases:
Other lease payments, including fixed payments HinAEHE - BEEEMNK 12,282 11,475
21,987,559 14,997,541
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEHzWE
() Disaggregated revenue information () DB EEH
Retail of Wholesale
jewellery of precious E-commerce Other
Segments 28 and watches metals platform businesses Total
KER
EHTE ESBHE  ETHEYR Hi%H &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT Thx TR FHET
For the year ended BZ2021512A318
31 December 2021 ILFE
Types of goods or services &R RHER
Sale of goods EmiEE 19,921,938 2,033,068 - 20,209 21,975,215
Commission on transactions AEFEETFAMTH
completed on e-commerce X FZ A%
platform - - 62 - 62
Total revenue from contracts KERFA X2 B
with customers 19,921,938 2,033,068 62 20,209 21,975,277
Geographical areas WEmE
Mainland China A AR 14,315,010 - - - 14,315,010
Hong Kong and Macau ERRRMN 5,416,999 2,033,068 - 20,209 7,470,276
Taiwan 28 189,929 - - - 189,929
Other regions Hbig - - 62 - 62
Total revenue from contracts RERFA 42 B3
with customers 19,921,938 2,033,068 62 20,209 21,975,277
Timing of revenue KERANE
recognition
Transferred at a point in time 732k 19,921,938 2,033,068 62 20,209 21,975,271
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DS

Turnover (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(i)

Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

Segments

For the year ended
31 December 2020

Types of goods or services
Sale of goods

Geographical areas
Mainland China

Hong Kong and Macau
Taiwan

Total revenue from contracts
with customers

Timing of revenue recognition

Transferred at a point in time

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED /127  ANNUAL REPORT 2021

mEMBERMEE

5. BEHE(E)
REEFAH 2N (H)
() SEREEHE)
Retail of Wholesale
jewellery of precious Other
SR and watches metals businesses Total
BEX
BHTE ESBHE Hib % =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FHET FET FEL
(Restated)
(E31)
BZ20205
12A31BLEE
EmBRGER
EmiHE 13,097,720 1,885,388 2,958 14,986,066
EH 5
AR B KB 8,685,590 = = 8,685,590
B8 MR 4,261,002 1,885,388 2,958 6,149,348
= 151,128 = = 151,128
REBFAEH
kLo 13,097,720 1,885,388 2,958 14,986,066
Uy i AR
T s 13,097,720 1,885,388 2,958 14,986,066
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DS

(i)

mEMBERMEE

Turnover (continued) 5. EEHE(E
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) REEERH 2 (H)
Disaggregated revenue information (continued) ()  DEWm AR (E)
Set out below the reconciliation of the revenue from contracts to XQ%}E Bz W AR
customers to the amounts disclosed in the segment information: BESBIHENT
Retail of Wholesale
jewellery of precious E-commerce Other
Segments 28 and watches metals platform businesses Total
HER
BHRIE ESEME ETHEYR A% B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TiEn
For the year ended BZ2011%
31 December 2021 12A31HLEE
Segment revenue 7 ElE 19,921,938 2,581,969 62 33,557 22,531,526
Other revenue Hblzs - - - (12,282) (12,282)
Intersegment adjustments AR R
and eliminations - (548,901) - (1,066) (549,967)
Total revenue from contracts KEEFAH)
with customers s 19,921,938 2,033,068 62 20,209 21,975,277
Retail of Wholesale
jewellery of precious Other
Segments DA and watches metals businesses Total
HRE K
BHRTE SoBHE H i &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHT FHT
(Restated)
(E31)
For the year ended HZ2020F
31 December 2020 12A31BLELEE
Segment revenue D EBUk =S 13,097,720 2,336,166 16,965 15,450,851
Other revenue HA Uy - - (11,475) (11,475)
Intersegment adjustments WA K ¥4
and eliminations - (450,778) (2,532) (453,310)
Total revenue from contracts REBEEH
with customers 2Bl 13,097,720 1,885,388 2,958 14,986,066
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. Turnover (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(i)

(i)

Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

The following table shows the amount of revenue recognised in the
current reporting period that was included in the contract liabilities
at the beginning of the reporting period:

Revenue recognised that was included in

contract liabilities at the beginning of B
the reporting period:
Sale of goods EmiEE

Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of goods

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the goods
and payment is mainly on cash and credit card settlement, except
for corporate clients and wholesale customers, where payment is
due within 60 days from delivery. Some contracts provide customers
with a right of return which gives rise to variable consideration
subject to constraint.

Commission on transactions completed on the e-commerce platform
The performance obligation is satisfied upon the completion of the
relevant transactions on the e-commerce platform.

At the end of the reporting period, the amounts of transaction
prices allocated to the remaining performance obligations
(unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) are expected to be recognised
as revenue within one year from contract inception. As permitted
under HKFRS 15, the Group has elected the practical expedient
of not disclosing the remaining performance obligations for these
types of contracts.

mEMBERMEE

RESHOBIIAGNEREL

5. ERE(R)

REEF &2 ()

() PEREERE)
TRETRAREHMAERL
;i%mﬁﬂAmw%1zwm$
A

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE7 FBT
108,941 88,610

(i)  EBAIEMF
AEERNETZABER B DM
T~

EmiHE

BOEERRINEMBER - R
EEPRBBERF TINR 60
A2 - HEFRAEIENRS
LERR&E - BNENRTFEE
lzﬁ{i% CHEERBHRZA

REFBEFEITZHRZ 2%
BHOEENEETHEFA LTK
HERPEERX °

RBEREK  DETFRSBBEHESL
(RBEAOXBLARABT)INRZ S
BIBHEN A RFRRE —FRER
Bl - REFBU RS ELE
1SSFT AT AEBEEEENT
BEF%  THREHEARNF S
BHEME

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED (129 ANNUAL REPORT 2021

AT

IH

EAEEEHRBEAER

2021 £ i



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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6.  Profit before Tax from Continuing Operations 6. BHESEEBEIKRBANEF
The Group’s profit before tax from continuing operations is arrived at REERERFBELEER 2BRBATEFE
after charging/(crediting): mer/(GEA)
2021 2020
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BisE FTHERT FAT
(Restated)
(Z351)
Cost of inventories sold SHE R AR 16,458,496 10,617,506
Write-down of inventories to net WEFEZERFEE'
realisable value' 10,661 29,198
Depreciation of property, plant M BBERBBINE
and equipment 310,517 276,691
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEEZIE 503,562 650,432
Auditor's remuneration ZEA I & 3,591 3,048
Lease payments not included in the HEHESERTEBELA
measurement of lease liabilities 2 HEFIE 912,045 654,327
Covid-19-related rent concessions HHAE AL TH 2019 %R S 6
from lessors 22 ER 17(b) (14,901) (73,270)
Gain on termination of leases RIERE 2 s (7,204) (2,371)
Employee benefit expense’ (excluding EERAAZ (TREEZHE
Directors' emoluments (note 8)): (K¥zE8)) :
Wages and salaries ITERF® 1,438,902 1,228,609
Pension scheme contributions RIRE IS 247,426 134,496
Less: Forfeited contributions B BRI (280) (41)
Net pension scheme contributions’ BAREBIETFERE’ 247,146 134,455
1,686,048 1,363,064
Impairment of property, plant ME - EEREERE
and equipment* 15 = 4,063
Impairment of right-of-use assets® FREEERE" 17(a) - 169,572
Impairment of accounts receivable® PR BRSO E 22 60,726 20,982
Direct operating expenses (including AEHe 2 RENFEEECERY
repairs and maintenance) arising on (BREHERRE)
rental-earning investment properties 1,385 1,028
Net fair value loss/(gain) on investment REWMEZ NFEBTEE/
properties’ (Yzs)* 16 (1,364) 1,811
Net fair value gain on bullion loans BERBRATEEIERAEY
designated as at fair value E¢BEENRTEEFNE"
through profit or loss* (16,025) (10,247)
Net fair value loss/(gain) on derivative TEEMITAZ AT EEFER
financial instruments — transactions (k) - THEUREREZR S
not qualifying as hedges® 4,947 (1,961)
Net fair value loss/(gain) on financial BATEEFABRNHBEE .
assets at fair value through AEEEFER ()
profit or loss’ (570) 3,760
Net loss/(gain) on bullion loans designated 3§ E AL AT EE EREZ
as at fair value through profit or loss ECBREFER/ (&) (17,276) 209,464
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of derivative HEMTESBT AFER(WF)°
financial instruments’ (20,407) 21,446
Net loss on disposal of items of property, HEME  RERZBBRBFER
plant and equipment 4,744 4,880



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBERERKE

6.  Profit before Tax from Continuing Operations (continued) 6. BESEERIKRBAEF(E)
2021 2020
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
(Restated)
(E71)
Interest income® FBUA® (13,606) (27,038)
Dividend income from listed investments® FHREZREMAC (30,889) (24,360)
Dividend income from unlisted investments® FELETREZ BEWA® (888) (1,018)
Government grants™’ BEmes (21,937) (100,573)
Design fee paid to a related party® REEA T HEHRTE® = 84
Foreign exchange differences, net® Ex=mE g (31,816) (46,163)
This balance is included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated ! EHREeEReBaR EIHEKAK]

statement of profit or loss.

The employee benefit expense included an amount of HK$4,183,000 (2020:
HK$3,595,000) paid to a Director’s family members as employee emoluments.

At 31 December 2021, the Group had forfeited contributions available to
reduce its contributions to the pension schemes in future years of approximately
HK$1,000 (2020: HK$255,000)

These balances are included in “Other losses, net” on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

The net gain on bullion loans designated as at fair value through profit or loss of
HK$17,276,000 (2020: net loss of HK$209,464,000) and the net gain on disposal
of derivative financial instruments included a net gain on bullion contracts of

l:p o

EERFHAIOEIN T —REEZRK
KEEAREEME 2% 54,183,000 T
(20204 : 3,595,000787T) °

R2021512 A31 8 « AEE A ARE
RRFERKSFTEMRR 2 ERKRETA
/41,0005 (2020 FF : 255,000587T) °

hEEHRBEERG RS
BREIF -

5K EIHE A&

EEARATEAEICREZESBE
&% W % &17,276,0005% 7T(20204F -
FE518209,464,0008 0) R BIEELE

HK$23,573,000 (2020: net loss of HK$21,446,000), which are included in “Cost TESRMIEFRAZESCEBAHNTFR
of sales” on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The purpose # /23,573,000 7T(20204F : FE 18
of the above bullion transactions entered into by the Group is to manage the 21,446,000 7T) WELBERREGZS
Group's bullion price risk. Such loans and contracts did not meet the criteria for Bk F[HEKRAK|d - AEEFTY E

hedge accounting. The net gain on disposal of derivative financial instruments also
included a net loss on cross currency swaps of HK$3,166,000 (2020: Nil), which
is included in “Other income, net” on the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

These balances are included in “Other income, net” on the face of the

consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Government grants for the year mainly represent subsidies received from
municipal governments in Mainland China. In the prior year, government grants
mainly represent subsidies received in connection with the support from the Anti-

MECBRPEEEEARACASEE
BER ZEREERANLTHEE
BHEE S HETESRTAF
RRENBEXNEEEAE P EHERA
3,166,000 7C(20204F : L) - ke
FERESARAREIEMRA - FE]
o

li*ﬁ?@a& e BER E[H MR
FEIR

FRBR R EZEN P RAERRAK
B2 H88E - RE—5F  BUFmREEEE
REBRAITRRRAHZNRE SR}

epidemic Fund of the Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. X MR fBE - REWMAALEARE
There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these subsidies. BRI S AETE o
This balance is included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the consolidated 8 ERBEEGRABRR EIHERE]

statement of profit or loss. The design fee paid to a related party, who is a
Director’s family member, was determined in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group.

EF"r‘rﬂﬁﬁ%gﬁ/\i(f—& LEFORKME)
XN RABDAEEER R —RELE
BHERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBERERKE

7.  Finance Costs 7. BIKEAR
An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations is as follows: REBEREER S BRBEASNMT
2021 2020
FEx FET
(Restated)
(E71)
Interest on bank loans, overdrafts RITEFR BIREMER
and other loans ZFIE 18,859 30,052
Interest on lease liabilities HESEFS 41,627 46,085
60,486 76,137
8.  Directors’ Emoluments 8. EEMe
Directors’ emoluments for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, BiE LR Al BB A BEHIE 383(1)
section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (@) (b)~ (o) K (f) 16 ] 1 R (2 B8 & = A
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of mBRBRPIE2H AFE2EEME
Directors) Regulation, are as follows: BEMOT
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FET
Fees we 3,122 3,237
Other emoluments: HAh & -
Salaries and allowances e RoER 6,491 5,983
Discretionary bonuses paid and payable B RERBIEEL 1,786 718
Pension scheme contributions RIREFHEIHER 110 97
8,387 6,798
11,509 10,035
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Directors’ Emoluments (continued)

mEMBERMEE

An analysis of the emoluments paid and payable to the Directors during

the year is as follows:

2021

Executive Directors:
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing
Ms. Genevieve CHOW Karwing”

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun”
Mr. LEE Ka Lun”
Dr. LO King Man”
Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung"

2020

Executive Directors:
Mr. Vincent CHOW Wing Shing
Dr. Gerald CHOW King Sing
Mr. Winston CHOW Wun Sing

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Stephen TING Leung Huel
Mr. CHUNG Pui Lam
Dr. CHAN Bing Fun”
Mr. LEE Ka Lun*
Dr. LO King Man”*
Mr. Stephen LAU Man Lung”*

8. EEME(E)
FRNENRERTESZMEHTOT :
Discretionary Pension
Salaries and  bonuses paid scheme
Fees allowances  and payable contributions Total
HeR B RES Big
ok - 4.1 BB SRR &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT Tz TR T#ER
YrEs:
Eh % 398 3,295 901 = 4,594
AR B & 333 305 25 10 673
AR EE 278 2,679 793 89 3,839
Azaxt” 50 212 67 1 340
1,059 6,491 1,786 110 9,446
FUTEE:
TRELE 333 - - - 333
EMMEE 333 = = = 333
[ 333 - - - 333
ERMEL" 398 - - = 398
ESXEL” 333 - - - 333
DG 333 - - = 333
2,063 = = = 2,063
3,122 6,491 1,786 110 11,509
HITEES:
LGSt 419 3,146 373 = 3,938
Rk B 351 290 25 15 681
BRKEE 293 2,547 320 82 3,242
1,063 5,983 718 97 7,861
FUTES:
TRBRAE 351 = = = 351
EMMEE 351 = = = 351
RiREEE " 351 = = = 351
ERBAE" 419 - = = 419
EEXfEL” 351 = - = 351
By 351 = S = 351
2,174 = = = 2,174
3,237 5,983 718 97 10,035

Appointed on 1 November 2021
Independent Non-executive Directors
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10.

Directors’ Emoluments (continued)

There were no other emoluments payable to the Independent Non-
executive Directors during the year (2020: Nil).

During the year, 9 (2020: 9) directors of the Company waived emoluments
totalling HK$249,000 (2020: HK$284,000).

Senior Management’s Emoluments

The emoluments paid to the members of senior management by band are
as follows:

mEMBERMEE

8. EEHL(A)
FRTELMWEENFBLIIERNTES
(20204 : T L) °

FR - KRBIIA(2020F 9% )EE
WEA $£ 249,000 8 TE B4 (2020 %
284,000/87T) °

9. BHE

RANMSREBABINZMEMT

e
>_
\In
=
ki

Number of individuals

AB

2021 2020
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 /&7 E 1,500,000/& 7T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 & 7T £ 2,000,000 7T = 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 702 2,500,000 57T 1 -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 87T Z 3,000,000 87T 1 2
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 87T % 4,000,000 87T 1 -
4 4

Note : PfsE -

Ms. Genevieve CHOW Karwing was the senior management of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2021 before her appointment as an Executive Director of the
Company on 1 November 2021.

Five Highest Paid Employees

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year included
two (2020: two) Directors, details of whose emoluments are set out in
note 8 above. Details of the emoluments for the year of the remaining
three (2020: three) non-Director highest paid employees are as follows:

Salaries and allowances He K2R
Discretionary bonuses paid and payable BN REMNBIEEL
Pension scheme contributions RIKSFTEIMER

The number of non-Director highest paid employees whose emoluments
fell within the following bands is as follows:

REBEZE2021F12A31BEEE AL LR
202111 A1 BEZAEABARRRITESHAR
SEEHEEAS -

10. LEBESHHES

FRAAKERERRFHERRERS
(2020 : MB)EF - HHAMEER
B LS - AEEHE=4(2020
FZR)BRRFHFESRE ZFAM
LERMT

2021 2020
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TR THET
7,566 7,906
1,748 542
141 251
9,455 8,699

MENTFUTER 2 ZEHEEEES
PN ¢ NE

Number of individuals

AB
2021 2020
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 87T = 3,000,000 87T 1 2
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 87T Z 3,500,00078 7T 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 /& 7C% 4,000,000 78 7T 1 -
3 3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11.

Income Tax 11.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2020:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong
during the year, except for one subsidiary of the Group which is a
qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The
first HK$2,000,000 (2020: HK$2,000,000) of assessable profits of this
subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2020: 8.25%) and the remaining assessable
profits are taxed at 16.5% (2020: 16.5%).

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Corporate Income
Tax (the “CIT Law") and Implementation Regulation of the CIT Law, the
tax rate of the Mainland China subsidiaries is 25% (2020: 25%). Taxes
on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax
prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

ma

MBEHRME

Frigs
EENCHDBREAREBEE 2T
& & B0 A A B % 16.5% (20204 ¢
16.5%)BfE - AEE—RMBARR
Oh - ZABHEMBHFESHEGE 2
Bl ZHBRARZERHENS &
2,000,000/ 7T (2020 4F : 2,000,000 %
TT ) 1 8.25% (20204 : 8.25%) 5t & -
i 7K #2 FE ER B A1 A3 16.5% (2020 F -
16.5%):t & -

BEREARAMBACEMERE(AE
FIERAD RECEMERAERMA
REAREMB AR ZFEAE25% (2020
1 25%) o Eibit @ R R 2 BB
TEAEEREEEREEER ZBAN

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FET
(Restated)
(EZ351)
Current — Hong Kong KE - B
Charge for the year FRRIEA 11,851 12,9M
Underprovision/(overprovision) in prior years BEFERETR/ (RERE) (1,014) 1,771
Current — Mainland China and elsewhere AE - REARE R E MR
Charge for the year FARIA 187,115 300,171
Underprovision/(overprovision) in prior years BEFERETR/ (RERE) 372 (804)
Deferred R 67,007 (9,438)
Total tax charge for the year from REREER 2 FNHIBEE
continuing operations 265,331 304,611
Total tax charge for the year from the BRI ETR 2 FNTIR B
discontinued operation 302 71,845
265,633 376,456
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11.

Income Tax (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax charge applicable to profit before tax at the
statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which major operating subsidiaries of
the Group are domiciled to the tax charge at the effective tax rate is as

follows:

Profit before tax from continuing operations
Loss before tax from the discontinued operation

Tax charge at the Hong Kong statutory tax rate
of 16.5% (2020: 16.5%)

Difference in tax rates applied for specific
provinces or enacted by local authorities

Adjustments in respect of current tax of
previous periods

Estimated income not subject to tax

Estimated expenses not deductible for tax

Effect of withholding tax at 5% or 10%
(2020: 5% or 10%) on the distributable
profits of the Group's subsidiaries
established in the People’s Republic of China

Tax losses utilised from previous periods

Estimated tax losses not recognised

Tax losses derecognised

Tax charge at the Group's effective rate

Tax charge from continuing operations at the
effective rate

Tax charge from the discontinued operation at
the effective rate

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED /136 ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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TREAEEEZLEMNE N A ML
FIERAEER ZAEMRFETERR
BREADEM 2B - ARIEEERERFE

mEMBERMEE

ZRRTERITHER
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FEx FET
BECEER 2 BBANEF 1,005,711 943,749
R\ ER 7 BRI ATE R (100,309) (22,829)
905,402 920,920
REBLEENE16.5%

(20204 : 16.5% )T E 2 Fi1E 149,391 151,952
AR EE Mk E ikREE 2 B

Z8 48,381 94,592
BT RHIBEREAR

(642) 967
BIAGT 2 BET A (14,665) (30,652)
EIEAL A oty 18,838 35,469
BASERTEAREFMBEKL

ZHB AR Z Al D REF 5%

810% (20204 : 5% 5, 10%)

STERRR TR 41,820 40,818
FRAEHEZHIBEE (1,811) (47)
MATERZ HaT B EE 24,321 11,512
RIEFER 2 BiIBE1E - 71,845
BRAEEBER XY 2 FIA 265,633 376,456
REBMEAE RBLEEBHTIE

265,331 304,611
REBEMERAE 2 RIHEEEBTIE
302 71,845
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12.

Discontinued Operation

On 29 January 2021

The results of the discontinued operation for the year are presented

below:

Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income, net

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative expenes

Impairment of receivables arising from securities
and futures broking (note 23)

Other gains, net

Finance costs

Loss before tax from the discontinued operation
Income tax

Loss for the year from the discontinued operation

The major classes of assets and liabilities associated with the discontinued

operation as at 31 December 2021 are as follows:

Assets

Receivables arising from securities and futures broking
(note 23)

Prepayments, other receivables and other assets

Tax recoverable

Cash held on behalf of clients

Cash and cash equivalents

Assets associated with the discontinued operation
Liabilities
Payables arising from securities and futures broking

(note 28)
Other payables and accruals

Liabilities associated with the discontinued operation

Net assets directly associated with the discontinued
operation

, the Board of Directors came to the decision to wind
down the operation of the securities and futures broking business. The
operation of the securities and futures broking business, which had ceased
in May 2021, was classified as a discontinued operation.

mEMBERMEE

12. RIEEEER
MN2021FE1 8298 EEERERILE
HFRHEREER - ‘%&%fﬂﬁﬁﬁ
EFZON@SH”ZM:Z«‘M’ /\*E/‘%
IRIEAEEET o
FRRIMCEEBNERHIOT ¢
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FEL
S 13,197 34,879
$HE AR - _
EF 13,197 34,879
Hipg A - FE 13,271 41,629
HEENDHEER (10,373) (19,045)
THEAR (20,433) (28,625)
BERPECLEE ZEK
BRFURE (M5 23) (92,907) (44,076)
Hiplias - FE - 4,136
B 7% & (3,064) (11,727)
IR HRE R 2 BR T A B 18 (100,309) (22,829)
Fri (302) (71,845)
RIMEEER 2 FNER (100,611) (94,674)
72021%F12831H ﬁminﬁﬁm
BeEERABNEESBENT
2021
HK$'000
FEx
BE
BAERPEECES 2 BRBRR(FIE23)
154,922
TERIE - it EUER R R A E 943
T%@ﬁﬁ 6,190
REFHAHS 3,885
RekERRE 3,317
ISR BE 169,257
BfEF
BAERPERLEE 2 EARR(FIE28)
3,885
Hip R R ERTIER 1,312
BRI ML EBRE AR 5,197
B MRS EERRECEEFE
164,060
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12.

Discontinued Operation (continued)

The net cash flows incurred by the discontinued operation are as follows:

Operating activities BT
Investing activities REEY
Financing activities MEEE

Net cash outflow RemEeE
Loss per share: BRREE -

mEMBERMEE

12"

RIEEEEYE(H)
REREXBELZRSREFENT :
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAT
124,692 (79,487)
- (250)
(181,759) (103,643)
(57,067) (183,380)

Basic and diluted, from the discontinued operation — EARNEE - KERIFESEK (14.8) cents {li  (13.9) cents/l

The calculation of the basic loss per share amounts from the discontinued
operation is based on the loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company from the discontinued operation of HK$100,611,000 (2020:
HK$94,674,000) and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
677,434,000 (2020: 677,434,000) in issue during the year.

There were no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during the year
ended 31 December 2021. No adjustment had been made to the basic
loss per share amount from the discontinued operation presented for the
year ended 31 December 2020 in respect of dilution as the impact of the
share options outstanding had no dilutive effect on the basic loss per
share amount from the discontinued operation presented.

RIEGEXB 2 SRERB RSB HIRE
RARARBAREREEEXHER
100,611,00078 7T(2020 4 : 94,674,000
BIL) RERNBHTMEFHRN
677,434,000 & (2020 % : 677,434,000
) BB E

REBZE2021F 12 A31 B L FE W &5
TEEEELAR - AR ERITEMER
BEMEIN 2R IECEEB 2 FRER
FESHETEREZE WAEHREZE
2000F 12 A3MBUEFEMEY 2K 1E
RELB  FRENEESHEELFHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. Dividends

Dividends recognised as distribution
during the year:

Final dividend for 2020: HK26.0 cents
(2019: HK25.0 cents) per ordinary share

Special final dividend for 2020: HK16.0 cents
(2019: Nil) per ordinary share

Interim dividend for 2021: HK14.0 cents
(2020: HK5.0 cents) per ordinary share

Dividends proposed after the end
of the reporting period:
Final dividend for 2021: HK28.0 cents
(2020: HK26.0 cents) per ordinary share
Special final dividend for 2021: Nil
(2020: HK16.0 cents) per ordinary share

The proposed final dividend for 2021 was recommended after the end of
the reporting period and has not been recognised as a liability at the end
of the reporting period, and it is subject to the approval of the Company’s
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

mEMBERMEE

13. RE
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
RERRBDIRE
ZRE
2020 FREBR B : BEBK
26.0781(20194F : 25.0781l) 176,133 169,359
2020 FHFRIREARE S - BEBR
16.0 8120194 « TH(l) 108,389 -
2021 FHERRE - BB
14.07%41(20204F : 5.0/81l) 94,841 33,872
379,363 203,231
RIRE R B EIRE
ZBRE
2021 FRERE : FEBK
28.071(20204F : 26.078 1) 189,682 176,133
2021 FHERIRBKE : GEAER
T (2020 % < 16.07841) - 108,389
189,682 284,522

2021 FHIRE 2 REBRBRIRE KRR
BRERE  YARBRESHARERASAE
RAFRDRABREREERREFAE L
BofE% - HEHEE o

14. Earnings per Share Attributable to Owners of the Company 14, XARBEEABRLBRER

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is based on
the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 677,434,000 (2020:

677,434,000) in issue during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during
the year ended 31 December 2021. No adjustment had been made
to the basic earnings per share amount presented for the year ended

SREXBNCBLRFANRAAESR
AREAE ) F J F A B F AT I0#EF B AR
677,434,000 % (2020 % : 677,434,000
) EBREE -

REBHZE2021F12A31BLEFEY
BERTEBEEEL AR - ARNEARITE
MEBREHMENTREARF BT

31 December 2020 in respect of dilution as the impact of the share BEEYE  WARAEREZE2020512 A

options outstanding had no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share

BNTALFEREI 2 BREABHEHE

amounts presented. fEL AR -
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on: FIREXRRESRMNHRE AT S EGT
i
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAT
(Restated)
(E71))
Earnings: BF :
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to owners AREEB ANEIEER
of the Company, used in the basic and wFl/(BE) - AR
diluted earnings per share calculation SFTEERERAREERF
From continuing operations REFBELEER 743,868 639,138
From the discontinued operation RE R TS (100,611) (94,674)
643,257 544,464
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBERERKE

15.  Property, Plant and Equipment 15. W% - MEBERRE
Leasehold
improvements,
furniture,
Freehold Plantand fixtures and Motor  Construction
land Buildings machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
HENE
*A LR
ERLi BF HERRE RERRE RE ERIR At
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
iE3 TiEn TiEn T TET TER TER TiEn
As at R2021%
31 December 2021 128318
At 1 January 2021: R2021E
1A18:
Cost or valuation KA HE 21,237 640,921 173,293 1,579,106 14,431 2,626 2,431,614
Accumulated depreciation ~ Z3tH7E
and impairment RiafE - (280,984) (118,883)  (1,000,271) (12,346) - (1412,480)
Net carrying amount BEFE 21,237 359,937 54,410 578,835 2,085 2,626 1,019,130
At 1 January 2021, R2021E
net of accumulated 118
depreciation and AR E5HTE
impairment RAfE 21,237 359,937 54,410 578,835 2,085 2,626 1,019,130
Surplus on revaluation EftBH% - 107,968 - - - - 107,968
Additions AE - 64,980 12,160 318,656 709 315 396,820
Transfers b3 - - - 2,644 - (2,644) -
Transfer to investment ERIRANE
properties 16 - (116,800) - - - - (116,800)
Disposals i - (31) (203) (5,666) - (152) (6,052)
Depreciation provided FRTERE
during the year - (28,018) (15,258) (265,906) (1,466) - (310,648)
Exchange realignment R AE 415 7,554 1,392 17,324 35 H 26,761
At 31 December 2021, 020214
net of accumulated 12A318
depreciation and NG Z5HTE
impairment RAfE 21,652 395,590 52,501 645,887 1,363 186 1,117,179
At 31 December 2021: 20214
12R318:
Cost or valuation KA EE 21,652 695,723 179,732 1,781,437 14,612 186 2,693,342
Accumulated ZHITERAE
depreciation and
impairment - (300,133) (127,231) (1,135,550) (13,249) - (1,576,163)
Net carrying amount FEFE 21,652 395,590 52,501 645,887 1,363 186 1,117,179
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

mEMBERMEE

15. W% - HEBERFEE)

Leasehold
improvements,
furniture,
Freehold Plantand fixtures and Motor  Construction
land Buildings ~ machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
REME
KA EL RN
FETH BT EERk#F KERRME ik ERIR Ch
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR TET
As at 18 2020F
31 December 2020 12A31H
At 1 January 2020: R2020F
1A18:
Cost or valuation A fEE 20,051 620,810 166,950 1,403,085 13,596 1,138 2,225,630
Accumulated 25tE
depreciation - (248,169) (105,337) (847,576) (10,144) - (1,211,226)
Net carrying amount EEFE 20,051 372,641 61,613 555,509 3,452 1,138 1,014,404
At 1 January 2020, 720206
net of accumulated 118
depreciation R EHNE 20,051 372,641 61,613 555,509 3,452 1,138 1,014,404
Additions WE = = 5,490 237,294 285 1,343 244,412
Disposals HE - - (131) (5,464) - = (5,595)
Depreciation provided ~ FRMERE
during the year - (26,857) (15,173) (234,146) (1,718) - (277,894)
Impairment during the ~ ERAE
year - - - (4,063) - - (4,063)
Exchange realignment ~ ERFE 1,186 14,153 2,611 29,705 66 145 47,866
At 31 December 2020, #2020 F
net of accumulated 127318
depreciation and BRRHNE
impairment RAfE 21,237 359,937 54,410 578,835 2,085 2,626 1,019,130
At 31 December 2020: 142020 F
12A318:
Cost or valuation A EE 21,237 640,921 173,293 1,579,106 14,431 2,626 2,431,614
Accumulated ZETERAE
depreciation and
impairment - (280,984) (118,883)  (1,000,271) (12,346) - (1,412,484)
Net carrying amount EEFE 21,237 359,937 54,410 578,835 2,085 2,626 1,019,130
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

Certain of the Group’s buildings were revalued on 31 December 1993
by Knight Frank & Kan, independent professionally qualified valuers. The
buildings were revalued on an open market, existing use basis. Since
1995, no further revaluations of the Group’s buildings have been carried
out, as the Group has relied upon the exemption, provided under the
transitional provisions of HKAS 16, from the requirement to carry out
future revaluations of its property, plant and equipment which were stated

at valuation at that time.

Had these buildings been carried at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation, their carrying amount would have been approximately

HK$6,873,000 (2020: HK$12,385,000).

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s management identified certain
retail stores which continued to underperform and the estimated
corresponding recoverable amounts of their property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets. Based on these estimates, impairment losses of
HK$4,063,000 and HK$169,572,000 were recognised to write down the
carrying amounts of these items of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets to their recoverable amounts of HK$4,105,000 and
HK$198,364,000, respectively, as at 31 December 2020. The estimates
of the recoverable amounts were based on the value-in-use of these
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets, determined using

discount rates in the range of 10.5% to 11.5%.

16. Investment Properties

Carrying amount at 1 January W1A1BZEREE
Addition NS

Transfer from owner-occupied properties EEEERYE
Net gain/(loss) from a fair value adjustment
Exchange realignment

B AR

12 A31 B2 REE

Carrying amount at 31 December

Management has determined that the investment properties consist of
two classes of asset, i.e., properties held in Hong Kong and properties
held outside Hong Kong, based on the nature, characteristics and risks
of each property. The Group's investment properties were revalued at
HK$472,897,000 on 31 December 2021 based on valuations performed
by Cushman & Wakefield Limited, independent professionally qualified

valuers.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under operating
leases, further details of which are included in note 17 to the consolidated

financial statements.

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties are included on

pages 197 to 200.

AT EERE 2 Fls/ (F8)

ma

15.

16.

MBEHRME

ME - BRERRE(R)

REBETEFNI93F12A31BEK
BUEEAERGEMBRAIENTE
f o ZEEFRERBARKRARMEE
B AEEH 1995 FHM BB
ERF16R2BERTE TR &
BHAERGHETIRZME  #ERRE
%ﬁ*%iﬁ’mﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ$ﬁﬁi

135 It A2 F DA SR AR R T I E
Bk HEREE# 56,873,000 70(2020
F 1 12,385,000/87T) °

YE  BERREUREFELERE
M20205612A318 A&EBEEEE
BEETRRBERENTEEHZ
ME BENSBEURGERAEESERE
a5 - RBZEHET - R
2020F 12 A31 8 B2 RIERREE
#84,063,000% 7t & 169,572,000 % 7T
A2 S - MBS KRB A REREE
EEBNRRED MR EE TR 458
4,105,000 7T & 198,364,000 7T ° A
WEISBIREZEWE - #as KREN
REREEENSBEEEL G - WH
NF10.5%E 11.5% KT IR REFE -

REMHE

2021 2020
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B sE THET THT
332,649 333,026

21,286 -

15 116,800 -

6 1,364 (1,811)

798 1,434

472,897 332,649

EEECRESEDEZEE  HHEKE
RETHRENEOEMBLE  IRES
BEZMERRBERENGBEZME - 1
2021F 128318 AEB2KRENME
REABYEXRERGEMBERTHE
BRARIEITZ(AEEMNA472,897,0007%
=
ZEREMENCEROBTE =% ' #
— BN AT REMTE7

BRAEERENE E—THFENE
19722008 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16.

Investment Properties (continued)
Fair value hierarchy

All investment properties were classified under Level 3 in the fair value
hierarchy. During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, there
were no transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level
2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group has assessed that the
highest and best use of its properties did not differ from their existing use.

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of

the fair value hierarchy:

Carrying amount at 1 January 2020

Net gain/(loss) from a fair value
adjustment recognised in profit or loss

Exchange realignment

Carrying amount at 31 December 2020
and 1 January 2021

Additions

Transfer from owner-occupied properties

Net gain from a fair value adjustment
recognised in profit or loss

Exchange realignment

Carrying amount at 31 December 2021

R2020F1 B1HZEEEE
REZXPEIANDTEE
AR ZFWE (BE)

[E 5 3=

R2020F 12 A31B R
20211 A1 HZREE

NE

BREEAME

REBZERTHERNATEE
AR F W

b 5 %

R2021%F12 A31 B2 EHEE

GEMBHERME
16. REWE(E)
NPEEER
IAERENFEAHERLNTBESRZA
Rll3 e B =20214F 2020512 A31H
IEFEREARRNEER 2 2 B ERTE
B EEY - TEEAREHRLIZ - K
EECHEAYE RS RRERGELR
RERGLEDH -
DERRNTEESRZBANIANZATE
BT EHE
Properties Properties
held in  held outside
Hong Kong Hong Kong Total
REBEE REBREI
2 RAEZNE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET
310,990 22,036 333,026
(3,160) 1,349 (1,811)
- 1,434 1,434
307,830 24,819 332,649
21,286 - 21,286
116,800 - 116,800
1,364 - 1,364
- 798 798
447,280 25,617 472,897
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16.

Investment Properties (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

16.

Set out below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the key
inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

Properties held in
Hong Kong
RBEFAZME

Properties held outside
Hong Kong
REBRINGE 2 M5

Valuation technique

EEEAM

Market comparison
method
TG EE

Income capitalisation
method

WABALE

Income capitalisation
method

LON- %8073

Significant
unobservable inputs

BEAHUBEYUE

Price per square foot
FYHRER
Price per unit of car

parking space
FEAEAER

Market unit rent per
square foot per month

BARFAIRMSEMES

Capitalisation rate

BAH &

Market unit rent per

square meter per month

mEMBERMEE

REWH(E)
AR EESER(E)
TE’?\Juﬂ?%&ﬁ%%ﬁ@ﬁﬂ@ﬂﬁ@&%
REEHBIHE
Range
2021 2020
HK$8,300 to HK$8,300 to
HK$9,100 HK$9,000
8,300/ T ZE 8,300 LE
9,100 & T 9,000 7T
HK$800,000 to HK$400,000 to
HK$1,500,000 HK$950,000
800,000/ 8T ZE 400,000 8TE
1,500,000 & 7t 950,000 %7T
HK$19 to HK$21 to
HK$144 HK$144
198E NBTE
144387 144 7%7T

BABFAKMSEMES

Capitalisation rate
B

A significant increase/decrease in the price per square foot, price per unit
of car parking space, market unit rent per square foot per month and
market unit rent per square meter per month in isolation would result in a
significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the investment properties.
A significant increase/decrease in the capitalisation rate in isolation would
result in a significant decrease/increase in the fair value of the investment

properties.

The valuations take into account the characteristics of the properties
which included the location, size, floor level, year of completion and other

factors collectively.

2.0% to 4.3%
2.0% £4.3%

RMB15.2
AK¥15.2 7

8.5%

3.0% to 4.3%
3.0%%4.3%

RMB14.4
ARE1447T

8.5%

BYIRER  FELEMUER  SAF
FhHRMGEMEENEAEF T ATS
BEUASBUIMARE LA TREERR
BWE 2 RTEENEEN, D - BR
L =B AR LA TBRSEBIRE
MENRTFEERAERD A0

HERBH IR IS - BREME K
hRBE - ZIFOHREMEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17.

Leases
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various buildings used in its operations.
Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire the leased land from
the owners with lease periods of 50 years, and no ongoing payments
will be made under the terms of this land lease. Leases of buildings
generally have lease terms between 1 and 10 years. Generally, the Group
is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside
the Group. There are several lease contracts that include variable lease
payments, which are further discussed below.

(@)  Right-of-use assets
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and the
movements during the year are as follows:

ma

17.

MBEHRME

HE
AEBERABEA

AEBRREENZERTHUIAEESR
%) o BARAIME DL — RN FUAME T U
BHELH BHEBS0F  MREZF
T BENGER BT ERESMER
FE - HERTHEABENT1E10
Fo—RME  AEENARAEEAIN
ATBERNBAEEEE - A THERY
BEAEEERR  #EEINT

@ REABEE
FRAKEEREEENRAER

At 1 January 2020
Additions
Termination of leases
Depreciation charge
Impairment (note 6)
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2020
and 1 January 2021
Additions
Termination of leases
Depreciation charge
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2021

2020F1A1H
NE

RIERE
FERE
RE(FRE6)
ER

72020412 B31H
K 2021F1A1H

NE

RIFHE

FERL

RS

72021%F12B831H

Further details of the impairment testing are set out in note 15 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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2gmT
Leasehold

land Buildings Total
HELH BF &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THERT TERT
10,851 1,260,042 1,270,893
= 350,071 350,071
= (16,717) (16,717)
(266) (654,043) (654,309)
- (169,572) (169,572)
653 12,657 13,310
11,238 782,438 793,676
- 601,789 601,789
- (66,035) (66,035)
(285) (505,203) (505,488)
357 7,617 7,974
11,310 820,606 831,916
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during

the year are as follows:

Carrying amount at 1 January

New leases

Termination of leases

Accretion of interest recognised
during the year

Covid-19-related rent concessions
from lessors (note 6)

Payments

Exchange realignment

Carrying amount at 31 December

Analysed into:
Current portion

Non-current portion due for repayment
within a period of:
More than one year but less than
two years
More than two years but less than
five years
Over five years

mEMBERMEE

17. WHE(E)
AEBERRBEAE)
(b) HEEE
FAHEABHNERELRE SN
T
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
W1 A1BZEEE 1,001,162 1,299,901
oHE 587,687 308,742
wILAE (72,425) (19,088)
FREERF S IEIE
41,662 46,223
HF AL T 2019 TR F S HEE
ZHEeER(FEe) (14,901) (73,270)
NEN (648,400) (585,552)
P 5 AR 12,435 24,206
W12 A31BZEEE 907,220 1,001,162
i
mENE D 483,735 554,400
EATHRAZHEEZ
FERBNEL D -
BB FEIRME
247,936 304,298
BBMERLNRE
173,427 131,736
REAE 2,122 10,728
423,485 446,762
907,220 1,001,162

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 42(a) to

the consolidated financial statements.

The Group has applied the practical expedient to all eligible rent
concessions granted by the lessors for leases of certain retail stores
during the year.

HEBENHHRAITRES M

MR 42(a) 5

AEBEESATRETARARE
AEBAARTETEEEHEEN
MEREREERD
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17.

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(©

(d)

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as

follows:

Interest on lease liabilities

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Expense relating to short-term leases

Variable lease payments not included
in the measurement of lease
liabilities™

Covid-19-related rent concessions

HEAEHNE
EREBECNE

e
R AERAEHEHTE
HEFIE"

HEHRABTEH2019TRFS

from lessors HEZEEER
Gain on termination of leases RIEAE 2 M
Impairment of right-of-use assets FREEERE
Total amount recognised in RER KRR IR
profit or loss
* The Group leased a number of the retail stores and units in a shopping

mall which contain variable lease payment terms that are based on the
Group's turnover generated from the retail stores and the units in the
shopping mall. There are also minimum annual base rental arrangements

for some of these leases.

The total cash outflows for leases and future cash outflows relating
to leases that have not yet commenced are disclosed in notes 37(c)
and 38(b), respectively, to the consolidated financial statements.

mEMBERMEE

17. WHE(E)
KREBEREEAE)
() REmZFEZNHEEBFELD

Note
B e

17(b)

(d)

T

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FEL
41,662 46,223
505,488 654,309
80,775 40,032
831,270 614,495
(14,901) (73,270)
(6,390) (2,371)

- 169,572
1,437,904 1,448,990

* AEERELATEEHRRNE
WROMEL  ZSHEBIN
AEBEZENTLTEERR
BEUEANSEBAEROTE
BEFRGT - B2 ZEHETN

REFKEFEERBE T -

EREELANRERHAERE

ﬁiﬂiﬁﬁﬁéﬂ’ﬁ EEHMARRS

}mﬂj%(% RIRNERE B TS R I 3T
Q) % 38(b) HE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17.

18.

ma

MBEHRME

Leases (continued) 17. WHE(#E)
The Group as a lessor FEEEREEA
The Group leases its investment properties (note 16) consisting of KREBRELERETHEAEREME
commercial properties, industrial properties, residential property, roof (FH3E16) BEREALBEAENE
and car parking spaces in Hong Kong and Mainland China under EME - ITEWE TEWE REKE
operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require B - ZEHENKTETEREP X
the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent NERZES  TREESHEITHLE
adjustments according to the then prevailing market conditions. Rental TEHHSAZ  FAXEEC RN
income recognised by the Group during the year was HK$12,282,000 & W A 512,282,000 TL(2020 4 ¢
(2020: HK$11,475,000), details of which are included in note 5 to the 11,475,000 7T) * HFBHNGE TR
consolidated financial statements. RMIFES ©
At 31 December 2021, the undiscounted lease payments receivable by the R2021F 12 A31 8 AEEREBEAR
Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases with its IR EHENRUCRAER
tenants are as follows: HERBHOT :
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Within one year —FR 10,865 5,891
After one year but within two years —F EEREUAR 4,615 748
After two years but within three years MEL FE=FNUR 524 B8
16,004 6,672
Intangible Assets 18. E|IEE
Trading
rights
R5E
HK$'000
FTET
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020 20201818 2020612 A31H
and 1 January 2021: K2021F 118 :
Cost (gross carrying amount) KA (BREBE) 524
Accumulated amortisation 2T (253)
Net carrying amount at 1 January 2020, 20201818 20206128310
31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 %2021 %1 A1 BZEEFE 271
Write-off during the year F A 84 (271)

Cost, accumulated amortisation and net
carrying amount at 31 December 2021

2021 F12 A31 BZHAK
BET B E M REFE -

Upon the adoption of HKAS 38, trading rights, which are considered to
have indefinite lives because they are expected to contribute to the net
cash flows of the Group indefinitely, are not amortised.

During the year, as the Group has discontinued its securities and futures
brokering business, the Stock Exchange and the Futures Exchange has
approved the Group's application for the relinquishment of trading rights.
Accordingly, the trading rights were written off by the Group.

A LELEE T SV Sy
EEAAXEERRHEARS R EF
B - AR A BRI ERE -

FR - AREKIEREHE SRS
7% MR R EASENE
RPEZHFE - Bt ARECHER S
1E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ma

19.

20.

Other Assets 19.

Cost of membership for a seat at The Chinese eREFEIH([EREESE])
Gold and Silver Exchange Society (“CGSE") SRR

Statutory deposits in respect of securities EREFNPEEL
and futures broking EEEE

Rental deposits* HEES™

Deposits paid for purchases of items of property, EEWE  MERBBEEZ
plant and equipment BEffké

* The rental deposits are related to office properties, retail stores and factories

leased by the Group (note 17(a)) and the majority of the terms of the lease
arrangements are over one year. Included in this total is an aggregate amount
of approximately HK$136 million (2020: approximately HK$103 million) relating
to operating leases expiring within one year. The Directors are of the opinion
that such deposits are of a long-term nature on the basis that the related leases
are expected to be renewed upon their respective expiry dates. Accordingly, the
Directors consider it appropriate to classify such deposits as non-current assets.

Financial Assets designated at Fair Value through Other 20.
Comprehensive Income

Listed equity investments, at fair value FRRGOIRE BRATEE
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited BAERGREERBRRA
("HKEC")* (MERm
Unlisted equity investments, at fair value FETRMIRE - HRAFER
Sure Success Holdings Limited Sure Success Holdings Limited
Golden Twin (Un Long) Catering Company Limited &% (7T BB E AR AT
Hong Kong Precious Metals Exchange Limited BREESBRIMERAT

B 3% R B 5
HthEE
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
1,500 1,500
- 2,988
221,772 202,682
1,962 2,189
225,234 209,359

@ WHASEZHAR TERHRBER
H(HE17() 2 HBRERS - AEHA
NARBBBE—F  EFEHN136BES
TT(20204F : 103 EEET)B—FAE
HzEEB - EERA - REMANTE
MRS AR EN B8 HERSE
BRAME - Al ESTRAREBURER
SHERERDEE -

EERRAPEEFAHBRE RSN
BEE

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THET
1,515,025 1,413,890
19,288 19,393
16,849 12,509
287 291
36,424 32,193
1,551,449 1,446,083
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20.

21.

Financial Assets designated at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income (continued)

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income as the Group considers these
investments to be strategic in nature.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s listed equity investments with
a carrying value of HK$850,000,000 were pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 31). The pledge was released
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group sold part of its
equity investment in HKEC. The disposal enabled the Group to realise cash
and unlocked the value in its investment in HKEC at fair market value.
The aggregated fair value on the dates of sale was HK$100,656,000
and the accumulated gain recognised in other comprehensive income of
HK$100,627,000 was transferred to retained profits.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group received dividends
in the amounts of HK$30,440,000 (2020: HK$23,864,000), HK$463,000
(2020: HK$591,000), HK$413,000 (2020: HK$427,000) and HK$12,000
(2020: Nil) from HKEC, Sure Success Holdings Limited, Golden Twin
(Un Long) Catering Company Limited and Hong Kong Precious Metals
Exchange Limited, respectively.

* On 6 March 2000, under the Schemes of Arrangements of the Stock Exchange
and the Futures Exchange and pursuant to the Exchanges and Clearing Houses
(Merger) Ordinance, the Group received 6,223,500 shares of HKEC, six exchange
trading rights in the Stock Exchange and one exchange trading right in the Futures
Exchange as a consideration for the cancellation of its 6 shares held in the Stock
Exchange and 1 share held in the Futures Exchange. As at 31 December 2021, the
Group held 3,326,800 (2020: 3,326,800) shares of HKEC, nil (2020: five) exchange
trading rights in the Stock Exchange and nil (2020: one) exchange trading right in
the Futures Exchange.

Inventories

PEHE ZEm

Goods held for sale

ma

20.

21.

MBEHRME

EERRAFEEF AR BRE RSN
BEE(E)

RS B AT HE I AT
BEG ARG EYG  BARERA
ZRABABHIE -

72020128318 REBL T
7 ¥ & B {8 850,000,000 78 TLEE -
AAREEFE—RRTEEEERME
31) - ZEWEREZE2021F12A31H
LEFERER -

REZ2020F12A83MBIEEE K
SELEEIMOBLEERE - &
EZAREEUAETBERERBLIFR
WigE - REEBRY AFEBELEA
100,656,000 7T + NEA 2 AR ER
27 2525 100,627,000 T ER TR
BEF -

HZE2021F12A3MBILFEE A5E
I 2| A% £.30,440,0007% JT(20204F :
23,864,000 7T ) * 463,000 7£(2020
fF 1 591,000/ 7C) * 413,000 7£(2020
1 427,000/ 7T ) } 12,000 7£(2020
F:THBT)NAKRE B Sure
Success Holdings Limited + 4% (FTER ) X
REERAAKEBECBRIMERA
ET o

S A20009F3 A 61 « BIEH A KRR
MRDE FETEINRR BT REER(E
PE &R AEBEBHERF6,223,500 B
BAn ~ N EH R AT S Rk — B R AR
518 - URRREH A 26 RRM
REBRAHERZ1REKD - 120214
12A318 - XEBEFHHERFT3,326,800
B% (20204 : 3,326,800 % ) B 15~ = @
(2020 : AE)HXARZEREE
(2020 : — (&) BARFTR 7 °

RE
2021 2020
HK$’'000 HK$°000
TR TET
11,343,277 8,774,591
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22.

Accounts Receivable

Trade and credit card receivables BUWES RiERRER
Impairment HE
Accounts receivable JE U BR 3N

The Group’s trading terms with its retail and e-commerce platform
customers are mainly on cash and credit card settlement while trading
terms with corporate clients and wholesale customers are on credit with
credit periods generally up to 60 days. Overdue balances are reviewed
reqularly by senior management. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing.

An ageing analysis of the accounts receivable at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

Within 1 month 1EAA

1 to 2 months 12218A
2 to 3 months 2%23f8A
Over 3 months BiB3EA

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of accounts
receivable are as follows:

At 1 January R1A1A

Impairment losses, net (note 6) WEEE - FE(MEe)
Exchange realignment bE AR

At 31 December ®n12A318

mEMBERMEE

22. FEUWERR

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FET

916,523 884,455

(112,189) (49,806)

804,334 834,649

AEEEAT &@%ﬁm$A%ﬁﬂz
Zi ST I%Wﬁiw AREE

PERFRPBEPILZR 1%#\
,T\EEHH BZRZAEG0R ° 8B4 R
SREEABTHER - RREZEIS
%E e

REHR - BURTRIEER B H R
REBRRERZIRROTAT :

2021 2020
HK$’'000 HK$°000
TR THET
737,480 749,061
47,906 71,626
16,538 13,149
2,410 813
804,334 834,649
PR BR TR 2 BB EE BT -
2021 2020
HK$’'000 HK$°000
TERT TR
49,806 26,508
60,726 20,982
1,657 2,316
112,189 49,806
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22.

mEMBERMEE

Accounts Receivable (continued) 22. FERERI(E)
An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a AEERERE B RBEREETR
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates B UtEEHBEERE - BEXRT
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments EREFEUBXER(FINEDRE - E
with similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type SHEALEREER IR 2 EEARER
and customer type and rating). The calculation reflects the probability- DEERIZ BBREET o B ERM
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and AREEMESER - BB 2EREEUER
supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past xEt‘ZEIH\H—H% SERBEEHZAERA]
events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. THEEH - R R R REEAR N TE
Generally, accounts receivable are written off if past due for more than Al e —ﬂ’x‘ﬁ'ﬁ% CARRE—FREAXR
one year and are not subject to enforcement activity. R I TR EN MR TS T LAMSS -
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the TREIAEE AR EEEET B A ER
Group's accounts receivable using a provision matrix: EZXMEERRER
As at 31 December 2021 M2021F12A31H
Past due
k]
Less than 1t03 Over
Current 1 month months 3 months Total
mE SR1{8A 23188 BB3MEA &t
Expected credit loss rate BHEERRXR 1.19% 2.77% 4.40% 85.78% 12.24%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) %E#@ﬁ(:ﬁ%m) 674,516 92,433 32,839 116,735 916,523
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) TBH=EEE(TET) 8,046 2,558 1,446 100,139 112,189
As at 31 December 2020 M 2020512831H
Past due
Less than 1103 Over
Current 1 month months 3 months Total
i) DSR1EA 123f8R BiB31EA BF

Expected credit loss rate BHEEEEX 0.63% 3.66% 4.38% 83.25% 5.63%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) BEEI4E(E(T57T) 690,199 109,319 37,096 47,841 884,455
Expected credit losses (HK$'000) FEEA=EEE(THET) 4,352 3,999 1,625 39,830 49,806
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23.

Receivables arising from Securities and Futures Broking 23.
Receivables arising from securities and futures EHBEBRTELRR
broking conducted in the ordinary course HERREEY
of business: MR
Cash clients RewpP
Clearing houses, brokers and dealers EEM BERZ5E
Clients for subscription of initial public offering RBEEXLHBRER
("IPO") shares*
Loans to margin clients’ FREFER’
Impairment A
Receivables arising from securities EHERBEREEEL
and futures broking JEWLAR 3R
@ As at 31 December 2020, receivables from clients for subscription of IPO shares of

HK$38,526,000 were due when the corresponding allotment results of the related
IPO shares had been publicly announced and bore interest at commercial rates.

The loans to margin clients were secured by the underlying pledged securities,
repayable on demand and bore interest at commercial rates. No ageing analysis
was disclosed as, in the opinion of the Directors, an ageing analysis was not
relevant in view of the nature of the business of securities margin financing. As
at 31 December 2021, the total market value of securities pledged as collateral
and securities held by guarantors in respect of the loans to margin clients was
HK$154,922,000 (2020: HK$849,746,000).

The receivables are settled two days after the trade date or on specific
terms agreed with clearing houses, brokers and dealers. Futures deals are
normally settled on a cash basis. Receivables from margin and cash clients
arising from the business of dealing in securities and futures broking are
repayable on demand subsequent to the settlement date.

mEMBERMEE

BEMMERLEL 2 BLURR

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET

= 101,752

= 134,777

= 38,526
737,573 873,362
737,573 1,148,417
(582,651) (489,744)
154,922 658,673

* R2020412 B31H @ EARREERAH
BREF 4% /438,526,000/8 T © IR
BEERARBRZBEREERAME
FH - WIREEERE S

! FREFPENAMEME EREHEEA
BERERBEEREEERRGE - &
ERRENBFHFTRBEEB L RER
A THE HERBEHDN - R
21F12R31B EAFREFPEX
BEHEFEER R RERAMEZES
2 48T {H5154,922,00058 7T (20204 :
849,746,000 7T)

BERERAER S ARRMARKEALE
BT~ BIERZ B ME 2B E RETH
B HERGRURLHEE - REZS
FPHREEXBNARREASEPHNEK
ERRNEEH RN EREEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23.

mEMBERMEE

Receivables arising from Securities and Futures Broking (continued) 23. BERPELLELEZEUER(E)
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of receivables arising BHERAERLEEE ZRBRA 2 HERS
from securities and futures broking are as follows: BEESHNT :
Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
12-month not credit- credit-
ECL impaired impaired
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3) Total
TEREERE HBEGERE
12 {8 A /a8 Z2HE ZEHES
EEBE FEER FEER
(B1BR) (F208) (B3R &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERr THER THER THET
At 1 January 2020 ®2020%1 /818 = - 445,668 445,668
Loss allowance recognised (note 12) BRREEREE (M 12) - = 44,076 44,076
At 31 December 2020 and #K2020F12A31B &
1 January 2021 2021F1 818 - - 489,744 489,744
Loss allowance recognised (note 12) ERREREE(12) - - 92,907 92,907
At 31 December 2021 M2021F12/A31H = - 582,651 582,651

Receivables arising from securities and futures broking are categorised
into excellent, good and fair. Excellent refers to receivables from cash
clients, clearing houses, brokers and dealers and clients for subscription
of IPO shares and loans to margin clients of which margin obligation
can be met and payment of interest and principal is not in doubt, with
good quality and liquidity of collateral. Good refers to loans to margin
clients with exposures of which principal and interest are partially or fully
secured by collateral with values higher than carrying amount. Fair refers
to loans to margin clients with exposures of which loss, partial or full,
has incurred and with insufficient collateral. An impairment analysis is
performed at each reporting date by considering the probability of default
of counterparties. The Group also takes into account forward-looking
information to reflect the debtors’ probability of default under the current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions, as appropriate.

Analysis of the gross carrying amount by the Group's internal credit rating
and year end classification:

As at 31 December 2021

EFRPERCEL 2RISR D B
B REN-—K HEEREXEREE
P BB RENRSE RBERA
FRRNEPNEBER  URHFRE
FAINBTERES SRS NEMEAS
BN EERR - ERmNEENRENE
RIF)NERN - RFRERFRE RH
5 EXg A B ESREREENE
MR R2MER - BREFREMEER
K- —REHAFRELEHENERC K
EEMoEMAK - BERR TR © BlE
AR EERE A ETREE RIS Y
FROMAEILET - AEETEHEE
BAEIEEENARREBAEZRIERT
B ABLR A R SR RSB O TR

BASBEABEETRRERDEED 2
REAEASTOT

R2021%F12A31H

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F1RR E2RR EIMER &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT TERT TExT FTER

Internal rating grade NEEERTR
Excellent He - - - -
Good RAF = = = =
Fair —f% - - 737,573 737,573
- - 737,573 737,573
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23.

24.

25.

Receivables arising from Securities and Futures Broking (continued)

As at 31 December 2020

mEMBERMEE

23. BERHELLELECERERR(E)
#2020F12A31H

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F1REER 2R F3EER At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT FAET FAET

Internal rating grade NEEERTR
Excellent He 425,434 - - 425,434
Good Rif = 11,888 = 11,888
Fair —& - - 711,095 711,095
425,434 11,888 711,095 1,148,417

Prepayments, Other Receivables and Other Assets

Prepayments R RIE
Deposits 7e
Right-of-return assets REBEBE
Other receivables Hofh R AR 3K

The financial assets included in the above balances relate to receivables
for which there was no recent history of default and past due amounts.
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the loss allowance was assessed to be
minimal.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

24, BENFHE - HttEWERRREMEE

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
749,352 435,822
58,488 55,032
431 578
14,634 16,267
822,905 507,699

BEELNERZUBEE BT EE
#)sk s ERAC Bk 2 FEMBR 3R 1R 2021 F &
2020128318 T EEEE
@q\c

25. BRAVEEFABENUBEE

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FHET

Listed equity investments, at fair value ERRGOIRE - BRATEE 10,204 9,634

The above equity investments were classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss as they were held for trading.

Ll R BTEEERE - BABA
BRAVEEFABRSNMBEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. Cash and Cash Equivalents/Cash held on behalf of Clients

An analysis of cash and cash equivalents is as follows:

Cash and bank balances Be RIBIER
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity of ~ FHEEER PR =

BT BTN

less than three months when acquired

RehERAE

Cash and cash equivalents

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of
the Group's subsidiaries operating in Mainland China denominated
in Renminbi ("RMB”) amounted to RMB329,830,000 (approximately
HK$404,273,000) (2020: RMB938,736,000 (approximately
HK$1,114,749,000)). The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. Short term time deposits in prior year are made for periods of 1
day to 1 month, and earn interest at the respective time deposit rates.
The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with licensed banks to
hold securities and futures clients’ monies arising from its normal course
of business. The Group has classified the clients’ monies as “Cash held
on behalf of clients” under the current assets section of the consolidated
statement of financial position and recognised the corresponding accounts
payable to the respective clients on the grounds that the Group is liable
for any loss or misappropriation of the clients’ monies. The Group is not
allowed to use the clients’ monies to settle its own obligations.

ma

26.

BAZ

MBEHRME

RERSERE REFEERE
ReRERBREZAFWT

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FHT

671,548 1,599,651

= 54,116

671,548 1,653,767
RBEHR AEBEREAEE
@ZWEQEMAE%E%&ZE
% & R 17 17 % &329,830,0007C A B
B (49404,273,000%7) (2020 £ :
938,736,000 L AR # (47 1,114,749,000
BIL)) e AREREeamiaARHIME

o AN R BRRE 2 SMEE R
R EERNEERRTE  AEEE
EEREREETINERBZRITHAR
BHBAEMER -

ROTREREE RRITERNELZ A
LERIA B - EFENBHERFR2FR
BRI BEVAATSE  WIRARZES
FHRMERBANE - ROTFHFEREER
M ATEANY A B AL 2 IRTT ©

AEERFRIRITRRBIULETRS - A
FHEFMEEPNAEEREL 2K
5o ARBERUFEPRED BNESR
FBARRAR/RBEERT Z[KEP
BEAT ] YHRAEER LRPHA
ZEHE%Y%%ZEEWEE%FH%
HATPER - AREAEATP R
EEREE &R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27.

28.

Accounts Payable

An ageing analysis of the accounts payable at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

Within 1 month 1TEAR
1 to 2 months 122EA
Over 2 months B2 @A
Accounts payable JETBRFR

The accounts payable are non-interest-bearing.

Payables arising from Securities and Futures Broking

Payables arising from securities and futures FEHEXKPES
broking conducted in the ordinary course RRERILEE L
of business: JERTHRAR

Cash clients’ Rexgp’
Margin clients* fFRERF"

mEMBERMEE

27. BRAERR

REBEHER - BARFRBEZZAME
RO

2021 2020
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TR THET
94,199 63,311
87,105 66,314

- 178
181,304 129,803

ERERARE -
28. EBFRPELLELECEFERR

Payables arising from securities and futures broking — #F& K EELES 2 EMNER

No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the Directors, an
ageing analysis is not meaningful in view of the nature of such business.

# Included in the cash client accounts payable arising from dealing in securities
conducted in the ordinary course of business is an amount of approximately
HK$3,195,000 (2020: HK$420,070,000) representing those clients” undrawn
monies/excess deposits placed with the Group. As at 31 December 2020, the cash
client accounts payable included an amount of HK$705,000 in respect of securities
transactions undertaken for the accounts of certain Directors. The cash client
accounts payable are repayable on demand and bear interest at commercial rates.

* The margin client accounts payable are repayable on demand and bear interest at
commercial rates.

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET
3,195 508,614
690 66,438
3,885 575,052

EERRENEEBHLESHRRITER
AR B EFERER DT

#

BREEEBEESTRETELFEEEELL
&3 & & B8R 5 M 473,195,000 7T
(20204 : 420,070,000 L) BZE &
FHERASEZ R IRRGIE /BN &
£ > M2020F 128318 ' EBHBHEEF
RABEAETESREFETERRIZ
FIE 705,000 7T - ENBREEFRAA
RERIGER IR E GG R

e FFRE P IRIAN B REHEE RIZME
RIGHETR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29.

Other Payables and Accruals

Accruals fEEtIRE
Contract liabilities EHEE
Refund liabilities BFRAR
Other payables H it JETAR K
Customer gold deposits EFES

mEMBERMEE

29. HtEMRMRERE

HEEP 2 EHRMAT
EFRHEI A

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to deliver jewellery and
precious metals, and the amount allocated to customer loyalty programme of the
Group's retail of jewellery business. The decrease in contract liabilities in 2021 was
mainly due to the cancellation of the customer loyalty programme during the year.
The increase in contract liabilities in 2020 was mainly due to the increase in short-

Notes:
(a) Details of contract liabilities are as follows:
Short-term advances received from customers
Sale of goods BERiHE
Customer loyalty programme
term advances received from customer orders of goods.
(b) Other payables are non-interest-bearing.
(0

The Group provides gold deposit services to its customers. Under this arrangement,
customers deposit physical gold with the Group and can withdraw the same units
of gold together with a fixed amount of fee on the maturity date. The customer
gold deposits are estimated based on the fair value of gold deposits outstanding at
the end of the reporting period. The basis of estimation is reviewed on an ongoing
basis and revised where appropriate. As at 31 December 2021, gold deposits from
customers also included approximately 800 (2020: 800) taels of gold from certain
management personnel of the Group.

2021 2020
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B sE TER FET
68,106 65,280
(a) 84,040 108,941
720 787
(b) 417,214 323,265
(c) 21,295 22,526
591,375 520,799
Hiet -
(@) ANBEFENT
31 December 31 December 1 January
2021 2020 2020
H20215 R 2020F 42020 F
12A31H 12A31H 118
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET FHT
84,040 95,152 74,504
- 13,789 14,106
84,040 108,941 88,610
AHABERRERNKERESBRIR
EHEKTE  WROBREREEKET
EEBZEPEBEFEIZEE - 2021 F
BRBERIFIEHERFRIUEE P BH
ERTEIFTE - 2020 F A WA BEMNEEA
KRB P EmaT EUE 2 5 B Fa R
AT o
(b) HiENERARRE
(© AEERMERFREF SRS - RELE

B BEEAASEFAES  RESHAT
ROEREN ZSETHEER - BFF
SHERBREHREBTFE 2 ATFEBEE
et o BT EESHERT - WEEE
BERERT - W20214612 8318 BF
BeMBEASEETEEABZERN
800/ (20204 : 800 ) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30.

Derivative Financial Instruments

Liabilities =i
Bullion contracts ExBEY
Cross currency swaps RN EHEH

The bullion contracts and cross currency swaps are stated at their fair
values. The above transactions involving derivative financial instruments
are conducted with reputable financial institutions or top bullion trading
companies. As at 31 December 2021, the aggregate contractual amount
of the bullion contracts was HK$823,931,000 (2020: HK$405,296,000).

In addition, the Group has entered into cross currency swaps to manage
its foreign currency risk. The cross currency swaps were measured at fair
value through profit or loss. Changes in the fair value thereof amounting
to HK$232,000 (2020: HK$3,079,000) were charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss during the year.

The purpose of the above contracts and swaps entered into by the Group
is to manage the Group’'s commodity price risk and foreign currency risk.
Such contracts and swaps did not meet the criteria for hedge accounting.

ma

30.

B 3% R B 5
fTEEMIA
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
12,117 4,120
- 2,934
12,117 7,054

ELBANRR N EBIRMIEE N T EE
FIBE - P RTASRIA RS ThER
EERIZSHBBERERESBES R
AT R2021F12A318 B4 B
BHZEHERERERS823,931,0008 T
(20204 : 405,296,000/87T) °

AN - AREEEFT IR X S B T2 S
[ERE - X X BB BIEATEENA
B E - FANGRABRRCHBRER
FEER B SRR 232,000 (2020
4 13,079,000/ 7T) °

AEERIY ERAN IR EEEERE
BzamERERRINERR - ZFAH
RIRHI NG & SOh & TR IR 2 kM
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBERMEE

31. Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings/Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings 31. RERTEN RIRBELLEEZM
arising from Securities and Futures Broking ERITEM
2021 2020
Contractual Contractual
interest interest
rate Maturity HK$'000 rate Maturity HK$'000
LIS HHR TiEx BHHE %A TAL
% %
Current ik
Portion of term loans from banks RERTER—ER
due for repayment within HHER S
one year EHER
- unsecured - BER 12-16 2022 337,962 14-17 2021 117,580
- secured - FER - 1.1 2021 180,000
337,962 297,580
Current portion of bank loans ER—ERFHEEZ
due for repayment within BOEHZRE
one year #9
- unsecured - BER 13-37 2022 475,721 13-38 2021 401,442
813,689 699,022
Non-current E k)
Non-current portion of bank BT HRNEIE
loans due for repayment BRZBRTENZ
within a period of; EREES
More than one year but —EN LR
less than two years NS
- unsecured - BER 13-25 2023 229,019 13-37 2022 323,713
More than two years but LA LB
less than five years SREF
- unsecured - BER 13-22 2024 143,000 13-25 2023 57,194
372,019 380,907
1,185,708 1,079,929

The interest-bearing bank borrowings, including the term loans repayable
on demand, are carried at amortised cost. None of the portion of the term
loans due for repayment after one year which contain a repayment on
demand clause and that are classified as current liabilities is expected to
be settled within one year.

R RITEK

(BREREREEZEHE

oK) TR BRI BR - REHBLER —4F
RIMEREARSHEREREIRNE

18 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings/Interest-bearing Bank Borrowings

arising from Securities and Futures Broking (continued)

As at 31 December 2021,
to HK$2,269,384,000 (2020: HK$2,772,119,000),

2021.

All of the banking facilities, including bank borrowings and bullion
loans (note 32), are subject to the fulfilment of covenants relating to
certain of the Group's financial ratios, as are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group was to breach the
covenants, the drawn down facilities would become repayable on demand.
In addition, certain of the Group’s term loan agreements contain clauses
which give the lender the right at its sole discretion to demand immediate
repayment at any time, irrespective of whether the Group has complied

with the covenants and met the scheduled repayment obligations.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants for
all the outstanding bank borrowings and bullion loans. Accordingly, the
Group does not consider it is probable that the bank will exercise its
discretion to demand repayment so long as the Group continues to meet
these requirements. Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity
risk are set out in note 42(a) to the consolidated financial statements. As
at 31 December 2021 and 2020, none of the covenants relating to drawn

down facilities had been breached.

The carrying amounts of the bank loans at the end of the reporting period

are denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollar BT
New Taiwan dollar e

the Group’s banking facilities amounted
of which
HK$1,185,708,000 (2020: HK$1,079,929,000) had been utilised at the
end of the reporting period. As at 31 December 2020, certain of the
banking facilities amounting to HK$470,000,000 were secured by certain
assets of the Group as disclosed in note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements. The pledge was released during the year ended 31 December

mEMBERMEE

31.

FERTER BFRUELLELZH
BRITER(H)

R2021512 8318 X&EBZRTE
& % /2,269,384,0005 7T(2020% :

2,772,119,000/8 L) ' RBREEHKRE
FH H 11,185,708,0003% 7T(20204

1,079,929,0007% 7T ) ° 1A 2020F 12 A
318+ & T R1715 §%470,000,000 %
TTAREBRGE M HREMZ20HE
ZETEEERER - ZEHEREZE
2021512 A31 BILEERR -

AERTEE(BRBRTERRESBE
TT(MT?SZ)%EZK&lﬁé%?ﬂh&%th
Lo ERANESHBBI LI EER
B o MAKEERGE - FIRREERA
MBEFREE - WS AEBETEHRE
P B 246 TIRAAER AT 2EB1E Iff
B 2R AVEE 25 TmAKER
EETHERETREENEE

AEEREAERRTERRECERE
ETHERHETZER BN - At
$%E%ER£%GL¢%%ﬁE 1T
BREeTEENEREEREEER - 56
AEFERERDECRR 2#E— iﬁ\a
PR A BB RRMEE42(a) - 122021 F K
2020F 12318 AEBIEERE
BEREELHE -

RITEFRBEHR 2 EREN IS
REAL

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT THET
1,147,746 1,052,349
37,962 27,580
1,185,708 1,079,929
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32.

Bullion Loans

Bullion loans — unsecured

Bullion trading facilities E2BRHEE
Contractual interest rate BHIF|=E
Original maturity REHIR

The amounts represented borrowings from banks or top bullion trading
companies and the amounts payable are pegged to bullion prices.

Certain of the bullion loan facilities are subject to fulfilment of covenants
under the Group's banking facilities. Details of which are disclosed in note
31 to the consolidated financial statements.

Bullion loans were borrowed to reduce the impact of fluctuation of
bullion prices on bullion inventories. However, the criteria for hedge
accounting were not fully met. Bullion loans were designated as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss as they are managed and their
performance are evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management and investment strategy, and information
about the bullion loans is provided on that basis to the Group's key
management personnel.

The carrying amounts of the bullion loans at the end of the reporting
period are denominated in the following currencies:

Renminbi AR
United States dollar E

ETBEE - SEF

mEMBERMEE

32. E2BfEE
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FEL
2,029,588 1,002,135
4,148,325 3,212,613

0.8% - 3.8% 0.9% - 2.7%
1-7 months B 1 -5 months A

ZRBIENRTRERECBE S AAIE
B MENFRERESBERENE -

ST RSBREAMABHAREBBIE
B2 FERRANBREN T
7 -

EARCREEENAREESBERK
PHECMEELHE - A > RExTE
MEMmERE Gt - ENESEE
ETRIRRE @R B I AR B R AT
BEEEEERMMEERSE - WEETERE
AFEEFABRNABEEE - MEBZ
FELBERZENDEABEERALK
BzIE2EEABRH -

ZEATMEENBERRZIFAEAT
o

ER REA
2021 2020
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TR THET
1,265,196 438,534
764,392 563,601
2,029,588 1,002,135
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33.

Deferred Tax

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are as

follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

At 1 January 2020

Deferred tax charged/(credited) to
the consolidated statement of
profit or loss during the year

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2020
and 1 January 2021

Deferred tax charged to the
consolidated statement of
profit or loss during the year

Exchange realignment

Gross deferred tax liabilities
recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at
31 December 2021
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Depreciation

mEMBERMEE

33. EEFRE

FRETHAREREELENT :

allowance
in excess of
related Withholding
depreciation taxes Others Total
HERBE
BBERTE FRB Hit &t
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT THERT THERT THET
34,914 246,601 = 281,515
(152) 41,722 (449) 41,121*
72 - (45) 27
34,834 288,323 (494) 322,663
547 42,343 2,092 44,982*
66 - 23 89
35,447 330,666 1,621 367,734
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBERMEE

33. Deferred Tax (continued) 33. EEBIE(E)
Deferred tax assets EEFBEE
Losses
available for
Decelerated offsetting  Impairment  Impairment
Lease tax against future  of accounts of right-
liabilities ~ depreciation taxable profits receivable  of-use assets Others Total
THEHERK
ERBER el il
HESE AEHENE ZER REAE EENE At At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn T TER TER TAR TiEn TiEn
At 1 January 2020 R2020E1A18 7,616 8,606 73,642 1,822 - 20,335 112,021
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to ERRGABER
the consolidated statement of A/ ()2
profit or loss during the year ELHE 3,042 3,805 (52,778) 792 21,979 (.126) (21,286)*
Exchange realignment B A% 640 158 584 - - 84 1,466
At 31 December 2020 R2020612 A318
and 1 January 2021 R2021E1R18 11,298 12,569 21,448 2,614 27,979 16,293 92,201
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to FRRGARER
the consolidated statement of A/ (1) 2
profit or loss during the year EEHE 1,169 (702) (20,234) 24,953 (19,178) (8,335) (22,327
Exchange realignment A% 383 9% 6 481 - 369 1,335
Gross deferred tax assets recognised 742021412 A31A
in the consolidated statement RAIBTAE
of financial position at BB BRHE
31 December 2021 BEESR 12,850 11,963 1,220 28,048 8,801 8,327 71,209
& Net deferred tax charged of HK$67,309,000 (2020: HK$62,407,000) to the * FRRGAIEZRMR67,309,000% T

consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year.

(20204 : 62,407,000/ T) 2 EE R A

FE

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$628,683,000
(2020: HK$598,154,000), Mainland China of HK$42,349,000 (2020:
HK$35,125,000) and Taiwan and Macau of HK$5,242,000 (2020:
HK$14,865,000). The tax losses arising in Hong Kong are available
indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in
which the tax losses arose, whilst those arising in Mainland China, Taiwan
and Macau will expire in five years, ten years and three years, respectively,
for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred tax assets have not
been recognised in respect of these losses of HK$668,886,000 (2020:
HK$536,019,000) as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-
making for some time and it is uncertain whether taxable profit will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

FEERBEBELEZHBER
/628,683,000 (2020 % :
598,154,000/ 7C) * KRB ABEEL 2
71 18 &5 18 /& 42,349,000 7T(2020 4 -

35,125,000 7T ) R R

=

= /=

BMEL

Z IR A5,242,00078 7T (2020 F -
14,865,000/ 7T) °c REBESE 2 HEE
BRI ERSAEREZSEERBERD
BIZ RRERTGEH - MAPBEAE - =
ERRMEEZRBERESRES
TER=FRER  HETERERKER
RIERB G o HRLZEEBRIREER
C—RERZHBAR » LRI REHEE
AR BERF S A ERRIEEREE -
I £ 5668,886,0007 7T(20204F :

536,019,000 70) M L H & 18

MBABE °

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED /164  ANNUAL REPORT 2021

ABEEEEBEKBEERAR

2021

FE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. Deferred Tax (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC CIT Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends
declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in the People’s Republic of China. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the
Group's subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic of China, the
applicable rate is 5% or 10%. The Group is therefore liable to withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established in the
People’s Republic of China in respect of earnings generated from 1

January 2008.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of

dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

34. Share Capital

Authorised:
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.25 each

ERE

Issued and fully paid: BETRER
677,434,000 ordinary shares of

HK$0.25 each

35. Share Option Schemes

The Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”)
on 11 June 2020 (the “Adoption Date"”). The purpose of the New Scheme
is to provide incentives or rewards to eligible participants who have
contributed or may contribute to the Group and to enable the Group to
attract and retain employees and other personnel that are valuable to the

Group and any entity in which the Group holds any equity interest.

The share option scheme, which was adopted by the Company on
7 December 2010 (the “Old Scheme”), was terminated on 11 June
2020. Following the termination of the Old Scheme, no options shall
be granted under the Old Scheme. However, options granted prior to
such termination will continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance
with the rules of the Old Scheme. All outstanding options lapsed on

31 December 2020.

ma

33.

34,

1,000,000,000 % & % FEI1E
0.258 w2 L@k

677,434,000 RS EE
0.258 L2 LBk

35.

MBEHRME

EEBIR (F)

RERBEGEMERE - RPEARIR
B 2R ECERMIINBREEES
TEIR EZBIZ 10% BT IR » AR E A
20084F 1 A1 HBAER - W i#E A K 2007
F12A31BE2RF o tarp BIAREHE)
BiEEMEREZEBRITEHEBE
Al EARENBRERE - AEE
RAEAREMBEIKZZHBRARME
HAMEES%H10% - AL KEHR
BEERZSAHEAR KRBT 2 M
BRAEIR2008F1 A1BREEAL 2 HEF
BTk 2 R BB TR IR RS

ARRRERRKE 2 RB LB KAE
o

B
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET
250,000 250,000
169,359 169,359
Ll Big

ADAER2020F6 A1 B(ERH B
B RBFTBREE([FETE ) - #1
SElZ BRI REAREEEL BRI AT
EHERZABERZEAL TEE R E
B ARBAREEERS W HEUAER
EAEEHFEMAREZ TRNERAEGE
BZEEREMASR -

ARAFR2010F 12 A7 BIERMH B E
HE([ERE DER2020F6 A11 A
1o RIFEREIE - AERBEHSERE
TATBEARAE o AT » AR LRI H RO BB AR A
HEEL R - WAREEEIMRAA T
1I1F - BT M ARITE Z BRED R 2020
F12A31BER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. Share Option Schemes (continued)
Old Scheme

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the movements in the share
options to subscribe for the Company’s shares under the Old Scheme were

as follows:

2020

ma

35.

MBEHRME

fERR st B (&)
EitE

BE2020F12A31BIEEE - E:tE
TREARARN 2 BREEEHMNT ¢

Number of share options

BREE
Cancelled/
Balance Granted Exercised lapsed Balance
Date of Exercise price as at during during during as at Exercisable
Eligible person grant per share 1112020 the year the year the year  31/12/2020 period
720205 20205
) 1A1H ) FREE/ 128318
BERAL RERH  BROEE g% FARE  ERR KX i 7
HKS
BT
Continuous contract &AL 221712016 14.89 2,648,000 = - (2,648,000) - 3111202017 -
employees’ EE* 30/12/2020
2211712016 14.89 3,143,000 - - (3,143,000 - 311122018 -
30/12/2020
Total = 5,791,000 - - (5,791,000) -

Continuous contract employees include an associate of a director, Ms. Genevieve
CHOW Karwing, who held 53,000 share options during the period from 1 January
2020 to 30 December 2020. Ms. CHOW was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Company on 1 November 2021.

New Scheme

A summary of the principal terms of the New Scheme is set out below:

The purpose of the New Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards to
Eligible Participants (as defined below) who have contributed or may
contribute to the Group and to enable the Group to attract and retain
employees and other personnel that are valuable to the Group and any
entity in which the Group holds any equity interest (the “Invested Entity”).

Pursuant to the New Scheme, the Board may, at its absolute discretion,
offer to grant an option to subscribe for the shares of the Company
subject to such conditions as it may think fit to the following persons (the
“Eligible Participants”):

a. any employee (whether full time or part time employee, including
any executive director but not any non-executive director) of the
Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

b. any non-executive director (including independent non-executive
director) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity;

! RECHEERRESTZ —RBEAL
Bkt - M2020F1 A1 BE20204F
12 A 308 i 8 #5 5 53,0001 ¥ & 4# -
B&ZtR2021E 1M B1BEZTARR
AMITES -

Hita
BN B RREERTINT -

et 85 ERHAKE EH BRI AT REE
HERZAER2EA(ERR TOET
HEHRE - AREAREEGERS/ LR
HASERASBEREEMREZENE
B(REERAREEZEEREMA

mo

\

REHHE EFEERARCENER
RERERT  AI2ERERNTALIS
BREEANDFHBEENELD - BB
ARABL

a.  ARAE - HEMHEARSEER
BERNEMER(TRAEHN
#RES  BREEANTES A
TEREAFNTES)

b. ARAE - EEMKERRREMFMER
BERBNEMIFRTES(REE
VIFHITER)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. Share Option Schemes (continued)

New Scheme (continued)

C. any individual acting in his capacity as an adviser or a consultant
that provides research, development or other support or advice to

the Group or any Invested Entity;

d. any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity
or any holder of securities issued by any member of the Group or

any Invested Entity; and

e. any distributor, contractor, customer, supplier, agent, business
partner, joint venture business partner, promoter and service
provider to the Group or any Invested Entity whom the Directors
consider, in their sole discretion, has contributed or may contribute

to the Group and any Invested Entity.

The total number of the Company’s shares which may be issued upon
the exercise of all options to be granted under the New Scheme and any
other share option scheme must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the
total number of the Company’s shares in issue as at the Adoption Date
(such total number of issued shares being 677,434,000 shares). As at
the date of approval of these financial statements, the total number of
shares available for issue under the New Scheme was 67,743,400 shares,

representing 10% of the shares in issue.

The total number of the Company’s shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each Eligible Participant (including
both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall
not exceed 1% of total number of shares of the Company in issue. Any
further grant of options in excess of the 1% limit shall be subject to
shareholders’ approval in general meeting with such Eligible Participant
and his close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) or his associate
(as defined in the Listing Rules), if the Eligible Participant is a connected

person (as defined in the Listing Rules), abstaining from voting.

ma

35.

MBEHRME
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. Share Option Schemes (continued)

New Scheme (continued)

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the New
Scheme at any time during a period commencing on such date on or after
the date on which the option is granted as the Board may determine in
granting the option and expiring at the close of business on such date
as the Board may determine in granting the option but in any event shall
not exceed 10 years from the date of grant (which is the date of offer of

grant if the offer for the grant of the option is accepted).

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within 30 days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount payable

on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.00.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Board provided
always that it shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the date
of offer; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 business days immediately

preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

Subject to the termination provisions set out in the New Scheme, the
New Scheme shall be valid for a period of 10 years commencing from the

Adoption Date.

No share option has been granted under the New Scheme since the

Adoption Date.

36. Reserves

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 80 and 81 of the consolidated financial

statements.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for wholly-foreign-invested
enterprises, a portion of the profits of the Group’s subsidiaries which
are established in the People’s Republic of China has been transferred to

reserve funds which are restricted as to use.
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36.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBERERKE

37. Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 37. HREELRERME
(a) Reconciliation of operating profit to cash generated from (a) ERNASEREBRECHE
operations
2021 2020
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE T FHAT
(Restated)
(&Z31)
Profit/(loss) before tax: BB, (EI8)
From continuing operations REBELE S 1,005,711 943,749
From the discontinued operation RE R IEEEET 12 (100,309) (22,829)
Adjustments for: T
Finance costs B 5% A 63,550 87,864
Interest income FMEWA (24,823) (62,930)
Dividend income from listed investments iR & 2 ik BUA 6 (30,889) (24,360)
Dividend income from unlisted FEETHREZBRBMA
investments 6 (888) (1,018)
Net loss on disposal of items of Hj%ffw% R RRIEER
property, plant and equipment HRIEE 5,025 4,880
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of Hj%miérﬁlﬂﬁﬂiﬁﬁ/
derivative financial instruments 6 (20,407) 21,446
Write-off of intangible assets R & EME 18 271 =
Net loss/(gain) on bullion loans EEARANTEBETEREE
designated as at fair value through ZECBEEIER ()
profit or loss 6 (17,276) 209,464
Net fair value loss/(gain) on REME 2 NPEEFEE
investment properties /(Urzs) 6 (1,364) 1,811
Net fair value gain on bullion loans ?EEETQ&?FEJEEE&
designated as at fair value through ZECBEENATER
profit or loss SRS 6 (16,025) (10,247)
Net fair value loss/(gain) on financial BRATEBEABZNTHEE
assets at fair value through profit ZATFEEFEBR(Ks)
or loss 6 (570) 3,760
Net fair value loss/(gain) on derivative TESRMITEAFEES
financial instruments — transactions EE (W) - TREEH
not qualifying as hedges EELIRS 6 4,947 (1,961)
Covid-19-related rent concessions HAALTFH2019BHEE
from lessors 1aRA 2 S TR 17(b) (14,901) (73,270)
Gain on termination of leases BIERE 2 W 17(c) (6,390) (2,371)
Depreciation of property, plant M BERSBINE
and equipment 15 310,648 277,894
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREREZINE 17(a) 505,488 654,309
Impairment of property, plant W BEREERE
and equipment 15 = 4,063
Impairment of right-of-use assets SREEERE 17(a) - 169,572
Impairment of accounts receivable JE U BR ZORE 22 60,726 20,982
Impairment of receivables arising Mﬁf“f&%ﬁ%’i?é%%EFEZFEWﬁETA
from securities and futures broking 23 92,907 44,076
Write-down of inventories to net }Phﬂliﬁﬁ_ S ER# 5% E
realisable value 6 10,661 29,198
1,826,092 2,274,082
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BEZRL,/(8m) (2,442,113) 346,010
Decrease in accounts receivable JEUBR TR 2R 16,522 115,273
Decrease/(increase) in receivables arising &% M HI 484 Eizﬁfl&ﬁ%m
from securities and futures broking 2R /(1 410,844 (117,519)
Increase in prepayments, other HERE - ﬁﬂ)@lﬁlﬁﬁ R A
receivables and other assets B2 e (300,475) (52,651)
Decrease/(increase) in cash held on 1%%)5%%‘1,%5{}2%%9/(13@
behalf of clients 481,404 (41,492)
Increase in accounts payable W‘TEE | 72,043 41,243
Increase/(decrease) in payables arising BHMEERLEE 2 ENERR
from securities and futures broking 2%,/ Csd) (571,167) 71,781
Changes in derivative financial fTEemI Az S
instruments 20,407 (21,446)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables Hib RS &Wﬁlﬁﬁ
and accruals 28m,/ O 80,874 (16,267)
Cash generated from/(used in) TR/ (R 2B S
operations (405,569) 2,599,014
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37.

Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

(b)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:

2021

At 1 January 2021

Changes from financing cash flows

New leases

Foreign exchange movement

Interest expense

Interest paid classified as
operating cash flows

Termination of leases

Covid-19-related rent concessions
from lessors

Net gain on bullion loans
designated as at fair value
through profit or loss

Net fair value gain on bullion loans
designated as at fair value through
profit or loss

At 31 December 2021

B2021%1A1H
BERERELE
HHE
HNEE &
FEHY
PEALEHETRE
FERHE
BIrEE
HEAL T 2019 EA
RERECHLER
EEARATLEERT
BEZELBEE
FlE
ETEBRATEETTE
BEZELBEEMN
NFEEF G

R2021F12A318

mEMBERMEE

37. HERSREBRMEE ()

(b) BMETHELZEERE:

Interest-
bearing
bank
borrowings
Interest-  arising from
bearing securities
bank and futures Lease Bullion
borrowings broking liabilities loans
#EHER
BERLESE
Zit 8
FTERTEXR RITER HEAE BEEERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TEL TET TR TET
899,929 180,000 1,001,162 1,002,135
285,131 (180,000) (606,738) 1,032,725
- - 587,687 -
648 - 12,435 28,029
- - 41,662 -
- - (41,662) -
- - (72,425) -
- - (14,901) -
- - - (17,276)
- - - (16,025)
1,185,708 - 907,220 2,029,588
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37.

Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

(b)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:

(continued)
2020

At 1 January 2020

Changes from financing cash flows

New leases

Foreign exchange movement

Interest expense

Interest paid classified as
operating cash flows

Termination of leases

Covid-19-related rent concessions
from lessors

Net loss on bullion loans
designated as at fair value
through profit or loss

Net fair value gain on bullion loans
designated as at fair value through
profit or loss

At 31 December 2020

mEMBERMEE

37. HERSRBRMEE(E)
(b) REFBHELZEE2E: (H)

Interest-
bearing
bank
borrowings
Interest- arising from
bearing securities
bank and futures Lease Bullion
borrowings broking liabilities loans
HMERLES
&8
FTERITER BITER MEERE ESBEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THIL THT THL THT
MR2020FE1 A 18 936,924 280,000 1,299,901 1,473,773
BERSREED (38,535) (100,000) (539,329) (697,810)
Mg - - 308,742 =
SNEEE) 1,540 - 24,206 26,955
FERX - - 46,223 =
NERRERERE
MERFE - - (46,223) =
BIFEE = - (19,088) =
HHEALTH 2019 B
RERBZHSER - - (73,270) =
BERERATEEIE
BEZECBEEF
B - - - 209,464
BEREATEEE
BEZESBEEN
ATEEFNE - = = (10,247)
®20204512 A318 899,929 180,000 1,001,162 1,002,135
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37.

38.

Notes to the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

(c)

(d)

Total cash outflows for leases

The total cash outflows for leases included in the consolidated
statement of cash flows is as follows:

AR
BEEHA

Within operating activities
Within financing activities

Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$601,789,000 (2020:
HK$350,071,000) and HK$587,687,000 (2020: HK$308,742,000),
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for buildings.

Commitments

(a)

(b)

The Group had the following capital commitments for the property,
plant and equipment at the end of the reporting period:

EEIFORREVS 3

Contracted, but not provided for

The Group has various lease contracts that have not yet commenced
as at 31 December 2021. The future lease payments for these
non-cancellable lease contracts are HK$44,120,000 (2020:
HK$18,908,000) due within one year, HK$156,427,000 (2020:
HK$58,495,000) due in the second to fifth years, inclusive and
HK$6,964,000 (2020: HK$488,000) due after five years.

mEMBERMEE

/-

38.

FERERERME(R)

(c)

(d)

(b)

HER SR HAE

FAEARERERNEERSR
M

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

TER FHT

(Restated)

(&%)

953,707 700,750

606,738 539,329

1,560,445 1,240,079
TEFBRERS

FR- AEEREFHELHEN
FRAEEENHAEAEGENER
£ 0% Bl 601,789,000 7T
(20204 : 350,071,000/ 7T)
% 587,687,000 7T (2020 4F :
308,742,000/ 7T) °

AEERBEMROYE - #Z R

REEAREEWT -
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$°000
TERT TR
11,544 16,453

M20215 128318 A&£EF
HARBHSERAESN - %5
T BEBEEANMARBER
18 /44,120,000 7T(2020 4 :
18,908,000 7t ) ¥ — & A &
Hi - 156,427,000 jT(2020 4 :
58,495,000 8 TL ) RE—EEFERF
(BEEREME)E K 6,964,000
7 78 (2020 4F : 488,000 7T )
REEEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39. Connected and Related Party Transactions

(a)

(b)

mEMBERMEE

39. BEALRS

In addition to the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere (a)
in these consolidated financial statements, the Group had the

following material transactions with connected and/or related

parties during the year on mutually agreed terms:

Nature of transactions

REME

Lease payments for the lease of a retail shop

HETEEHZEERX"

Lease payments for short-term leases

of quarters of the Company’s Directors

HEARRESER ZENRE HENR

Consultancy expenses for the provision
of image consultancy services to the Group

) 28 5% R ST ) B 1 AR 75 2 B Bl 2

As at 31 December 2021, no right-of-use assets related to a retail shop

Relationship

B%

Certain Directors of the Company
who have beneficial interests
in the property

ARAETEERZNERER

BaiEn

Related companies in which certain
Directors of the Company have
beneficial interests

ARRIETESHEERERL
BEna

A related company in which family
members of a Director of the
Company have beneficial interests

ARE— %%%%k&i%ﬁ
BEniEn WiE

from these related parties (2020: HK$3,275,000) and lease liabilities (2020:
HK$3,240,000) were due to these related parties of the Group.

All of the above related party transactions also constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The above transactions are exempted from the reporting,
annual review, announcement and independent shareholders’

approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.33 of the Listing Rules. iE e

Emoluments of key management personnel of the Group (b)

The aggregate amount of emoluments paid and payable to key
management personnel during the year, including the amounts paid
and payable to the Company’s Executive Directors, is as follows:

Fees
Salaries and allowances

Discretionary bonuses paid and payable

Pension scheme contributions

ik

e MR

BN RENEEEL
RREFEIHK

Further details of Directors’ emoluments are included in note 8 to

the consolidated financial statements.

RERAZEEMBIREEMEBF
RGNk %%'$§@F¢W
ﬁ%@Ai& LR 2 RO
ITERRS

2021 2020
HK$’'000 HK$°000
TR THET
3,300 3,300
900 900
1,038 1,233

R2021F 128318 Y ERB ZF
BEALz - HTEERZEREEE
(20204 : 3,275,000 7T) + A& B IR E
REZEBEATZAERE(20204 :
3,240,000/ 7T) °

FRFEBEALTRZ S MER LT
%+@A;%ﬁm2#fﬁkx% o bt

RH5REETRANE 14A 33K EEREH
W FEEZ  REMBUKREIAEZR

$§EIEEEA§M$

FRENRENERERABZM
Fa kol @%EH&%H$ Al#H
ﬁ%?Zﬁ%'ﬁﬂﬁTi

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
1,058 1,063
43,765 40,793
11,762 4,984
1,086 791
57,671 47,631

ESHE - FHBEIARGEMH
WRHIFES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40.

Financial Instruments by Category

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments at

the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2021
Financial assets

Financial assets included in other assets
Financial assets designated at fair value

through other comprehensive income

Accounts receivable

Receivables arising from securities
and futures broking

Financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables
and other assets

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Cash held on behalf of clients

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities

Accounts payable
Payables arising from securities
and futures broking
Financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals
Customer gold deposits
Derivative financial instruments
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Bullion loans
Lease liabilities

mEMBERMEE

40. RERSEZSWMIA

RBEHF - BRI ZERIAEAEN
T
BHEE
Financial
Financial assets
assets at fair designated
value through at fair value
profit or loss- Financial  through other
mandatorily assets at comprehensive
designated amortised  income-equity
as such cost investments Total
RAVER EEARAT
FTABEN EEG AL
MEEE - BBERE 2EBER
BEERE 5 BRH BHERE -
R ER NEEE RARE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR FAT FAT
BREEMEE HBEE - 223,272 - 223,272
BEARATEBT AL
PHNENSBEE - - 1,551,449 1,551,449
FEWBR - 804,334 - 804,334
EERHEREEEY
FEWIBR R - 154,922 - 154,922
BEERMTE - EffEl
ERREMEENATS
BE - 73,122 - 73,122
BATEEFABEN
HBEE 10,204 - - 10,204
REPHERS - 3,885 - 3,885
ReRERHAS - 671,548 - 671,548
10,204 1,931,083 1,551,449 3,492,736
BHEE
Financial liabilities at
fair value through
profit or loss
RAFEEHA
BEMHIKERE
Designated Financial
as such liabilities at
upon initial Held for amortised
recognition trading cost Total
RIRERE REBHEREAR
EEALER BEEE ZHEEE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT THER THER THER
FERTER R - - 181,304 181,304
EERHEREEEL
ERTERR - - 3,885 3,885
BETEMEMRRR
[EEIER 2 BB RE - - 385,438 385,438
XPE® 21,295 - - 21,295
fTESBIA - 12,117 - 12,117
STERTER - - 1,185,708 1,185,708
ESRBEE 2,029,588 - - 2,029,588
HEBE - - 907,220 907,220
2,050,883 12,117 2,663,555 4,726,555
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBERERKE

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED (175

TH

£ 45K E R K

40. Financial Instruments by Category (continued) 40. RERSBEZERMIA(E)
2020
Financial assets BREE
Financial
Financial assets
assets at fair designated
value through at fair value
profit or loss- Financial through other
mandatorily assets at  comprehensive
designated amortised income-equity
as such cost investments Total
BATEE BERBRAT
FTABRH {BEE AL
HBEE - REERA 2EYEL
BHlEE Bl E) HBEE -
AR HKEE RHRE CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT T
Financial assets included in other assets BREEMEE MBEE - 207,170 = 207,170
Financial assets designated at fair value BERRATEB AR
through other comprehensive income 2ENHENIBEE = = 1,446,083 1,446,083
Accounts receivable FEER - 834,649 - 834,649
Receivables arising from securities ERRHEREEEY
and futures broking R - 658,673 - 658,673
Financial assets included in BELBMATE - EffEl
prepayments, other receivables ERRAMEENTS
and other assets BE = 71,299 = 71,299
Financial assets at fair value through BRATEEFABREN
profit or loss HBEE 9,634 = = 9,634
Cash held on behalf of clients REPHERS - 485,289 - 485,289
Cash and cash equivalents ReRhERAS - 1,653,767 - 1,653,767
9,634 3,910,847 1,446,083 5,366,564
Financial liabilities B¥EE
Financial liabilities at
fair value through
profit or loss
ONEETTEIN
BRmiBaE
Designated Financial
as such liabilities at
upon initial Held for amortised
recognition trading cost Total
iNIPR REHEKARAR
EEALER HEEE ZEBEE it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TET TAT TR
Accounts payable R ERR - - 129,803 129,803
Payables arising from securities ERRHEREEE Y
and futures broking AL - - 575,052 575,052
Financial liabilities included in other BEEEMENRRR
payables and accruals [EEHIER < BB RE = = 351,580 351,580
Customer gold deposits ZFEe 22,526 - - 22,526
Derivative financial instruments TESRTE - 7,054 - 7,054
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTERITER - - 1,079,929 1,079,929
Bullion loans HEBEE 1,002,135 - - 1,002,135
Lease liabilities HEEE = - 1,001,162 1,001,162
1,024,661 7,054 3,137,526 4,169,241

AR QA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Instruments

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of the Group’s

financial assets and liabilities approximated to their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of accounts receivable,
receivables arising from securities and futures broking, financial assets
included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets, cash held on
behalf of clients, cash and cash equivalents, accounts payable, payables
arising from securities and futures broking, financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals, customer gold deposits and bank borrowings
due for repayment within one year approximate to their carrying amounts

largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at
the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the

fair values:

The fair values of other assets and bank borrowings due for repayment
after one year approximate to their carrying amounts, which have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities. The changes in fair value as a result of the Group's
own non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank borrowings, bullion
loans and customer gold deposits as at 31 December 2021 were assessed

to be insignificant.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted market
prices. The fair values of the unlisted equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income have been estimated using
the income capitalisation method and asset-based method. The valuation
requires management to make estimates about the capitalisation rates.
Management believes that the estimated fair value resulting from the
valuation technique, which is recorded in the consolidated statement of
financial position, and the related change in fair value, which is recorded
in other comprehensive income, are reasonable, and that they were the

most appropriate values at the end of the reporting period.

The fair value of bullion loans and customer gold deposits is based on

open market prices of bullion.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with reputable
financial institutions or top bullion trading companies. As at 31 December
2021, derivative financial instruments represented bullion contracts which
are measured based on bullion market prices (2020: bullion contracts
and cross currency swaps which are measured based on bullion market
prices and swap pricing respectively). The carrying amounts of the bullion

contracts are the same as their fair values.

ma

41.

MBEHRME

SRTAZAPEERAVEESR

RBEHMR  AREZHBEERARZ
REEEEATEEES o

BEEDFERERN  EFRPERL
ELZ RN - B EBRNTA - A
AR R EMEELMBEEE  REP
BRAL ReRIRARE AKX
ERMEELEL  RNER BRE
HEft R R EFIER ZMBAGE &
PEERAR—FRIBEE ZRITEN
ZAFEERARTERS  T2HNZ
FTABRNEHRHY -

BEERABCAFEE  RTRAK
BREE DU BEROENR ST Z
TAAZBZ SBARK - At A FEER
ERTATIERRR :

HihEERER 1 FRIBEEZRTE
RZATEEREREERS  6HEA
ENFEAAEEEMUER  FERBRESFT
BB ITAC BB ERARTRERE
HARRRERE - AEER2021F12 A
N ERTER  E2BEERE
FhreEY 2 TRORMBITER 2 ATE
BERFETFHEALTEK o

THBRNKRE 2 X FEEHRENSRE
AE - BEAZRAFEESAEMZENR
@Ik EMBRNRE 2 A FHEEDHRAR
ABRMOER B EEREE L 5 - %08
HERREREHEAMC L RIER T -
EEEBRARGEERMEL AT AFE
EERERMBRRKCIRRABARTE
EEHCRNAM2ENECR XEA
B RARBEMRAREE 2EE -

EeBEEREPEFEZAVERBNERE
B AATENE

AEBFEEERIFZSHRBRBRES
BESRAFUTESRT A - 1X2021
FNANEB  TEERTEERESE
MGERTEZEEBAH(2020F : B
CBANRRXEEBBELIIZECEBT
GEEREHERNE) ESBAYZ
RAESEE A FEEER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41.

Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Instruments
(continued)

Set out below is a summary of significant unobservable input to the
valuation of financial instruments together with a quantitative sensitivity
analysis:

Valuation Significant
technique unobservable input

fhER M BEABUBEYE

As at 31 December 2021
72021%12831H

Unlisted equity investments Income  Capitalisation rate
designated at fair value capitalisation
through other comprehensive method
income

EERERNTEE AEM WAE R * EX{ptbx

FEMREHN I EHRHRE

Asset-based method N/A
EEERE ~ERA
As at 31 December 2020
20205128311
Unlisted equity investments Income Capitalisation rate
designated at fair value capitalisation
through other comprehensive method
income
EERERNTEEF AEM WAE R L% B E
FHRENI ETRHEE
Asset-based method N/A
BEAWE A

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED (177

BEEESEERARRDA

mEMBERMEE

4. S@MIAZAVEERAFEESR(E)

TEIHAERTAGEZEREUNEE
BEREERECBREN -

Sensitivity of
Range the input to fair value

gE FEHAVEEZRRE

3.8% to 1% increase/decrease in
4.5% capitalisation rate would
result in decrease/increase

in fair value by HK$193,000

3.8% BAR(bth =& m,
Z£4.5% A 1% BEH AT
EERD/#1h0193,000 % T

N/A N/A
TEA TEA
3.8% to 1% increase/decrease in
4.5% capitalisation rate would

result in decrease/increase
in fair value by HK$194,000

3.8% BEAR{cL =,
£45% B 1% BB AT
EBERD,1E1H1194,00078 7T

N/A N/A
TNEA NEA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41.

Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Instruments

(continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of the

Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2021

Financial assets designated at
fair value through other
comprehensive income

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

As at 31 December 2020

Financial assets designated at
fair value through other
comprehensive income

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

R2021%12A318

RERRDFERA
Hi 2R %
BE

BAYFEEFARZN
MHEE

R2020512A31H

HEREATEBEA
Eib 2 EKEMET

BATEERARRD
MBEE

41.

mEMBERMEE

APEEER

TRIAZAVEERAVTEESR(E)

TREJXEEEBTAZAFEENE

EH

BAVEEHECEE:

Fair value measurement using

RANTEE 2D EETE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERH S EAATRE EARUBE
HE £ g5
(& 51) (#RA12) (& R13) EH)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TR TET
1,515,025 - 36,424 1,551,449
10,204 - - 10,204
1,525,229 - 36,424 1,561,653
1,413,890 - 32,193 1,446,083
9,634 - - 9,634
1,423,524 - 32,193 1,455,717
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41.

Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of Financial Instruments

(continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The movements in fair value measurements in Level 3 during the year are

as follows:

Financial assets designated at fair value through

other comprehensive income:
At 1 January

Total gain/(loss) recognised in other comprehensive

income

At 31 December

Liabilities measured at fair value:

mEMBERMEE

4. S@MIAZAVEERAFEESHR(E)

APEESER(E)
FABBIIZAFHEEFELENT

As at 31 December 2021

Bullion loans
Derivative financial instruments
Customer gold deposits

As at 31 December 2020

Bullion loans
Derivative financial instruments
Customer gold deposits

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERx FHT
EEREATFEESARM
PEHRENTHEE
®n1A1A8 32,193 34,464
REMEZEKERERZ
Wzt (518 ) B 4,231 (2,271)
W12R8318 36,424 32,193
BEATEEFEZAE
Fair value measurement using
BHUTEE 2ALEEFE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EBMIE BAUBE EAHUEER
HE £ g
(&A1) (#R5A12) (&R 513) it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TR THT
M2021%F12831H
ELBIEE 2,029,588 - - 2,029,588
TEERMIA - 12,117 - 12,117
XPiEe 21,295 - - 21,295
2,050,883 12,117 - 2,063,000
#2020F12831H
ESBIEE 1,002,135 = = 1,002,135
TEEmIA - 7,054 - 7,054
REG® 22,526 - - 22,526
1,024,661 7,054 - 1,031,715

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for

both financial assets and financial liabilities.

FR - BBEERMBAE AR LR
B2 cRYERFEEFEEY  TEE
AHELARR3 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

(a)

Financial risk factors

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank
borrowings, and cash and bank deposits. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
accounts receivable and accounts payable, which arise directly from
its operations.

The Group’s overall risk management policies focus on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seek to reduce potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. Risk
management is carried out by management under the policies
approved by the Board and it identifies, evaluates and monitors
financial risks in close co-operation with the Group’s operating
units.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk,
equity price risk and commodity price risk. The Board reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are
detailed below.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk due to potential changes
in interest rates of interest-bearing financial assets and liabilities.
Interest-bearing financial assets are mainly loans to margin clients
whereas interest-bearing financial liabilities are primarily bank
borrowings with primarily floating interest rates which expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

For Hong Kong dollar floating-rate borrowings, assuming that
the amount of liability outstanding at the end of the reporting
period was outstanding for the whole year, a 50-basis point
increase/decrease in interest rates at 31 December 2021 and 2020
would have decreased/increased the Group's profit before tax by
HK$4,385,000 and HK$3,798,000, respectively. The sensitivity
to the interest rate used is considered reasonable, with all other
variables held constant and before any impact on tax.

The Group's interest rate risk exposure also arises from margin
financing and other lending activities arising from securities
businesses. The Group has the legal capacity to quickly recall
such loans or re-price its loans to an appropriate level. Due to the
wind down of the operation of the securities and futures broking
business, there was no interest rate risk as at 31 December 2021. In
prior year, a 50 basis-point increase/decrease in interest rates at 31
December 2020 would have increased/decreased the Group's profit
before tax by HK$1,320,000. The analysis is prepared assuming the
amount of assets carried at the end of the reporting period was
carried for the whole year. The sensitivity to the interest rate used
is considered reasonable, with all other variables held constant and
before any impact on tax.

The Group's policy is to obtain the most favorable interest rates
available without increasing its foreign currency exposures. In
addition, the Group monitors the level of interest rate exposure and
considers utilising hedging instruments should the need arise.

mEMBERMEE

42,

B¥EBREERERER

(a)

MREBREE

K%@ZE%@@IE@%%HE
FARERRITER  HESR
TAZTERZNRAEE X
E8E8% - AREBE THMUT
ﬁ%&ﬁ1%§ﬁ%a%ﬁ§%%
20 RE MR RR TR B FE A9 R X o

AREEBRAREERRH S
BTG HATEAE - WS FORE
HASBEMBRABKBETT
; RBRERLRERERES
EefcBRRET MERER
AEEEEBUETAE - UB
Al AR ERM R o

AEEeRIAMEE 2 TERAR
RAMERR  MERR - FER
ﬁ N //|L§bﬁ§ﬂ. HX1 f‘ﬁﬂﬂﬁ
kERERRR E=Z2EHTF
EIXrEEREEE N ERR 2
B

eI
AEERAGEVBEEREBEZH
RECEHMAZMEER EJFE'
MREETERARKFER
TQM%ELIXEE TER I
ZFBFIR B - BRAKE A
xﬁimiﬂrﬂh°

RETIDFAEERME  B&
RS B R A WZEEﬁ%B%
BEFEER  FIER2021ER
2020512 A31 B,/ % 450
BAEZ B2RRD 1 mARE
B % B A1 % 714,385,000 T &
37%0m%x EFEEME
BEAE R ATMHRBEYERNZ
BRT  AEERAEHMARNEZ
BRETBAIE -

AEBZFIRERMKE BEHE
BEEZHFEEEREMERE
B o REEHA AT E KA
%W@ﬁﬁAQYETEEﬁﬁm
BERKF - ARELERBELLE
ﬂ%%Lt M2021512 8318 1
EFERR - RBAEFE - FIER
20204E12 A31 B M,/ % 450
EEZE - BEm RO R EER
A& A1, 320 00078 7T ° Ltk 4T 5
BERNIRESRIEEESBT
ﬁ%ﬂiﬁﬂ%ﬁxﬁ EFBEH
EHEETE R ATAREY
BRIZBERT AEERAYTA
FRZHRETBARE -
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ZIERTEREAFZFIE o tEoh
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

(a)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures mainly arising from
sales or purchases by operating units in currencies other than the
units’ functional currency. Management conducted periodical review
of exposures and requirements of various currencies, and used cross
currency swaps to manage certain of its foreign currency exposures
on significant and recurring future commercial transactions.
Hedging is only considered for firm commitments.

The Group’s assets and liabilities are mainly denominated in Hong
Kong dollar, Renminbi and United States dollar. Currency risk is
managed by partly financing non-Hong Kong dollar assets with
loans denominated in the relevant currencies.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group's profit before tax (due to translation of monetary assets and
liabilities) and the Group's equity.

2021

If the Hong Kong dollar weakens BT AREESS
against the RMB

If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens {7 7t 5 A R hiag
against the RMB

2020
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens /&7t 3i AR KBTS
against the RMB

If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens 57T 5 A R ¥ fnsa
against the RMB

mEMBERMEE

42. BBEBREEEERNEK(E)

(a)

Increase/
(decrease)
RMB rate
ARBER
#m/ ()
%

(5

BREBEE(E)

SMEER
AEBZXHEBERTERG X
BEMAEDREH NI 2 S
T2EE - EEERTRERHORE
R BEETEHRR - YAAR
REBEFREREBARLRIER
REERHZETINERR - A&
BHEFLHETE AR T

AEBEZBERBRIBENET
ARBEETRENL - ERIMNER
BN ERAIMNEERBT LIFET
BEETHORME -

TRETHAMBRMERE T
ZERT  AEBNRERE B
BAERI(AEBEERE BN
g)RAEEOERHARKES
THAREH 2SS -

Increase/

(decrease) Increase/
in profit (decrease)
before tax in equity
BRBE AT R ez m/
#m/ () (R2)
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FTET
1,634 393,211
(1,634) (393,211)
4,975 348,765
(4,975) (348,765)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)
(@) Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk

The accounts receivable and receivables arising from securities and
futures broking represent the Group’s major exposure to the credit
risk arising from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these financial assets in
the consolidated statement of financial position. The Group's retail
sales of jewellery and watches and the transactions completed on
e-commerce platform are usually transacted on a cash basis, via
popular credit cards or through reputable and dispersed department
stores. The Group's credit sales to corporate clients and wholesale
customers are generally on credit terms within 60 days. The Group
has no significant concentrations of credit risk with respect to its
retail business as it has a large number of diversified customers.
For accounts receivable arising from the wholesale of diamonds
and precious metals, the Group trades only with recognised
and creditworthy third parties and bullion banks. The Group's
receivables from margin clients arising from the ordinary course
of business of dealing in securities are secured by the underlying
collaterals. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables and has its credit control policy to minimise
the credit risk. In addition, all receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and overdue balances are followed up by senior

management.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December. The amounts presented are gross

carrying amounts for financial assets.

mEMBERMEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

(a)

Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at 31 December 2021

Accounts receivable* JEUER T+
Receivables arising from &% RAIEE4E
securities and futures EE IR

broking

- Doubtful** - NHEE *+
Financial assets included in  BAEEMEEY

other assets HEAE

— Normal** = R
Financial assets included in - B2&EBNTE

prepayments, other Hit IR

receivables and other HUBENIBEE
assets
— Normal** = DEES

Cash held on behalf of REFREERS
clients

- Not yet past due - EARAH
Cash and cash equivalents BE&RERES
- Not yet past due - HARH

mEMBERMEE

42. HHEBREERBERBEE)

(a)

M EBEE(5)
EEER (&)

REEBRRFRDER DK (E)

N2021F12831R°

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECL
1218 A ?E_,Hﬁ )
REFR ERENEERR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
RN F1RR BIRR Bl r% &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THR THER THER THR
- - - 916,523 916,523
- - 731,573 - 731,573
223,272 - - - 223,272
73,122 - - - 73,122
3,885 - - - 3,885
671,548 - - - 671,548
971,827 - 731,573 916,523 2,625,923

CHOW SANG SANG HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED /183  ANNUAL REPORT 2021

BEEESEERARA

Al

2021 4 3R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42.

mEMBERMEE

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued) 42. HEEREEAERBE(E)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) BIHEREZEE)
Credit risk (continued) R (&)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) REERRERER S (E)
As at 31 December 2020 R2020512A31H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECL
12{HA%EH
FEBS *HRBEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F1[RE F2RB F3BE BlbnE CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T THL
Accounts receivable* FEYRST - - = 884,455 884,455
Receivables arising from X RHAEEL
securities and futures EEZRYER
broking
- Normal** -EF* 425,434 - - - 425,434
- Doubtful** - NEE - 11,888 711,095 - 722,983
Financial assets included in B 2EEMEE
other assets MBEE
- Normal** -EE* 207,170 - - - 207,170
Financial assets included in  @A7EENHIE -
prepayments, other Eth KSR
receivables and other HtEENTBEE
assets
- Normal** -EF* 71,299 - - - 71,299
Cash held on behalf of ~ REFHEES
clients
— Not yet past due - WARBH 485,289 = = = 485,289
Cash and cash equivalents B&REREE
— Not yet past due - WA 1,653,767 = = = 1,653,767
2,842,959 11,888 711,095 884,455 4,450,397
& For accounts receivable to which the Group applies the simplified approach * A5 B e A 1L 77 sURT i e AR

for impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in
note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

*x The credit quality of the receivables arising from securities and futures
broking, financial assets included in other assets and financial assets
included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets is considered
to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is no information
indicating that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets
is considered to be “doubtful”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

mEMBERMEE

42. HHEBREERERBEE)

(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) HEEREZ(HE)
Liquidity risk B E DR
The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash AEBERTHEZESNERES
equivalents deemed adequate by management to finance the REBAERARWKE AKX
Group's operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuation in cash SEEFREESRENR SRS
flows. The responsibility of the Group’s treasury department is to KRB ARBEEBKHBAZE
maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility TEEBERRTEEEESZHE
through the use of banking facilities in order to meet its liquidity B R EE 2 FIE T - R
requirements both in the short term and long term. The Group EHEHERRARSHELENK - K
maintains significant flexibility to respond to opportunities and EEEBRREEDHE AR
events by ensuring that committed credit lines are available. All EEHEE  #RHRREELALE
debts of the Group (other than lease liabilities) as at 31 December R EM e 2021512 A31
2021 would mature within three years. B AEEMAEEEEEARR
SR =FNEIE -
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities at the end RBEHK - AEB WA ER
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted BETREARFTRFEAE 2 3 HE
payments, is as follows: Py INE
2021
No fixed
terms of 1 year 2 years 5 years
repayment/ or less or less or less
repayable 3 months but over but over but over Over
on demand orless 3 months 1 year 2 years 5 years Total
BETE
B4/ E% 130T 28gUT  SEIUT
EXEE EAIMT  E3@AME  B1ENE  E2EMNL SENL At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén Tén T Tén T T Tén
Accounts payable ERER 94,159 87,145 - - - - 181,304
Payables arising from securities  ERRBEMEEE,
and futures broking ERER 3,885 - - - - - 3,885
Financial liabilities included BAEEMENENR
in other payables and accruals  JERTRE 2B EfR 141,508 243,930 - - - - 385,438
Customer gold deposits RFEé 21,295 - - - - - 21,295
Derivative financial instruments {744 % TA - 12,117 - - - = 2,117
Lease liabilites HERR - 152,145 369,817 265,198 181,213 2113 970,546
Term loans subject to repayment  REZESEERZ
on demand clause THER 337,962 - - - - - 337,962
Other interest-bearing bank EbzrafiTER
borrowings - 135,131 354,872 235,547 144,933 - 870,483
Bullion loans BERBER - 1,287,502 742,086 - - - 2,029,588
598,809 1,917,970 1,466,775 500,745 326,146 2173 4,812,618
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42.

mEMBERMEE

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and
the value of individual securities. The fair values of these listed
equity investments are affected by market forces and other factors.
The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from individual
equity investments classified as financial assets designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income (note 20) and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (note 25) as at
31 December 2021. The Group's listed investments are listed on
the Stock Exchange and are valued at quoted market prices at
the end of the reporting period. The majority of the listed equity
investments are held for non-trading purposes.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 10%
change in the fair values of the equity investments, with all other
variables held constant and before any impact on tax, based on
their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period. For the
purpose of this analysis, the impact with respect to the financial
assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
is deemed to be on the fair value reserve.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued) 42. HEEREEAERBE(E)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) BIREREZE)
Liquidity risk (continued) REEZEE(E)
2020
No fixed
terms of 1 year 2 years 5 years
repayment/ or less or less or less
repayable 3 months but over but over but over Over
on demand or less 3 months 1 year 2 years 5 years Total
EEEE
R/ BR VEGUT  253NT  SERNT
EXER IEAYNT EI@AMLE  EIEME  E2ENE SERE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt Thn Fitn Tk T Tt Tk
Accounts payable ERER 81,174 48,629 - - - = 129,803
Payables arising from securiies ~ EFRBELEEEY
and futures broking ERER 486,508 88,544 - - - - 575,052
Financial liabilties included BREARERESR
in other payables and accruals  [EFTEE ZBIBEE 151,240 200,340 = = = = 351,580
Customer gold deposits RFR4 22,526 - - - - = 22,526
Derivative financial instruments ~ fT££BTA - 4120 2,934 - - - 7,054
Lease liabilities HERE - 159,545 431,208 314,926 141,409 11,910 1,058,998
Term loans subject to repayment  REXEEKT L
on demand clause THER 297,580 - - - - - 297,580
Other interest-bearing bank At 8 RIER
borrowings - 118,412 298,278 259,973 126,751 - 803,414
Bullion loans BEBEE - 924,264 71871 - - - 1,002,135
1,039,028 1,543,854 810,291 574,899 268,160 11,910 4248142
Equity price risk RGBT AR

B BERRERNES 2 ATE
BERBROESKERBERNEREE
HREHM TR ER - HE LM
BROBEZAFEBESTHENER
HihAZRFE - AEER20215F
12ANBHAERETREAT
BEFAEBEENENTBEEE
(MsE20) RIBEAFEBESAEE
BB %8 E (KT sk 25) 2 8 B A% 5
BREERMAZRDERRE - ]E
Bz EmiRE R LT 0 AR
EHRFTMMETE - ABH L™
BB FIEIEEERE °

MRERERREAR 2 REEG

AREFENHRNRERTER
F10% B 2 BRE - AN
MmE @ WEEREAFEEAR
twEERENPBEE AR E
DRBRBE A FEERBERT

428

= o
=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REMBERERKE

42. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued) 42, BHEREEBEZERBKR(E)
(a)  Financial risk factors (continued) (a) HEEREZ(E)
Equity price risk (continued) R EEESE(E)
Carrying Increase/
amount decrease Increase/
of equity in profit decrease
investments before tax in equity
RBEREZ BRBE AT A i
REE #, wW> i,/ 5w
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER FTER
2021

Investments listed in Hong Kong: REBLMZEE :
Financial assets designated at fair T A% AFEE

value through other SPAE M2 E K
comprehensive income MIBEE 1,515,025 - 151,503
Financial assets at fair value BATEE ABZR
through profit or loss MBS EE 10,204 1,020 =
2020

Investments listed in Hong Kong: ~ R&EB LM ZKE :
Financial assets designated at fair 1T A% AT EE

value through other SPAE M2 E K
comprehensive income MBS EE 1,413,890 = 141,389
Financial assets at fair value BAFEER;ABRR
through profit or loss MBEE 9,634 963 =
Commodity price risk Bon (B 15 B
The Group is engaged in the sale of jewellery including bullion FEENEHERE  0FESE
products. The bullion market is influenced by global as well as Em - BEEBMEX2TRARME
regional supply and demand conditions. A significant decline MHEKERZE - EEBERAK
in prices of bullion could adversely affect the Group's financial Al BE AR B 2 B AR BB R
performance. In order to reduce the commodity price risk, the T8  REEEmERER A&
Group uses bullion loans as well as derivative financial instruments, BFREcBEEURESBEN
such as bullion contracts, to reduce its exposure to fluctuation in ETESRIE UREESEE
the bullion prices on bullion inventories. The bullion price exposures REBEHESBETE 2 RBAIE -
are monitored by management. ;ﬁﬁ@@%%@ﬁ@%%%Z@ LIRS
For the bullion loans and bullion contracts, assuming that the HECBEERERBEAME
amount outstanding at the end of the reporting period was BN REMRER 2 SETINE
outstanding for the whole year, a 10% increase/decrease in BAFEELER  E€BHER2021
market prices of bullion at 31 December 2021 and 2020 would F%2020F 128318 &M,/ R
have decreased/increased the Group’s profit before tax by $10% + 9D RR DA E
HK$286,564,000 and HK$141,155,000, respectively. The sensitivity & % 77 A& 7 286,564,000 78 7T &
to the market prices of bullion used is considered reasonable, with 141,155,000 % 7T © {EFTH KM &
all other variables held constant and before any impact on tax. SR RET AMERIBIE R BRI
This information has not taken into account the potential financial ZERAT  AEERAHMAES
impact on other financial statement line items. BHECHRENBERE - LEH
WEZEHEMIBHRRIARE &
B E o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (continued)

(b) Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain a healthy capital ratio in order to support its business and

to enhance shareholders’ value.

The Group regards equity attributable to owners of the Company
as its capital and manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and
business strategies. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, raise and
repay debts or issue new shares. The Group is required to comply
with certain externally imposed capital requirements set out in
certain of its banking facility agreements. Additionally, certain
subsidiaries engaged in securities and futures broking, which are
regulated entities under the Securities and Futures Commission
of Hong Kong (“SFC”), and a subsidiary which is a member of
the CGSE, are required to comply with the respective minimum
capital requirements imposed by the SFC and the CGSE. During the
two years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, these subsidiaries
complied with the respective minimum capital requirements
imposed by the SFC and the CGSE. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the

years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total
borrowings to total equity attributable to owners of the Company.
Total borrowings include interest-bearing bank borrowings, interest-
bearing bank borrowings arising from securities and futures broking
and bullion loans. Total equity comprises all components of equity
attributable to owners of the Company. The Group's policy is to
maintain the gearing ratio at a reasonable level. The gearing ratios

at the end of the reporting periods were as follows:

Total borrowings BieE

Total equity attributable to owners
of the Company

Gearing ratio

EINSE N T

ma

42,

MBEHRME

B E R EE R R REE(R)
(b) EXEE

AEBRELAER T RABRARE
AEBPFEREXB N Uk
PR BALE U EER
REMBRR 2 EE

AEEBARAREA AEHERE
HEAR  WIRELEMR R E TSR
ZEHEMABALERE  WHEHE
LR - BRI ARERERE -
AN & B A g B 1) IR SRR A5 2 B
B EMREEBEBEHETHR -
AEERETEETRITHE =
Fi# 2 B TFIMNEB AR © B -
ETHBRARREESRHELEL
RV ABEEFRBEEHER
ZES(BESDMEIIREE
B UER—ZRXMBARASRER
5% 288 ZEARBETHEE
eheREEFSERIEBERK
BEARBTE - REIE2021F %2020
FNRAJNBUEMEFE  ZEW
BRARETHRESRSRELHH
ZEERZEEREART - HZE
20214 % 202012 B31H IE &
B AEEEEEAZBE - BE
SEFITEELES -

=}

BEHARREE ARG EER)E
BEAR - BEEBE BRI

oo BLFRNERLEEL ZEER
TERNESEES - AERGHE
ARAGER ANRIEHES 2 FA &
7N ARBZBR/KERAELL
KUFERIERAKY - RIMEHRZ

BARGBHEMT -
2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$°000
TERT TR
3,215,296 2,082,064
12,753,120 12,019,114
25.2% 17.3%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43.

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The following tables set out details of financial instruments subject to
offsetting at the end of the reporting period.

Assets
Accounts receivable

Liabilities
Accounts payable

mEMBERMEE

43. HEHEMBEERUBEE
TREFINBERRZEENRZERT

HEFg o
2021
Gross
amounts of
recognised  Net amounts
financial  of financial Related amounts
liabilities assets  not set off in the consolidated
setoff  presented Statement of financial position
Gross in the inthe FRERGEUBRRRPEHZ
amounts of  consolidated consolidated RELE
recognised  statement statement of Cash
financial  of financial financial Financial collateral
assets position position instruments pledged  Net amount
REEHE  RGRUE
RR & VL
CRANE CEANE  RHEZHE BEARE
EEAR REAE BEFE $RIE it it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TAn TAn TEn TEn
EE
FEMEETR 805,437 (1,103) 804,334 - - 804,334
Gross
amounts of
recognised  Net amounts
financial  of financial Related amounts
assets liabilities  not set off in the consolidated
setoff  presented Statement of financial position
Gross in the inthe FAERGRUBRRRPEHZ
amounts of  consolidated consolidated RBLE
recognised  statement statement of Cash
financial  of financial financial Financial collateral
liabilities position position instruments pledged  Net amount
REERE  RERUE
RRETES bViEL
CRANE CRANE  2HZHE BEARE
afE4E EEAR AEFE $RIA g it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TAn TAn TEn TEn
ff
ANk 182,407 (1,103) 181,304 - - 181,304

~ A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43.

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (continued)

Assets

Accounts receivable

Receivables arising from securities
and futures broking

Liabilities

Accounts payable

Payables arising from securities
and futures broking

mEMBERMEE

43. EEMKEERMKEE(E)
2020
Gross
amounts of
recognised  Net amounts
financial  of financial Related amounts
liabilities assets  not set off in the consolidated
set off presented  Statement of financial position
Gross in the inthe RARGARBBRARPESEL
amounts of  consolidated  consolidated RE2E
recognised  statement of  statement of Cash
financial financial financial Financial collateral
assets position position  instruments pledged  Net amount
RERIE  WNEEHHK
HRAEDHH A%
BRRAE CEEIRE  2R0E BERRS
BEDE Al REFR ERIE gl i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAR TAL TAL TAL TAL
B
e 834,950 (301) 834,649 - - 834,649
ERRBEELEE,
FElER 796,051 (137,378) 658,673 - - 658,673
1,631,001 (137,679) 1493322 - - 1,493,322
Gross
amounts of
recognised  Net amounts
financial ~ of financial Related amounts
assets liabilities  not set off in the consolidated
set off presented  Statement of financial position
Gross in the inthe RARGRBBRARPESEL
amounts of  consolidated  consolidated RE2E
recognised statement  statement of Cash
financial  of financial financial Financial collateral
liabilities position position  instruments pledged  Net amount
RERIE  RESHHK
WREDEH A%
BREINE <CEINE  2RUH BERRS
SR8 BESE BEFE $HIA i i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAR TAL TAL TAL TAL
a8
FENER 130,104 (301) 129,803 - - 129,803
BERAELREEL
8 712,430 (137,378) 575,052 - - 575,052
842,534 (137,679) 704,855 - - 704,855

AEESEBERARRQA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

44,

45,

Event after the Reporting Period

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the fifth wave of the
covid-19 outbreak in March has had a significant impact on the economic
activities in Hong Kong. The Group’s jewellery retail operations in Hong
Kong were also affected with temporary closure of certain retail stores
or adjustments to operating hours. Given the dynamic nature of the
circumstances, the overall financial effect of the above cannot be reliably
estimated for future reporting periods of 2022. Management will continue
to closely monitor the development and evaluate the impact on the
Group's financial position and performance.

Statement of Financial Position of the Company

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at
the end of the reporting period is as follows:

ERBEE
INGIEPNCIPA: 53

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Interests in subsidiaries

CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments TRIE

Cash and cash equivalents RekERRE
Total current assets BREEE
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE

Other payables and accruals
Tax payable fERITE

Total current liabilities NN =N

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REEEFE
Net assets EEFE
EQUITY R

Issued capital BEITHRA
Reserves (note) & ()
Total equity R

Vincent CHOW Wing Shing FAXKE
Director 5% Director

Hio BN KRR REHRE

ma

44,

45,

Winston CHOW Wun Sing

MBEHRME

BERREE

BEHERE 3AM2019BNFESER
R BNEREHEENEEEDELTE
AEE - AEEERESNKRETEERIT
REETEERAEREENAREER
MHZE - ERNERRNFESLEE &
SR S 4 b AT AR AE 2022 R R IR
CHRANBENKYE - EEESEESR
IR EREE T T EUREBRIT MR

MEENTE -

AR BRR R

ARARAREE BRI MBARRKZE
BT

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET
2,905,656 3,182,683
343 337

1,813 1,553
2,156 1,890
6,359 7,544

76 21

6,435 7,565
(4,279) (5,675)
2,901,377 3,177,008
169,359 169,359
2,732,018 3,007,649
2,901,377 3,177,008

B
g%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

45.

mEMBERMEE

Statement of Financial Position of the Company (continued) 45, ADPTHHRAR(E)
Note: Bzt -
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: AAEIREZBENT
Share
Share option Contributed Retained
premium reserve surplus profits Total
BRORE BRERE BB REREF &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET THER TET TERT
At 1 January 2020 R2020F1 A 1H 1,060,356 14,268 975,582 918,485 2,968,691
Profit and total FRNRFREE
comprehensive income W B e
for the year - - - 242,189 242,189
Transfer of share option FA )R M5 B s e e
reserve upon the forfeiture  BERZIEREE
of share options - (14,268) - 14,268 -
Dividends declared and FANEREAMRE
paid during the year - - - (203,231) (203,231)
At 31 December 2020 72020912 A31H
and 1 January 2021 &2021%F1 418 1,060,356 - 975,582 971,711 3,007,649
Profit and total FEREMNRER
comprehensive income Wiz 4258
for the year - - - 103,732 103,732
Dividends declared FAE R KA E
and paid during the year - - - (379,363) (379,363)
At 31 December 2021 2021912 A31H 1,060,356 - 975,582 696,080 2,732,018

The Company’s contributed surplus arose in 1992 as a result of the
Group's reorganisation and represents the difference between the nominal
value of the Company’s shares allocated under the reorganisation scheme
and the then consolidated net asset value of the acquired subsidiaries.

Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the contributed surplus is
distributable to shareholders under certain circumstances.

ARBRM 9N FELECHABBRELR
EEEA  HRBEAFBERE ZARF
BnhEERKKBHREARER ZEAE
EFECZRE

BREAFE1981FRADE  BETER
T HABBRA DK TR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46.

Particulars of Subsidiaries

Information about subsidiaries is as follows:

Place of
incorporation/

46.

Issued ordinary

mEMBERMEE

MELQ AR

MBAR.ZERMT :

Percentage
of equity

registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name and business  registered capital the Company activities
RI,/ ERTZERE/ AR frdh
8 AR & R AR A BRER DL TEXEH
Direct Indirect
HE e
Acclaim Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands US$600,000 - 100  Investment holding
HERRAA REERRES 600,000 7T REER
Best Choice Properties Limited* Hong Kon HK$1 - 100 Property investment
B AT MERE
Chow Sang Sang Bullion Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 100  Investment holding
Dealers Limited
BAEELHERDF BB 5,000,000 77T REZR
Chow Sang Sang (China) People’s Republic of ~ HK$1,500,000,000 - 100 Sale of jewellery
Company Limited* China/Mainland China and watches
BEE(FR)EEERDA * hEARAME, 1,500,000,000 7T RERBREE
B BE
Chow Sang Sang Commodities Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 100 Dormant
Limited
BEEERERAF e 5,000,000 7T TEER
Chow Sang Sang Corporate Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100 Sale of corporate
Gift Limited gift products
BEECEERBRAR Bt 1,000,000 # 7T PERMIEE
Chow Sang Sang Diamond People’s Republic of RMB 10,000,000 - 100 Diamond polishing
(Guangdong) Co., Ltd.* China/Mainland China
BEEER(ER)BRAR REARAEME, 10,000,000 TARE EOITE
B K R
Chow Sang Sang Diamond People’s Republic of US$10,000,000 - 100 Diamond trading
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* China/Mainland China
AEEER(EB)BRAR hEARAME 10,000,000 7T BLREE
LalETPN =
Chow Sang Sang Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$15,000,000 - 100 Group financing
B EB B ER DA o 15,000,000/8 7T SERE
Chow Sang Sang Futures Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 100  Investment holding
BEEHEERAF BB 5,000,000 %7 REZR
Chow Sang Sang Holdings (BVI) British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100 - Investment holding
Limited
BAEEEE(RBERARES) KBRS 50,000 % 7T REER
BRAR
Chow Sang Sang Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$250 - 100  Investment h\olding
REEEEBRLAA Bt 25078 7T RERKR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46.

Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

46.

Issued ordinary

mEMBERMEE

HE QRS ()

Percentage
of equity

registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name and business  registered capital the Company activities
RI,/ ERTZERE A8 frdh .
=t AR & B aEfRA BRER DL TEEK
Direct Indirect
HE ik
Chow Sang Sang International Hong Kong/ HK$2 - 100 Property investment
(Shunde) Limited Mainland China
B BRR (B ) B IR A R NV al= NG 28T MERE
Chow Sang Sang Investments Hong Kong HK$2,500,000 - 100  Investment holding
Limited
BEERERRRA BE 2,500,000/8 7T REER
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Provision of
(China) Limited marketing services
and
investment holding
BEEEKRE (PER)BRAR i 18T TR SRR
K&k
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery Hong Kong HK$30,000,000 - 100 Retail of jewellery
Company Limited and watches
BEERBESTAERRAA BB 30,000,000 KRERERTE
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery People’s Republic of HK$275,307,500 - 100 Manufacture and
(Foshan) Co., Ltd.* China/Mainland China sale of jewellery
BEHEERE (FIL)BRAA REARLNE, 275,307,500 RERERHE
BIRRE
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery Singapore SG$2 - 100 Dormant
Pte Ltd
EARIIT 2HTT Fme
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery People’s Republic of RMB20,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and
(Qingdao) Co., Ltd.* China/Mainland China sale of jewellery
BAEERE(FE)ARAR* FEARLFE, 20,000,000 7T ARE RERERHE
FBIRRE
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery People’s Republic of HK$24,400,000 - 100 Manufacture and
(Shaanxi) Co., Ltd.* China/Mainland China sale of jewellery
BAEEKEST(RA)ERAR hEARANE 24,400,000 78 7T RESHEREE
B
Chow Sang Sang Jewellery British Virgin Islands/ US$50,000 - 100 Sale of jewellery
(Taiwan) Limited Taivvap
BEEREITROBRAR HEHRRES 2E 50,000 % 7T KEHE
Chow Sang Sang Manufacturing British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100  Investment holding
International Limited
B EHREE AR AR RBERRES 17T REER
Chow Sang Sang Nominees Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100 Provision of property
nominee services
BEEREBABRAA B 1,000,000 77T REYERIE AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

46.

Issued ordinary

ma

MBEHRME

B RFE ()

Percentage
of equity

registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name and business  registered capital the Company activities
RE,/ ERTEZERE/ A28 frdh
8 AR & B aEfRA BRER DL TEEK
Direct Indirect
HE ik
Chow Sang Sang Property British Virgin Islands US$30,000 - 100  Property investment
Holdings (BVI) Limited (redomiciled from
Netherlands Antilles)/
Hong Kong
RBER RS 30,0003 T MERE
(BERERNIIE),/
b
Chow Sang Sang Properties Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 - 100 Property investment
AEEEXEBRAR a5 10,000,000 & 7T MERE
Chow Sang Sang Securities Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 - 100 Securities broking
BAEEBSFERAR EE 10,000,000 %7T BHEL
Emphasis Jewellery Company Limited Macau MOP25,000 - 100 Retail of jewellery
HERAEARLDA )l 25,0002 7T RETE
Foshan Shunde Jinpeng Jewelry People’s Republic of RMB 1,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and
Company Limited* China/Mainland China sale of jewellery
LmEER S ERE a5 hEAREME 1,000,000 TARE RERERHE
EREMERA* B
Fullink Developments Inc." British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Dormant
REERRES 17T Tmex
Hong Kong Gemological Research Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100 Gemological
and Authentication Centre research and
Company Limited authentication
BEABRAEREEHOERAT B 100,000 87T BEOMERET
The Future Rocks Company Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 80 E-commerce
platform and
investment holding
Bk 100,000 & 7T EFHETAR
REZRK
The Future Rocks (Guangdong) People’s Republic of HK$65,500,000 - 80 E-commerce
Company Limited* China/Mainland China platform
AREFEBER)BRAF> hEARKNE, 65,500,000 87T EfHEYS
Hh B K R
Tsin Chuk Kam Manufactory Ltd. British Virgin Islands/ US$100,000 - 100 Processing of
Mainland China jewellery
TREJEMBRAA HBHRARES,/ 100,000 37T HKEMT
B BE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46.

47.

48.

Particulars of Subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorporation/

46

Issued ordinary

mEMBERMEE

MR (E)

Percentage
of equity

registration share capital/ attributable to Principal
Name and business  registered capital the Company activities
Ry, ERTZERES ARG .
=g B3 AES AR A RERDL TEEK
Direct Indirect
B G
World Commercial Sales Hong Kong HK$2,500,000 - 100 Wholesale of
Company Limited precious metals
RS ETERAR N 2,500,000 7T BB
338.Net Limited Hong Kong HK$2 = 100 Dormant
&5 28T Tmes
o These companies were registered as wholly-foreign-invested enterprises under the * ﬁt%@ﬂ)ﬁﬁﬂi*ﬁ%\ﬁ%ﬂi@%ﬂﬁ
law of the People’s Republic of China ZRINGIREDE
# Incorporated during the year ended 31 December 2021 # HE2021F12 A31 BEFERKIL
" Dissolved during the year ended 31 December 2021 g BZE2021F12 A31 BILEENHH
47. HEREZF

Comparative Figures

Certain comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to the
disclosure requirement in respect of the discontinued operation set out in
note 12. The comparative figures in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and certain notes to the consolidated financial statements have
been restated as if the operation discontinued during the current year had
been discontinued at the beginning of the prior year.

Approval of the Consolidated Financial Statements

48.

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2022.

ATHBRAFEABUENT1225]2
BRIEREXBEEAE B - REBEXR
PEaUBHRRE THEZLBEFEE
5 SAFEARIREXBIMAEFE
FREKL -

FEMBRR M E

RNFAMBHRERN 2022563 A 22 QS
e REETE -
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES HELD

Particulars of major properties held by the Group are as follows:

FrisMEFE

AEEFENIBYEFFOT

Gross Lease
Description Lot Number Use Floor Area Type Term
BE 1 B SR & A& BEEE BE R
(Sqg. ft. approx.)
(REFEFR)
Hong Kong
o
#229 Nathan Road, Kowloon K.I.L. 6357 Rental/own use  30,632* Commercial Short
NERBUE 229 2 ey =y [EES 5]
* G/F & M/F, 326-328 Castle Peak Road, N.K.I.L. 2507 & 2177 Rental/own use  2,790* Commercial Medium
Kowloon
BES LB 326 Z 328 %ty MERIME etV AE) GES R
#* G/F & 1/F, 99-101 Wuhu Street, HH.ILL. 472, 471 & Own use 2,345* Commercial Medium
Hunghom, Kowloon 447 s A
FUBBALIEE S 99 = 101 B T ] 148 BA EES H
# Roof, G/F & 1/F, 432 Prince Edward Road N.K.I.L. 2266 R.P. Rental/own use  1,788* Commercial Medium
West, Kowloon
NBEATEAARFHT 1 ERKE e =)= EES H
Shop B, G/F, 428-430 Prince Edward Road N.K.I.L. 2267 R.P. Rental 1,078* Commercial Medium
West, Kowloon & 2268 R.P.
NBEA THER 428 = 430 ST B 4 gl [EES T
Flat A, 11/F and Roof, 199 Nam Cheong N.K.I.L. 1230 s.A.R.P. Rental 551* Residential Medium
Street, Kowloon & s.B.ss.2
NEEEH19% NI ABEXRSE Rapi! F= H
2/F, Flats A & B, 3/F, 4/F, 5/F & Flat A, 6/F, K.I.L. 6642 Rental/own use  10,784* Commercial Short
231 Nathan Road, Kowloon
BRIE 2315218 3 EARBE ey =y [EES 5]
41 S5 ER6IEAR
Units A1, A2, A3, A4, A6, A8, Al1, A13, N.K.I.L. 3515 s C, Rental/own use 48,675 Industrial Medium
1/F, Units A2, A4, A6, A8, A13, 2/F, D&F
Unit A4, 8/F & Unit A3, 10/F, Block A,
489-491 Castle Peak Road, Kowloon
NEEBIE 489 E 491 AE 1 AT ey I H

A2~A3 A4~ A6 A8 A1l AI13ZE -
21 A2 AL A6-A8AI3E -8R
AMZERI0EAIE
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES HELD

FrisMEFE

Gross Lease
Description Lot Number Use Floor Area Type Term
BE 1t ER 55 8 A% BEER BE R
(Sq. ft. approx.)
(RATFAR)
Hong Kong
BH
Car Ports No. 7 & 22 on G/F, Car Ports No.  K.I.L. 10223 Rental/own use  N/A Car park Medium
26 & 57 in Basement, Ho On Mansion,
107-109 Austin Road, Kowloon
JUEER @ 107 &= 109 SRAT &g T &L LVl TEA B i
7 % 22 SR RSEEARL 26 ] 57 5%
Car Parking Space No. B162 in Basement, R.P. of K.I.L. 4208 Rental N/A Car park Long
Balwin Court, 154-164 Argyle Street,
Kowloon
BEDREH 1S4 E 164 REZMBE A TE B 3
B162 SRE L
* G/F-3/F, 691-693 Nathan Road, Kowloon K.I.L. 2444 s AR.P.  Rental/own use 9,890* Commercial Medium
& 2444 R.P.
NEERHIE 691 = 693 St T = 318 HiE,/ 8 A [GES i
* 85 Castle Peak Road, Yuen Long, Lot No. 3640 in Own use 2,702 Commercial Medium
New Territories D.D. 120
HARTHAT LR 85 R ME S EES H
" Shop B, G/F, 70-78 Kwong Fuk Road, Tai Po Town Lot Own use 2,089* Commercial ~ Medium
Tai Po, New Territories No. 28
MAREERBEIOZ 785 T B EAR [EES e
Shop No. 305, G/F, Lok Hin Terrace, 350 Chai Wan Inland Rental 175* Commercial ~ Medium
Chai Wan Road, Hong Kong Lot No. 149
EBLIEIE 350 FEF AT 305 57 H [EES F
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES HELD

Description

BE

Lot Number Use

R iz

FrisMEFE

Gross
Floor Area

BEER

Type
BE

Lease
Term

A

Mainland China
B KB

East of Guangzhu Highway, Licun
Management Zone, Licun District,
Lunjiao Town, Shunde District,
Foshan City, Guangdong Province

BRABILTIEEE GEESNERE
& TR R

154077-014 Rental

ki

(Sq. ft. approx.)
(RATFAR)

123,700

Industrial/
commercial

T%/B%

Medium

# Unit No. 1-1, Fulihua Mansion, No. 150
Qinghui Road, Daliang Town,
Shunde District, Foshan City,
Guangdong Province

EREFILMIEEZRAREBER 150 5%
EBERE1HZ

134092-003 Own use

=pi

1,906

Commercial

[GES

Medium

16/F, Block B, R&F Yingtai Plaza, Section 2,
No. 100 Huangpu Avenue West,
Tianhe District, Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province

BEREBEMTANREHAER 100 5% 2 &
ENERESBE16[E

2310-7-50 Own use

=i

23,686

Commercial

[GES

Medium

Car Parking Space Nos. 200 and 201,
2nd Basement, R&F Yingtai Plaza,
Section 2, No.100 Huangpu Avenue West,
Tianhe District, Guangzhou City,
Guangdong Province
EREEMT RN RERAERE 100 5 2 &
ENRFERESE 2 8 200 K& 201 REA

2310-7-50 Own use

=pi

N/A

TEH

Car park

B

Medium

o
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES HELD

Description

BE

Lot Number
R SR &

Use

Jich=

FrisMEFE

Gross
Floor Area

BEER

Type
BE

Lease
Term

A

Mainland China
B KR

Unit Nos. 1601-1602, 16/F, Block B,
Vanmetropolis, No.1 Tangyan Road,
High-tech District, Xian City, Shaanxi
Province

PR & 7O % T =0 27 [ RSB 1 SR AT R
BIFRI B FE 16 /€ 1601 2 1602 =

10501060004-17

Own use

=pi

(Sq. ft. approx.)
(REFFR)

5,025

Commercial

[GES

Medium

Car Parking Space No. D010, 1st Basement
and Car Parking Space No. FO61,
2nd Basement, Vanmetropolis,
No.1 Tangyan Road, High-tech District,
Xian City, Shaanxi Province

PR & 7O % T =0 27 [ RSB 1 SR AT R
BB 1 EEE DR 010 R
BT 2 BEEFE 061 SREAL

10501060004-17

Own use

B

N/A

R

Car park

B

Medium

No. 3 Xinxi 4th Road North, Lunjiao Town,
Shunde District, Foshan City,
Guangdong Province

BEREABLUTIRERBHENE 4 B 3 5%

164084-189

Own use

B

583,225

Industrial

%

Medium

Taiwan

22

Units 1-2, 7/F, No. 21, Sec. 6, Zhongxiao E.
Rd., Nangang Dist., Taipei, Taiwan, R.0.C.

HERFEEESITESELZRE 6 B
2050718182 By

0568-0000

Own use

=i

6,847

Commercial

[GES

Freehold

KAKRE

Car Parking Space Nos. 132 and 133 in
B5, No. 21, Sec. 6, Zhongxiao E. Rd.,
Nangang Dist., Taipei, Taiwan, R.0.C.

FERBEESITEEELZRE 6 R
215%™ 5 8 132 & 133 $REAL

0568-0000

Own use

EH

N/A

Car park

B

Freehold

KAKRE

Location of branches
DITHLZE

* Saleable area
ERAMEE
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INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS

Financial Calendar

Announcement of 2021 interim results: 26 August 2021
2021 interim dividend payment: 23 September 2021
Announcement of 2021 annual results: 22 March 2022

Closure of register of members for
annual general meeting:

24 May to 27 May 2022
(both dates inclusive)

Annual general meeting: 27 May 2022

2 June to 7 June 2022
(both dates inclusive)

Closure of register of members for
final dividend:

2021 final dividend payment: 16 June 2022

Share Information
Stock code on The Stock Exchange of 116
Hong Kong Limited:

Board lot size: 1,000 shares

Bermuda Principal Share Registrar

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th floor North

Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar

Tricor Tengis Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
Telephone:  +852 2980-1333

Facsimile: +852 2810-8185

Email: is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com

Investor Relations

Corporate Affairs Department

27/F, 9 Wing Hong Street

Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Telephone:  +852 2991-0366
Facsimile: +852 2730-9683

Email: ir@chowsangsang.com

BREREH

B AR
NH2021FHEAELE © 2021548 H26H

k2021 FHEIRE © 202149 A23H

NA2021F2FEE - 2022F3A22H

FEPRERMD B 202245 A 248
B FE £5A27H
(BFRAEFAD) : (RIEERMX)

BRAFAS 2022%5H27H

HiEHERMBP 2022%6 A28
T FE Z£6A7H
(RERE) : (BEEEWK)

IKEE 2021 ERAMLE + 2022F 6 A 16 H

R ER

REBBEZ AR 116
UNGIWA LA

BFEREN 1,000

BREROBFETARE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th floor North

Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

ERRODBFEEAR
PEEERARAR

EREFRER 1835

ABfif 5418

BTah 0 +852 2980-1333

BH : +852 2810-8185

E I : is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com

REERMZ

EEBE

EBNERDE

KERHTALR 2748

Bah 0 +852 2991-0366
BH : +852 2730-9683
EH : ir@chowsangsang.com
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